
 
 

 
 
 

CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF 
COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

 
Bydd cyfarfod hybrid y CABINET yn cael ei gynnal ar’ 

Dydd Mawrth, 21ain Medi, 2021 am 11.00 am 
 

Dolen gyswllt: Emma Wilkins – Uned Busnes y Cyngor  

 (Rhif ffôn. 07385401935) 

 

 
Os bydd cynghorwyr neu aelodau o'r cyhoedd yn dymuno cael cyfle i annerch 
y Cabinet am unrhyw fater ar yr agenda isod, rhaid iddyn nhw ofyn am gael 
gwneud hynny erbyn canol Dydd Gwener, 17 Medi 2021. Rhaid iddyn nhw 
hefyd gadarnhau ai yn y Gymraeg neu yn y Saesneg y byddan nhw’n annerch. 
 
Nodwch mai'r Cadeirydd biau'r penderfyniad i ganiatáu'r cais am annerch y 
Cabinet. Bydd pob cais yn cael ei ystyried ar sail y materion sy'n cael eu trafod 
ar yr agenda, buddiant y cyhoedd/y Cynghorydd ynglŷn â phob mater, a'r 
gofynion o ran y materion sydd i'w trafod ar y diwrnod hwnnw. I wneud cais, 
anfonwch e-bost i UnedBusnesGweithredolaRheoleiddiol@rctcbc.gov.uk 

 
MATERION I'W TRAFOD 

 

1. DATGAN BUDDIANT   

 Derbyn datganiadau o fuddiannau personol gan Gynghorwyr, yn unol â 
gofynion Cod Ymddygiad y Cyngor. 
 
Nodwch: 
 

1. Mae gofyn i Aelodau ddatgan rhif a phwnc yr agendwm mae eu 
buddiant yn ymwneud ag ef a mynegi natur y buddiant personol 
hwnnw; a   

2. Lle bo Aelodau'n ymneilltuo o'r cyfarfod o ganlyniad i ddatgelu buddiant 
sy'n rhagfarnu, mae rhaid iddyn nhw roi gwybod i'r Cadeirydd pan 
fyddan nhw'n gadael. 

 

   

2. COFNODION   

 Cadarnhau cofnodion o gyfarfod y Cabinet a gynhaliwyd ar 20 
Gorffennaf 2021 yn rhai cywir. 

 

  (Tudalennau 5 - 16) 

3. RHAGLEN WAITH Y CABINET   

 Derbyn adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu, sy'n rhoi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i 
Aelodau am y rhestr arfaethedig o faterion y mae angen i'r Cabinet eu 

 

mailto:UnedBusnesGweithredolaRheoleiddiol@rctcbc.gov.uk


hystyried yn ystod Blwyddyn 2021-22 y Cyngor. 

  (Tudalennau 17 - 56) 

4. BWRDD RHIANTA CORFFORAETHOL – ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL   

 Derbyn adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu sy'n cyflwyno Adroddiad Blynyddol 2020-
2021 y Bwrdd Rhianta Corfforaethol i'r Aelodau. 

 

  (Tudalennau 57 - 86) 

5. ADOLYGU RHEOLIADAU, YMWYBYDDIAETH A GORFODI 
DEDDFWRIAETH LLIFOGYDD A DŴR  

 

 Derbyn adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran – Ffyniant, Datblygu a 
Gwasanaethau Rheng-flaen sy'n rhoi gwybod i'r Aelodau am yr 
adolygiad o reoliadau, ymwybyddiaeth a gorfodi deddfwriaeth llifogydd a 
dŵr yn y Cyngor yn dilyn Storm Dennis.  

 

  (Tudalennau 87 - 116) 

6. FFYRDD HEB EU MABWYSIADU   

 Derbyn adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran – Ffyniant, Datblygu a 
Gwasanaethau Rheng-flaen sy'n cynnig rhaglen beilot i gynnal gwaith ar 
strydoedd preifat. 

 

  (Tudalennau 117 - 138) 

7. RHAGLEN YSGOLION YR 21AIN GANRIF – CYNNIG I WELLA'R 
DDARPARIAETH ADDYSG YN YSGOL GYNRADD GYMRAEG LLYN 
Y FORWYN  

 

 Derbyn adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau 
Cynhwysiant, sy'n rhannu deilliannau cyhoeddi Hysbysiad Statudol yn 
ddiweddar o ran y cynnig i gynnal newidiadau a reoleiddir yn Ysgol 
Gynradd Gymraeg Llyn y Forwyn trwy symud yr ysgol i adeilad newydd 
ar safle newydd. 
 

 

  (Tudalennau 139 - 144) 

8. DYNODI TIR YNG NGHWM CLYDACH, TONYPANDY A ELWIR AR 
HYN O BRYD YN BARC CEFN GWLAD CWM CLYDACH YN BARC 
GWLEDIG  

 

 Derbyn adroddiad ar y cyd Cyfarwyddwr Eiddo'r Cyngor a'r 
Cyfarwyddwr - Iechyd a Diogelwch y Cyhoedd, a Gwasanaethau 
Cymuned, sy'n gofyn i Aelodau awdurdodi dynodi tir a elwir ar hyn o 
bryd yn Barc Cefn Gwlad Cwm Clydach yng Nghwm Clydach, 
Tonypandy (Cwm Rhondda Fawr) yn Barc Gwledig yn unol â 
darpariaethau Deddf Cefn Gwlad 1968. 

 

  (Tudalennau 145 - 152) 

9. CYNLLUN CORFFORAETHOL Y CYNGOR – BLAENORIAETHAU 
BUDDSODDI  

 

 Derbyn adroddiad Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Cyllid a Digidol sy'n 
nodi'r sefyllfa o ran cyfle'r Cabinet i gynnig bod y Cyngor yn buddsoddi 
ymhellach yn ei feysydd â blaenoriaeth, yn unol â'r Cynllun 

 



Corfforaethol, "Gwneud Gwahaniaeth" 2020-2024. 

  (Tudalennau 153 - 158) 

10. ADRODDIAD CYFLAWNIAD AC ADNODDAU'R CYNGOR (CH1)   

 Derbyn adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Cyllid a Digidol sy'n 
rhoi trosolwg o gyflawniad y Cyngor o ran materion ariannol a 
gweithredol. 

 

  (Tudalennau 159 - 184) 

11. MATERION BRYS   

 Trafod unrhyw faterion brys y mae'r Cadeirydd yn eu gweld yn briodol.  

   

 
 

Cyfarwyddwr Materion Cyfathrebu a Phennaeth Dros Dro’r Gwasanaethau 
Llywodraethol 

 
 
Cylchrediad:- 
 
Y Cynghorwyr: Y Cynghorydd A Morgan (Cadeirydd) 

Y Cynghorydd M Webber (Is-gadeirydd) 
Y Cynghorydd R Bevan 
Y Cynghorydd A Crimmings 
Y Cynghorydd  M Norris 
Y Cynghorydd J Rosser 
Y Cynghorydd R Lewis 
Y Cynghorydd C Leyshon 
Y Cynghorydd G Hopkins 

 
Swyddogion: Chris Bradshaw, Prif Weithredwr 

Christian Hanagan, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu 
Nigel Wheeler, Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran – Ffyniant, Datblygu, a 
Gwasanaethau Rheng-flaen 
Paul Mee, Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran y Gwasanaethau Cymuned a 
Gwasanaethau i Blant 
Richard Evans, Cyfarwyddwr - Materion Adnoddau Dynol 
David Powell, Cyfarwyddwr Materion Eiddo’r Cyngor 
Simon Gale, Cyfarwyddwr Materion Ffyniant a Datblygu 
Andy Wilkins, Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol 
Barrie Davies, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Cyllid a Digidol 
Louise Davies, Cyfarwyddwr – Iechyd a Diogelwch y Cyhoedd, a 
Gwasanaethau’r Gymuned 



Gaynor Davies, Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau 
Cynhwysiant 
Derek James, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Materion Ffyniant a 
Datblygu 
Paul Griffiths, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau Cyllid a 
Gwella 
Neil Griffiths, Head Of Financial Services - Community & Children's 
Services 

 
 



 

 

CABINET CYNGOR RHONDDA CYNON TAF 
Cofnodion cyfarfod hybrid y Cabinet gafodd ei gynnal Ddydd Mawrth, 20 Gorffennaf 2021 am 

11.00am  
 
 

Y Cynghorwyr Bwrdeistref Sirol – Aelodau o'r Cabinet – oedd yn bresennol:- 
 

Y Cynghorydd A Morgan (Cadeirydd) 
 

Y Cynghorydd M. Webber Y Cynghorydd R. Bevan 
Y Cynghorydd A. Crimmings Y Cynghorydd M. Norris 

Y Cynghorydd R. Lewis Y Cynghorydd C. Leyshon 
Y Cynghorydd G. Hopkins  

 
 

Swyddogion oedd yn bresennol 
 

Mr P Mee, Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran y Gwasanaethau Cymuned a Gwasanaethau i Blant 
Mr C Hanagan, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu 

Mr R Evans, Cyfarwyddwr Materion Adnoddau Dynol 
Mr D Powell, Cyfarwyddwr Eiddo'r Cyngor 

Mr S Gale, Cyfarwyddwr Materion Ffyniant a Datblygu 
Mr A Wilkins, Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol 

Mr B Davies, Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cyllid a Digidol 
Ms C Jones, Pennaeth Materion Mynediad a Chynhwysiant 

Mrs A Richards – Cyfarwyddwr Dros Dro – Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif a Materion Trawsnewid 
Ms N Goodman - Uwch Swyddog Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif 

 
 

21   DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT  
 

 

 Yn unol â Chod Ymddygiad y Cyngor, cafodd y datganiadau o fuddiant canlynol 
eu gwneud ynglŷn â'r agenda: 

 Datganodd Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol R. Bevan fuddiant 
personol ac arhosodd yn y cyfarfod pan oedd yr eitem yn cael ei 
thrafod ac yn destun pleidlais: Eitem - Cyngor Ymgynghorol 
Sefydlog ar Addysg Grefyddol (CYSAG) “Mae fy wyres yn 
mynychu ysgol Eglwys yng Nghymru. Er bod hyn y tu allan i'r 
Fwrdeistref Sirol, mae'n byw yn yr ardal.” 

 Datganodd Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol R Lewis fuddiant 
personol ac arhosodd yn y cyfarfod pan oedd yr eitem yn cael ei 
thrafod ac yn destun pleidlais: Eitem - Drafft Cynllun Strategol 
Cymraeg mewn Addysg - “Rwyf ar gorff llywodraethu ysgol y 
cyfeirir ati yn yr adroddiad” 

 Datganodd Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol M Webber fuddiant 
personol ac arhosodd yn y cyfarfod pan oedd yr eitem yn cael ei 
thrafod ac yn destun pleidlais: Eitem - Cynllun Rheoli Asedau 
Corfforaethol - “Rwyf ar gorff llywodraethu ysgol y cyfeirir ati yn yr 
adroddiad” 

 

 

22   COFNODION   

Tudalen 5

Agendwm 2



 

 
 PENDERFYNODD y Cabinet gymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 

17 a 24 Mehefin yn rhai cywir. 
 

 

23   YMDDIHEURIAD  
 

 

 Daeth ymddiheuriad am absenoldeb gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol J 
Rosser. 
 

 

24   CYNLLUN BLYNYDDOL BWRDD DIOGELU CWM TAF MORGANNWG 
2021/22  
 

 

 Cyflwynodd Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran y Gwasanaethau Cymuned a 
Gwasanaethau i Blant Gynllun Blynyddol Bwrdd Diogelu Cwm Taf 
Morgannwg i'r Cabinet, gan atgoffa'r Aelodau o gyfrifoldeb statudol y 
Bwrdd i gyhoeddi Cynllun Blynyddol sy'n nodi ei flaenoriaethau ar gyfer y 
flwyddyn i ddod bob blwyddyn.  
 
Dywedwyd wrth yr Aelodau fod y Bwrdd wedi cydnabod yr anawsterau a'r 
heriau yr oedd asiantaethau partner wedi'u hwynebu dros y flwyddyn 
ddiwethaf, gyda'r Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran yn esbonio bod Cynllun 
Blynyddol eleni yn cydnabod yr heriau hynny ac yn anelu at ddysgu 
gwersi wedi blwyddyn o alw aruthrol heb ei debyg ar wasanaethau. 
 
Rhoddwyd trosolwg o'r cynllun i'r Aelodau a dywedwyd y byddai cynllun 
gwaith manwl ar gyfer y Bwrdd a'i is-grwpiau yn rhan o'r Cynllun 
Blynyddol. Bydd y cynllun gwaith yn cynnwys y camau gweithredu 
angenrheidiol i gyflawni'r gwelliannau, manylion yr unigolyn cyfrifol, 
amserlenni a dulliau mesur llwyddiant. Bydd cynnydd y cynllun gwaith yn 
cael ei fonitro a'i adolygu bob chwarter a bydd yn sail i'r Adroddiad 
Blynyddol ar gyfer 2021/2022. 
 
Diolchodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol i 
Oedolion a'r Iaith Gymraeg i'r Bwrdd am gyflwyno'r cynllun gerbron yr 
Aelodau a'r gwaith a wnaed yn ystod y pandemig.  Dywedodd yr Aelod o'r 
Cabinet ei fod yn hyderus y byddai'r Bwrdd yn parhau i gyflawni ar ran 
trigolion Cwm Taf Morgannwg yn unol â'r cynllun newydd, a nododd ei 
fod yn uchelgeisiol ond yn realistig.  
 
Mynegodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Gwasanaethau i Blant a Phobl 
Ifanc ei diolch a chyfeiriodd at y deilliannau cyraeddadwy yn y cynllun a'r 
trefniadau partneriaeth effeithiol sydd ar waith i helpu i gyflawni'r cynllun 
wrth symud ymlaen. 
  
Yn dilyn trafod, PENDERFYNWYD: 
 
1. Nodi a chymeradwyo cynnwys Cynllun Blynyddol Bwrdd Diogelu 

Cwm Taf Morgannwg ar gyfer 2021/22. 
 

 

25   ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL CYNHALWYR CWM TAF MORGANNWG 2020/21  
 

 

Tudalen 6



 

 Cyflwynodd Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran y Gwasanaethau Cymuned a 
Gwasanaethau i Blant yr adroddiad blynyddol gerbron yr Aelodau gan 
ofyn am gymeradwyaeth i gyflwyno'r adroddiad i Lywodraeth Cymru.   
 
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran fod Llywodraeth Cymru yn darparu 
cyllid trosiannol o £1 miliwn y flwyddyn i Gymru yn 2020/21 (£161,000 i 
ardal Cwm Taf Morgannwg) i amddiffyn ac adeiladu ar y cynnydd hyd 
yma ac i gefnogi ehangu hawliau Cynhalwyr o dan Ddeddf 
Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant. Roedd yr adroddiad blynyddol 
gerbron yr Aelodau yn manylu ar sut y gwariwyd y cyllid trosiannol yn 
ardal Cwm Taf Morgannwg yn ystod y flwyddyn. Cafodd yr Aelodau 
wybodaeth am y meysydd gwaith allweddol ledled y rhanbarth a oedd yn 
cynnwys: 

 

 Dyrannwyd tua £135,500 o'r cyllid Grant Cynhalwyr i sefydliadau'r 
trydydd sector yn dilyn proses ymgeisio. 

 Cymorth i annog meddygfeydd i gymryd rhan mewn hyfforddiant 
Ymwybyddiaeth Cynhalwyr achrededig i ddod yn Hyrwyddwyr 
Cynhalwyr. 

 Gwelliannau i'r broses rhyddhau o'r ysbyty ar gyfer cynhalwyr di-dâl.  

 
Siaradodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol i 
Oedolion a'r Iaith Gymraeg am y cyfle i gydnabod y gwaith a wnaed gyda 
chynhalwyr a phobl agored i niwed ledled y Fwrdeistref Sirol drwy 
gyhoeddi Adroddiad Blynyddol Cynhalwyr Cwm Taf Morgannwg.   
 
Croesawodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet yr arian a ddyrannwyd i'r trydydd sector 
a soniodd am waith cadarnhaol y trydydd sector a manteisiodd ar y cyfle i 
ddiolch am eu cefnogaeth barhaus. Cyfeiriwyd at y cymorth i annog 
meddygfeydd i gymryd rhan mewn hyfforddiant Ymwybyddiaeth 
Cynhalwyr achrededig i ddod yn Hyrwyddwyr Cynhalwyr.  Croesawodd yr 
Aelod o'r Cabinet y gwelliannau i'r broses rhyddhau o'r ysbyty ar gyfer 
cynhalwyr di-dâl. 
 
Croesawodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Gwasanaethau i Blant yr 
adroddiad gerbron yr Aelodau a siaradodd yn gadarnhaol am y cynllun 
Cerdyn i Gynhalwyr Ifainc a lansiwyd yn RhCT ym mis Mawrth 2021, sy'n 
cynnig ffordd hawdd i gynhalwyr ifainc ddechrau sgwrs am eu rôl a 
darparu gostyngiadau iddyn nhw mewn siopau lleol gyda'r cerdyn. 
 
Ar ôl trafod, PENDERFYNWYD: 
 
 
1. Cymeradwyo Adroddiad Blynyddol Cynhalwyr Cwm Taf Morgannwg 

2020/21, sef Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad. 
2. Nodi cyhoeddiad Strategaeth ar gyfer Cynhalwyr Di-dâl Llywodraeth 

Cymru ym mis Mawrth 2021 a chydnabod bod y strategaeth yn 
ddogfen allweddol wrth gynllunio a darparu gwasanaethau i 
gynhalwyr ar draws y Cyngor. 

 

 

Tudalen 7



 

26   Y CYNNIG GWASANAETH ORIAU DYDD I BOBL AG ANABLEDDAU DYSGU  
 

 

 Cyflwynodd Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran Gwasanaethau Cymuned a Gwasanaethau i 
Blant adroddiad i'r Aelodau sy'n rhannu gwybodaeth a materion allweddol sy'n 
ymwneud â chynnig gwasanaeth oriau dydd cyfredol y Cyngor i bobl ag 
anableddau dysgu. 
 
Esboniodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran fod y cynnig gwasanaeth oriau dydd 
cyfredol sydd wedi'u lleoli mewn adeiladau yn bennaf ac yn dilyn model 
"canolfan oriau dydd" traddodiadol a oedd yn darparu gwasanaethau i oedolion 
ag anabledd dysgu â chwmpas cyfyngedig i gynnig dewis a rheolaeth a chodi 
dyhead i bobl - mae angen dull mwy arloesol ac ymateb amrywiol. Ar hyn o bryd 
mae Covid-19 wedi effeithio ar allu gwasanaethau oriau dydd i weithredu rhai o'r 
gwasanaethau oriau dydd presennol mewn canolfannau oherwydd y gofynion o 
ran cadw pellter cymdeithasol ac ychwanegwyd y gallai hyn fod â goblygiadau 
tymor hwy. Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran ei bod yn bwysig bod y 
Gwasanaethau i Oedolion yn trafod unrhyw wersi ac arfer da sydd wedi dod i'r 
amlwg yn ystod y pandemig er mwyn llywio'r cynnig gwasanaethau oriau dydd 
yn y dyfodol.  
 
Cafodd yr adroddiad ei gyflwyno i'r Aelodau gyda'r bwriad, gyda chytundeb y 
Cabinet, o ofyn iddyn nhw argymell bod y Cyngor yn parhau i ymgysylltu’n 
barhaus gyda phobl ag anabledd dysgu, eu teuluoedd a'u cynhalwyr, staff a 
phartneriaid a llunio strategaeth cyfleoedd oriau dydd newydd i drawsnewid 
cynnig gwasanaethau oriau dydd cyfredol y Cyngor i bobl ag anabledd dysgu a 
sicrhau bod gwasanaethau, yn y tymor byr a'r tymor hir, yn cael eu trefnu a'u 
darparu mewn ffordd sy'n cyflawni'r deilliannau gorau posibl ar gyfer pob 
unigolyn ac yn gwneud y defnydd gorau o adnoddau'r Cyngor. Trafododd 
Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran lunio strategaeth cyfleoedd oriau dydd ddrafft i'w 
chymeradwyo cyn ymgynghori'n ffurfiol â'r cyhoedd, os oedd yr Aelodau'n 
cytuno. 
 
Dywedwyd wrth yr Aelodau nad oedd y Cyngor yn gallu darparu gwasanaeth 
oriau dydd yng Nghanolfan Oriau Dydd Trefforest ar hyn o bryd oherwydd y 
llifogydd a'r difrod difrifol ym mis Chwefror 2020. Mae'r gwasanaeth yma yn dal i 
fod ar gau dros dro, a byddai hynny'n caniatáu cynnal gwerthusiad pellach pan 
fydd y cynnig strategaeth cyfleoedd oriau dydd ddrafft yn cael ei gyflwyno i'r 
Cabinet i'w gymeradwyo 
 
Siaradodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol i 
Oedolion a'r Iaith Gymraeg am y thema gyffredin sy'n rhedeg ar draws yr 
agenda drawsnewid a'r gydnabyddiaeth o'r angen i wella'r cynnig y mae'r 
Cyngor yn ei ddarparu i oedolion, yn enwedig pobl hŷn ac agored i niwed, gan 
gynnwys y rhai ag anabledd dysgu.  Ychwanegodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ei fod yn 
cael ei gydnabod bod y ddarpariaeth bresennol yn gyfyngedig a chytunodd mai 
dyma'r amser iawn i adolygu a gwella'r gwasanaeth a ddarperir.  Croesawodd yr 
Aelod o'r Cabinet drafodaethau agored gyda defnyddwyr, cleientiaid a'r 
boblogaeth ehangach, i wella'r cyfleoedd sydd ar gael. 

 
PENDERFYNWYD: 

 

1. Trafod yr wybodaeth a ddarperir yn yr adroddiad yma, gan 
gynnwys y crynodeb o arsylwadau allweddol ac adborth o'r 
ymgysylltiad a wnaed yn rhan o weithredu'r Rhaglen Trawsnewid 

 

Tudalen 8



 

Anableddau Dysgu newydd. 
 

2. Cymeradwyo ymgysylltu'n barhaus â phobl ag anabledd dysgu, eu 
teuluoedd a'u cynhalwyr, staff a phartneriaid a chymeradwyo'r 
cynigion i lunio strategaeth cyfleoedd oriau dydd newydd i 
drawsnewid cynnig gwasanaethau oriau dydd cyfredol y Cyngor a 
darpariaeth y gwasanaeth yn y dyfodol yn Rhondda Cynon Taf fel 
y nodir yn Adran 9 yr adroddiad. 
 

3. Derbyn adroddiad pellach sy'n cyflwyno'r strategaeth cyfleoedd 
oriau dydd ddrafft wedi'i llunio ar y cyd ar gyfer pobl ag anabledd 
dysgu i'w chymeradwyo cyn ymgynghori'n ffurfiol â'r cyhoedd. 
 

4. Cymeradwyo i Ganolfan Oriau Dydd Trefforest aros ar gau dros 
dro a pharhau â threfniadau i gefnogi pobl sydd wedi'u cofrestru 
yng Nghanolfan Oriau Dydd Trefforest a'u teuluoedd a'u cynhalwyr 
i ddiwallu eu hangen asesedig fel y nodir ym mharagraff 7.21 o'r 
adroddiad. 

 
27   CYNLLUN STRATEGOL CYMRAEG MEWN ADDYSG - DRAFFT  

 
 

 Cyflwynodd Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth Dros Dro Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif a 
Thrawsnewid ddrafft Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg (WESP) i'r 
Aelodau. Mae'r cynllun yn ofynnol o dan Adran 84 Deddf Safonau a 
Threfniadaeth Ysgolion 2013. Cafodd yr Aelodau wybod, ers i'r Cyngor osod y 
Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg cyntaf ger bron Llywodraeth Cymru yn 
2016, mae newidiadau sylweddol wedi bod yn y sector addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg 
ar lefelau lleol a chenedlaethol. Mae'r newidiadau yma wedi'u dylanwadu'n 
bennaf gan ddeddfwriaeth Llywodraeth Cymru, yn enwedig Cynllun Gweithredu 
newydd Cymraeg mewn Addysg a thrwy barhau i roi Rhaglen Ysgolion a 
Cholegau'r 21ain Ganrif ar waith. Roedd angen i ddau brif ffocws newydd y 
Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg gynnwys ymestyn hyd cylch 
gweithredu'r Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg o'i dair blynedd gyfredol i 
ddeng mlynedd; a disodli'r ddyletswydd gyfredol ar Awdurdodau Lleol i gynllunio 
darpariaeth eu haddysg cyfrwng Cymraeg yn seiliedig ar alw ar yr amod bod 
Awdurdodau Lleol yn cyflawni targedau sydd wedi'u gosod gan Lywodraeth 
Cymru. Nod y targedau yma yw cynyddu canran y dysgwyr Blwyddyn Un mewn 
addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg yn ystod cyfnod y Cynllun Strategol yma. 
 
Parhaodd y Swyddog drwy rannu trosolwg o ddrafft y Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg 
mewn Addysg gan amlygu'r targed i gynyddu canran y dysgwyr Blwyddyn Un 
mewn addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg a'r saith deilliant neu faes sy'n nodi sut y mae 
disgwyl i Awdurdodau Lleol wella addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg a chyfrwng Saesneg 
yn eu hardal. 
 
Siaradodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth Dros Dro am y gwaith ymgysylltu ar y 
cyd yr oedd angen ei ddatblygu i gynorthwyo i gyflawni'r deilliannau delfrydol a'r 
angen i ymgynghori â'r cyhoedd. 
 
Diolchodd yr Arweinydd i Aelodau Grŵp Llywio'r Cabinet ar faterion y Gymraeg 
am drafod y Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg drafft a chydnabod y 
sylwadau a gododd o'r cyfarfod. Cafodd y rhain eu rhannu gyda'r Aelodau 
ymlaen llaw. 

 

Tudalen 9



 

 
Croesawodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Gwasanaethau Cymuned i 
Oedolion a’r Iaith Gymraeg newid cwmpas y strategaeth i 10 mlynedd a 
siaradodd yn gadarnhaol am y gwaith ymgysylltu â phartneriaid i ddrafftio’r 
cynllun strategol, a oedd wedi creu cynllun cytbwys a realistig.  Roedd 
ymgynghori ymhellach ar y cynllun drafft yn bwysig er mwyn cryfhau 
uchelgeisiau'r Cyngor ymhellach wrth gyflawni targedau Llywodraeth Cymru. 
 
Gwnaeth yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Cymunedau Cryfach, Lles a 
Gwasanaethau Diwylliannol sylwadau ar y strategaeth uchelgeisiol gerbron yr 
Aelodau a gwnaeth sylwadau ar y buddsoddiad a wnaed eisoes gan yr 
Awdurdod trwy leoliadau addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg. Mae hyn wedi'i nodi yn y 
cynllun. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: 

 

1. Nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad yma a'r Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg 
mewn Addysg drafft, sef Atodiad 1 i'r adroddiad. 
 

2. Trafod drafft y Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg. 
 

3. Cytuno i swyddogion ymgysylltu ag ystod eang o randdeiliaid ar y 
Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg drafft, ac ymgynghori â 
nhw.  
 

4. Cytuno i adolygu canlyniadau'r ymgynghoriad ar y Cynllun 
Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg drafft mewn cyfarfod o'r Cabinet 
yn y dyfodol. 

 
(Noder: At ddibenion tryloywder, roedd sylwadau ac adborth Grŵp Llywio'r 
Cabinet ar faterion y Gymraeg ynghlwm wrth yr hysbysiad o benderfyniad ar 
gyfer yr eitem yma) 

 
 

28   DIWEDDARIAD AR RAGLEN YSGOLION A CHOLEGAU'R 21AIN GANRIF - 
MODEL BUDDSODDI CYDFUDDIANNOL (MIM)  
 

 

 Fe wnaeth Uwch Swyddog Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif gyflwyno trosolwg o'r 
adroddiad gyda'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am elfen ariannu'r Model Buddsoddi 
Cydfuddiannol ar gyfer Rhaglen Ysgolion a Cholegau'r 21ain Ganrif, mewn 
perthynas â Phrosiect Braenaru Model Buddsoddi Cydfuddiannol y Cyngor.   
 
Dywedwyd wrth yr Aelodau am yr angen i symud y prosiectau braenaru Model 
Buddsoddi Cydfuddiannol i'r cam nesaf yn unol â'r Broses Gymeradwyo ar gyfer 
Prosiectau Newydd fel y nodir yn Atodlen 5 y Cytundeb Partneriaeth Strategol ar 
gyfer cyflwyno adeiladau ysgol newydd ac i gadw ar y trywydd iawn gyda'r 
amserlenni a amlinellir yn y rhaglen ddangosol. 
 
Cyfeiriodd Arweinydd y Cyngor at sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu yn 
dilyn eu trefniadau cyn y cam craffu ar yr adroddiad a diolchodd i'r Aelodau am 
eu sylwadau. Cafodd y rhain eu rhannu gydag Aelodau'r Cabinet cyn y cyfarfod. 
 
Cyfeiriodd yr Arweinydd at y tair ysgol newydd sy'n cael eu crybwyll yn yr 

 

Tudalen 10



 

adroddiad a fydd yn cael eu datblygu ac sydd o fewn meysydd o dyfiant sydd 
wedi'u nodi.  Dywedodd yr Arweinydd mai RhCT oedd un o ddau Awdurdod 
Lleol yn unig a oedd yn parhau gyda'r Model Buddsoddi Cydfuddiannol ac fe 
groesawodd y ffaith bod y Cyngor yn parhau gyda'r buddsoddiad. 
 
Ar ôl trafod, PENDERFYNWYD: 
 

I. Nodi'r wybodaeth sydd wedi ei chynnwys yn yr adroddiad.  
 

II. Nodi'r costau sydd wedi codi hyd yma a'r costau arfaethedig. 
 

III. Cymeradwyo cyflwyno Achos Busnes Amlinellol i Lywodraeth 
Cymru i'w drafod erbyn Gorffennaf / Awst 2021. 
 

IV. Cymeradwyo symud ymlaen i Gam 2 y broses Model Buddsoddi 
Cydfuddiannol gyda Llywodraeth Cymru a phartner sector preifat. 
 

V. Nodi y byddai angen cymeradwyaeth ffurfiol pellach gan y Cyngor 
er mwyn cyflwyno'r Prosiect Braenaru ac i ymrwymo'n gyfreithlon i 
hwyluso'r prosiect, gan gynnwys arwyddo Cytundeb Prosiect. 

 
(Noder: At ddibenion tryloywder, roedd sylwadau ac adborth y Pwyllgor 
Trosolwg a Chraffu ynghlwm wrth yr hysbysiad o benderfyniad ar gyfer yr eitem 
yma) 
 

29   CYNIGION I SEFYDLU DARPARIAETH ADDYSG GYNRADD AR GYFER 
DATBLYGIAD TAI LLANILID  
 

 

 Cyflwynodd Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth Dros Dro Ysgolion y 21ain Ganrif a 
Thrawsnewid ddiweddariad i’r Aelodau ar y cynnig i sefydlu darpariaeth addysg 
gynradd newydd i wasanaethu’r datblygiad tai newydd yn Llanilid, Llanharan. 
Cafodd yr Aelodau wybod y caiff hyn ei wneud, yn y lle cyntaf, trwy ystyried yr 
adeilad newydd a fydd yn cael ei ddarparu gan y datblygwyr tai yn estyniad i'r 
ddarpariaeth ddwy iaith yn Ysgol Gynradd Dolau.   
 
Dywedwyd wrth yr Aelodau am y cyfyngiadau cynllunio roedd y datblygwyr tai a 
oedd yn adeiladu'r ysgol wedi dod ar eu traws ac yn sgil yr oedi ac i liniaru 
unrhyw risgiau posibl, awgrymwyd oedi'r dyddiad gweithredu am dair blynedd, 
sef yr oedi mwyaf a ganiateir o fewn y Cod Trefniadaeth Ysgolion. Bydd hyn yn 
gohirio dyddiad gweithredu'r cynnig tan fis Medi 2024. 
 
Roedd Arweinydd yr ysgol yn cefnogi'r cynnig a'r amserlen newydd. 
 
Siaradodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Gwasanaethau Cymuned i Oedolion 
a'r Iaith Gymraeg ar yr eitem, fel aelod lleol a chroesawodd yr estyniad. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: 
 

I. Nodi'r wybodaeth sydd wedi ei chynnwys yn yr adroddiad. 
 

II.  Cytuno i ohirio dyddiad gweithredu'r cynnig hyd at fis Medi 2024. 
 

 

30   CYNNIG I GYNNAL CYNLLUN PEILOT AR GYFER MODEL YSGOL RITHWIR  

Tudalen 11



 

I WELLA DEILLIANNAU ADDYSGOL PLANT SY'N DERBYN GOFAL  
 

 Fe wnaeth Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant roi gwybod i Aelodau am y 
cyfle i drafod strategaeth beilot ar y cyd rhwng y Gwasanaethau Addysg a 
Chynhwysiant a Gwasanaethau i Blant i wella deilliannau addysgol plant sy'n 
derbyn gofal (PDG) gan Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf trwy greu 
Model Ysgol Rithwir (VSM). 
 
Dywedwyd wrth yr Aelodau y byddai'r cynnig i dreialu model integredig o 
gefnogaeth yn hyrwyddo cyflawniad addysgol PDG sy'n mynychu lleoliadau 
addysgol yn y sir ac y tu allan i'r sir. Esboniwyd hefyd y byddai'r cynnig yn 
hyrwyddo cyfleoedd i ddatblygu arferion mwy cynhwysol mewn ysgolion ac i 
gefnogi gweithredu diwygiadau addysgol ehangach i ddiwallu anghenion 
disgyblion sy'n BDG. 
 
Croesawodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Gwasanaethau i Blant y peilot a 
chyfeiriodd at yr angen i  wella canlyniadau addysgol plant sy'n derbyn gofal a 
rôl pob Aelod fel rhiant corfforaethol.  Croesawodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet y 
gwerthusiad yn dilyn y cynllun peilot. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: 
 

I. Nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad. 
 

ii. Parhau gyda'r cynnig i gynnal cynllun peilot Model Ysgol 
Rithwir i wella deilliannau addysgol plant sy'n derbyn gofal 
(PDG) gan Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf. 

 

iii. Derbyn adroddiad pellach yn cyflwyno gwerthusiad o'r 
cynllun peilot Model Ysgol Rithwir i lywio gweithredoedd yn 
y dyfodol.  

 
 

 

31   CYNGOR YMGYNGHOROL SEFYDLOG AR ADDYSG GREFYDDOL 
(CYSAG)  
 

 

 Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif a Materion 
Trawsnewid, adroddiad i'r Aelodau yn cynnwys gwybodaeth am ddyletswyddau 
statudol y Cyngor o ran sefydlu Cyngor Ymgynghorol Sefydlog ar Addysg 
Grefyddol (CYSAG). 
 
Dywedodd y Swyddog mai prif swyddogaeth y Cyngor Ymgynghorol Sefydlog ar 
Addysg Grefyddol (CYSAG) oedd 'to advise the authority upon such matters 
connected with religious worship in county schools and the religious education to 
be given in accordance with an agreed syllabus as the authority may refer to the 
Council or as the Council may see fit.' (Dyfyniad o Ddeddf Addysg 1996)  
 
Hysbyswyd yr Aelodau bod newidiadau yn y ffordd y mae cymorth i ysgolion yn 
cael ei drefnu a'i ddarparu wedi arwain at newidiadau yn y ddarpariaeth. Yn 
hytrach na gwasanaeth cynghori sy'n cael ei arwain gan y pwnc, mae'r 
gwasanaeth yn cynnig system hunangynhaliol rhwng ysgolion.  Roedd 
newidiadau o'r fath mewn arferion gwaith wedi ei gwneud yn ofynnol i'r Cyngor 
Ymgynghorol Sefydlog ar Addysg Grefyddol gyflawni ei rôl a'i swyddogaethau 
gydag ysgolion drwy ddefnyddio model ymgynghorol.   

 

Tudalen 12



 

 
Diolchodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Gwasanaethau Cymuned i Oedolion 
a’r Gymraeg i Aelodau'r Cyngor Ymgynghorol Sefydlog ar Addysg Grefyddol am 
eu gwaith dros y flwyddyn ddiwethaf. 
 
CYTUNWYD nodi cynnwys Adroddiadau Blynyddol 2019-2020. 
 

32   ADRODDIAD AR GYFLAWNIAD Y CYNGOR – 31 Mawrth 2021 (Chwarter 
4/Diwedd blwyddyn)  
 

 

 Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyllid a Gwasanaethau Digidol drosolwg o 
gyflawniad y Cyngor o ran materion ariannol a gweithredol ar gyfer y flwyddyn 

ariannol a ddaeth i ben ar 31 Mawrth 2021. 
 
Rhannwyd gyda'r Aelodau fanylion mewn perthynas â chrynodeb 
gweithredol, monitro refeniw, monitro cyfalaf, iechyd sefydliadol, 
blaenoriaethau corfforaethol a gwella ymateb y Cyngor i dywydd eithafol. 
 

Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr fod cynnydd da ar draws tair blaenoriaeth 
Cynllun Corfforaethol y Cyngor, sef Pobl, Lleoedd a Ffyniant, lle 
canolbwyntiwyd ar ddarparu cymorth hanfodol i breswylwyr a busnesau i'w 
helpu i wrthsefyll effaith sylweddol Covid-19 ochr yn ochr â pharhau i 
gyflawni prosiectau strategol.  

Yn ôl yr ail ddiweddariad cynnydd ynghylch cyflwyno argymhellion i wella 
ymateb y Cyngor i dywydd garw, roedd y Cyngor mewn lle da, gyda chamau 
allweddol yn cael eu datblygu i ddangos cyfeiriad clir ar gyfer y dyfodol.  

O ran sefyllfa cyllideb refeniw diwedd y flwyddyn, dywedwyd bod gorwariant 
o £0.204 miliwn ar hyn o bryd a'i fod yn cynrychioli sefyllfa well na'r hyn a 
adroddwyd ar gyfer chwarteri 1 i 3 2020/21. Ychwanegodd y Cyfarwyddwr 
fod y sefyllfa yma wedi'i gosod yng nghyd-destun anarferol Covid-19 ac 
mae'n ystyried cyllid ychwanegol gan Lywodraeth Cymru a hawliwyd yn 
ystod y flwyddyn, ac mae hefyd yn adlewyrchu parhad pwysau cyllidebol 
allweddol yn enwedig ar draws y Gwasanaethau i Oedolion a'r 
Gwasanaethau i Blant. Atgoffwyd yr Aelodau y byddai'n hanfodol bwysig bod 
cyllid ychwanegol Llywodraeth Cymru i fynd i'r afael â phwysau costau 
'craidd' yn parhau ar gyfer 2021/22 a thu hwnt, er enghraifft, ar draws 
gwasanaethau gofal cymdeithasol, ynghyd â chyllid ychwanegol Covid-19 i 
ariannu gwariant ychwanegol a cholledion incwm o ganlyniad uniongyrchol i'r 
pandemig.  
 
Gorffennodd y Cyfarwyddwr trwy nodi mai buddsoddiad cyfalaf ar 31 Mawrth 
2021 yw £102 miliwn, sy'n cefnogi gwelliannau gweladwy i seilwaith ac 
asedau, a hynny drwy ystyried cyfyngiadau a gofynion diogelwch Covid-19.  
 
Siaradodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet dros faterion Eiddo'r Cyngor am yr adroddiad 
cadarnhaol a chyfeiriodd at y meysydd yn yr adroddiad, gan gynnwys y 
gostyngiad mewn gorwariant o gymharu â'r chwarteri blaenorol a'r £102 
miliwn pellach mewn gwariant cyfalaf a oedd yn hwb i'r economi leol.  
Gorffennodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet trwy gyfeirio at arian Llywodraeth Cymru a 
ddarparwyd eisoes i'r Awdurdod trwy'r pandemig a'r angen i hyn barhau i 
gynnal gwasanaethau. 

 

Tudalen 13



 

 
Soniodd yr Arweinydd am y flwyddyn anodd wedi'r llifogydd a phandemig 
Covid a soniodd am yr ymdrechion trwy gydol y flwyddyn gan Swyddogion ac 
Aelodau'r Cabinet i gyflawni cyllideb gytbwys.  Manteisiodd yr Arweinydd ar y 
cyfle i wneud sylwadau ar y cymorth a dderbyniwyd gan Lywodraeth Cymru 
a gofynnodd i'r manylion yma fod ar gael i'r cyhoedd, fel yr amlinellir isod. 
 

Cynllun Grantiau        
£ 

miliwn 
Ymdriniaeth 
gyfrifo 

Gwariant Ychwanegol a Cholled  
Incwm (Cronfa Caledi) 

48.967 Mewnol 

Cynllun Ffyrlo 2.026 Mewnol 

Cynllun Bonws Gofal Cymdeithasol 
£500 

2.807 Asiant 

Ychwanegiad at Dâl Salwch 
Statudol 

0.167 Asiant 

Profi mewn Cartrefi Gofal 0.100 Mewnol 

Taliadau Hunanynysu 0.510 Asiant 

Rhyddhad Ardreth Annomestig 
(Manwerthu, Hamdden a 
 Lletygarwch) 

15.920 Asiant 

Grantiau Busnes i Gefnogi 
Busnesau 

73.289 Asiant 

Profi, Olrhain, Diogelu 4.300 Mewnol 

Grantiau i Fusnesau Newydd 0.133 Asiant 

 
 
Fe wnaeth yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Menter, Datblygu a Chynllunio 
gydnabod ymdrechion swyddogion i gydbwyso’r gyllideb a siaradodd am y 
prosiectau a gyflwynwyd yng nghanol trefi a meysydd twf eraill ar gyfer yr 
economi leol.  Cyfeiriodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet hefyd at ddatblygu'r cynnig 
twristiaeth ledled y Fwrdeistref Sirol.  
 
Ar ôl trafod, PENDERFYNWYD: 

 
I. Nodi'r amgylchiadau digynsail parhaus y mae Gwasanaethau'r 

Cyngor yn eu hwynebu o ganlyniad i bandemig Covid-19. 
Refeniw 

II. Nodi a chytuno ar sefyllfa alldro refeniw'r Gronfa Gyffredinol ar 31 
Mawrth 2021 (Adran 2 o'r Crynodeb Gweithredol) gan gynnwys y 
cyllid untro ychwanegol gan Lywodraeth Cymru yn ystod y 
flwyddyn i gefnogi gwasanaethau yn sgil Covid-19. 

Cyfalaf 
III. Nodi sefyllfa alldro cyfalaf y Cyngor fel y mae ar 31 Mawrth 2021 

(Adrannau 3a-e o'r Crynodeb Gweithredol).  
IV. Nodi manylion y Dangosyddion Materion Darbodusrwydd Cylch 

Rheoli’r Trysorlys fel y mae ar 31 Mawrth 2021 (Adran 3f o'r 
Crynodeb Gweithredol).  

Blaenoriaethau'r Cynllun Corfforaethol 
V. Nodi'r cynnydd ar ddiwedd y flwyddyn yn erbyn blaenoriaethau 

Tudalen 14



 

corfforaethol cytûn (Adrannau 5a-c o grynodeb y Crynodeb 
Gweithredol). 

VI. Nodi'r adroddiad cynnydd i wella ymateb tymor byr a thymor hir y 
Cyngor i ddigwyddiadau tywydd eithafol (adran 6 o'r Grynodeb 
Weithredol) 

 
33   CYNLLUNIO ARIANNOL TYMOR CANOLIG  

 
 

 Fe wnaeth y Cyfarwyddwr Cyllid a Gwasanaethau Digidol, roi diweddariad i'r 
Aelodau Cabinet am y Cynllun Ariannol Tymor Canolig ar gyfer 2021/22 tan 
2024/25, yn seiliedig ar y tybiaethau modelu presennol, cyn pennu'r cynigion 
manwl ar gyfer strategaeth cyllideb 2022/23 yn ystod misoedd yr hydref.   
 
Dywedwyd wrth yr Aelodau bod yr adroddiad a'r 'Cynllun Ariannol Tymor 
Canolig 2021/22 i 2024/25' yn nodi sefyllfa bresennol yr heriau ariannol sy'n 
wynebu'r Cyngor yn y tymor canolig. Nodir yn yr adroddiad ei bod yn debygol y 
byddwn yn wynebu bwlch sylweddol yn y gyllideb yn ystod 2020/21 ac am y 2 
flynedd ddilynol, yn amodol ar lefel y cyllid gan Lywodraeth Cymru.  
 
Ychwanegodd y Cyfarwyddwr y gallai'r strategaeth ragweithiol sydd wedi'i 
mabwysiadu yn ystod y blynyddoedd diwethaf gyflawni arbedion effeithlon 
sylweddol o hyd, trwy adnabod arbedion yn gynnar a thargedu meysydd 
allweddol, canfod ffyrdd newydd o weithio a pharhau gyda phwyslais ar ddulliau 
ataliol.  
 
Nodwyd y byddai'r ffocws yn newid i strategaeth gyllideb 2022/23 ar ôl derbyn y 
Setliad Llywodraeth Leol Dros Dro ac, yn rhan o hyn, yn nodi ystod o opsiynau 
arbed cyllideb i alluogi'r Cyngor i gyflawni cyllideb gytbwys ar gyfer y flwyddyn i 
ddod. 
 
Gwnaeth yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol sylwadau 
ar yr angen i gydbwyso wrth symud ymlaen a Setliad Llywodraeth Cymru er 
mwyn cynorthwyo i sefydlu cyllideb gytbwys.  Siaradodd yr Aelod Cabinet am y 
bwlch cyllido posibl a allai fod rhwng 2 a 4%. 
 
Cyfeiriodd Arweinydd y Cyngor at y Grant Cynnal Refeniw a'r goblygiadau o ran 
bwlch yn y gyllideb, pwysau cyflog a chwyddiant.  Siaradodd yr Arweinydd am 
sut y gallai adferiad o’r pandemig edrych a’r effaith y gallai ei chael ar y gyllideb 
wrth symud ymlaen a chyfeiriodd hefyd at waith lobïo Cymdeithas Llywodraeth 
Leol Cymru gyda Llywodraeth San Steffan. 
 
Cyfeiriodd Aelodau eraill at y penderfyniadau anodd yr oedd angen eu gwneud 
yn y gorffennol gyda mesurau cyni a diolchwyd i swyddogion am y gwaith gosod 
cyllideb a'r buddsoddiad mewn blaenoriaethau craidd. 
 
Ar ôl trafod, PENDERFYNWYD: 
 

i. Nodi'r sefyllfa bresennol mewn perthynas â'r 'Cynllun Ariannol 
Tymor Canolig 2021/22 i 2024/25' a chael diweddariad pellach 
yn yr hydref yn rhan o'r broses gosod cyllideb flynyddol; a 

 

ii. Nodi y bydd y Cynllun Ariannol Tymor Canolig yn cael ei 
gyflwyno i'r Cyngor ym mis Medi ac yn cael ei adolygu gan 
Bwyllgor Craffu – Cyllid a Chyflawniad yn unol â'u cylch 

 

Tudalen 15



 

gorchwyl ochr yn ochr â'n trefniadau ymgynghori ar y gyllideb. 
 
 

34   GWAHARDD Y CYHOEDD  
 

 

 PENDERFYNWYD: “Bod y cyfarfod hwn yn cadw aelodau o'r wasg ac aelodau 
o'r cyhoedd allan o ystafell y cyfarfod, dan Adran 100A(4) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth 
Leol (fel y'i diwygiwyd), yn ystod trafod yr agendwm nesaf, ar y sail y byddai'n 
debygol o olygu datgelu gwybodaeth eithriedig yn ôl diffiniad paragraff 12 o Ran 
4 o Atodlen 12A i'r Ddeddf.” 
 

 

35   CYNLLUN RHEOLI ASEDAU CORFFORAETHOL 2018/23: Y DIWEDDARAF 
 

 

 Rhoddodd Cyfarwyddwr Eiddo'r Cyngor drosolwg i'r Aelodau o'r adroddiad 
eithriedig a oedd yn manylu ar y cynnydd yn erbyn themâu allweddol Cynllun 
Rheoli Asedau Corfforaethol 2018/23.   
 
Cofnododd yr Aelodau eu diolch i'r maes gwasanaeth am y gwaith a wnaed yn 
ystod y pandemig i sicrhau diogelwch staff a'r cyhoedd. 
 
Yn dilyn trafodaeth, PENDERFYNWYD nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad. 
 

 

 
 

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 12.01pm Y Cynghorydd A Morgan 
Cadeirydd 

 

 

Tudalen 16



 

 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
CABINET 

 
21st  SEPTEMBER 2021 

CABINET WORK PROGRAMME: 2021- 22 MUNICIPAL YEAR. 

 

REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & 
COMMUNICATIONS IN DISCUSSIONS WITH THE LEADER AND DEPUTY 
LEADER OF THE COUNCIL. 

 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To present, for Cabinet Members’ comment and approval, an update 

on the Cabinet Work Programme on the proposed list of matters 
requiring consideration by Cabinet over the 2021-22 Municipal Year.  
The Work Programme will guide and direct the activities of other arms 
of the Council, as well as the Cabinet itself. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Cabinet approve the Work Programme for 

the 2021-22 Municipal Year (with appropriate amendment where 
necessary) and receive a further update on a 3 monthly basis. 
 
 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 At the Council AGM on the 26th May 2021, it was agreed that going 

forward a detailed Cabinet Work Programme be published for a 6 
month period, allowing sufficient notice and opportunity for consultation 
and / or pre scrutiny.  Amendments to paragraph 12.1 (Part 4) of the 
Council’s Constitution were amended to reflect this position, although 
still allowing updated versions of the programme to be provided on a 3 
monthly cycle to the Cabinet. 
 

3.2 The Local Government & Elections (Wales) Act 2021, provides that 
information about forthcoming executive decisions must be made 
available to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, to ensure these 
Committees are best informed to undertake and better plan their work. 
Although the Council are already well placed in respect of this duty, it is 
important to ensure the development of an accurate and robust Cabinet 
work programme, outlining consideration of Key Decisions which will 

Tudalen 17

Agendwm 3



   

 

strengthen the robust Governance arrangements intended to be taken 
forward. 
 

3.3 The updated Work Programme is attached to this report for Members’ 
consideration and covers the 2021-22 Municipal Year. 

 
3.4  For ease of reference the work programme will also be available on the 

main Cabinet webpage for Members and members of the public 
information. 
 
 

4. CABINET REPORTS 
 
4.1 The proposed work programme is a rolling work programme for the 

2021/22 Municipal Year, which is reported to Cabinet on a 3 month 
cycle to allow for regular updates and amendments.  

 
4.2 An updated work programme is attached as Appendix 1 to this report. 
 
4.3 During the period outlined, the Work Programme may be subject to 

further change to take into account any additional/deletion reports, 
including any new consultative documents or legislative initiatives from 
the Welsh Government, which require urgent attention.  
 

4.4 In accordance with paragraph 2.5 (Part 4) of the Council’s Constitution, 
any Member of the Council may also request the Leader to put an item 
on the agenda of a Cabinet meeting.  There is also the ability for a 
resolution to be made by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or the 
full Council that an item be considered by the Cabinet, which could 
alter the forward Work Programme. 
 

4.5 In addition to publishing the Cabinet work programme on the main 
Cabinet web page, the Work Programme is will also be published on a 
standalone ‘Work Programme page’ on the website to again assist 
Members of the public, by improving transparency.   
 

5. CONSULTATION / INVOLVEMENT 
 
5.1 The work programme has been compiled by members of the Senior 

Leadership Team in discussion with the relevant portfolio holder(s) and 
has been consulted upon with the relevant scrutiny committees in 
respect of pre-scrutiny. 
 

 
5. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS / SOCIO-ECONOMIC 

DUTY 
 

Tudalen 18

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/TheCabinet/TheCabinet.aspx


   

 

An Equality Impact Assessment including the socio-economic duty is 
not needed because the contents of the report are for information 
purposes only. 
 

6. WELSH LANGUAGE IMPLICATIONS 
 

Not applicable.  Any implications to the welsh language will be 
presented within each of the reports outlined within the work 
programme.  

 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
 There are no financial implications aligned to this report. 
 
8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED  

The report has been prepared in accordance with paragraph 12.1 (Part 
4) of the Council’s Constitution and the future requirements of the Local 
Government & Elections (Wales) Act 2021. 
 

9. LINKS TO THE CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE 
WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT. 

 

The Cabinet work programme encompasses all of the Council priorities 
as it indicates reports coming forward across the Directorates which 
may impact upon the Council’s corporate priorities and others. It also 
embraces the Future Generations Acts as all future decisions taken by 
the Cabinet seek to improve the social, economic, environmental and 
cultural well-being of the County Borough.  

 
 
10. CONCLUSION 
 An updated Cabinet work programme for the 2021-22 Municipal Year is 

attached. 
 
 

Other Information:- 
 
Relevant Scrutiny Committee – Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 

Tudalen 19



   

 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

 
AS AMENDED BY 

 
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 

 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
CABINET 

 
21st SEPTEMBER 2021 

 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & 
COMMUNICATIONS IN DISCUSSIONS WITH THE LEADER AND DEPUTY 
LEADER OF THE COUNCIL. 

 
 
 
 
 

Item:  CABINET WORK PROGRAMME: 2021-22 MUNICIPAL YEAR. 

 

 

 
Background Papers 

 
      
 

 Paragraph 12.1 (Part 4) of the Council’s Constitution. 
 

 
 

Tudalen 20



 

Cabinet Work Programme. 

 

 

Forward plan of proposed Cabinet Business for the 2021/22 Municipal Year 

Specific Period: -June 2021 – May 2022. 

(Summary of proposed Key Decisions coming forward for Cabinet Members consideration.) 

N.B – The work programme is subject to change to take account of any additional / deletion of reports, including any new consultative documents or legislative 

initiatives from the Welsh Government, which require urgent attention. 

 

Contact: Emma Wilkins (Tel No. 01443 424110) 

  

T
udalen 21



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

Chief Executive 
 

Cabinet Work 
Programme 

In line with the 
Council’s 
Constitution there is 
a need to advise and 
publish the Cabinet 
Work Programme. 
 

 
Continuous 

 
Cabinet 

Every 3 months  
June 21 
September 21 
December 21 
March 22 

Leader of the Council, 
Councillor A Morgan. 
Service Director, 
Democratic Services & 
Communication – C 
Hanagan 

Open  Cabinet Members 

 SLT 

 Overview & Scrutiny 

Council’s Performance 
& Resources Report 

To provide Cabinet 
with an overview of 
the Council’s 
performance, both 
from a financial and 
operational 
perspective  

Continuous Cabinet Quarter 4 – July 
2021 
 
Quarter 1 –  
September 2021 
 
Quarter 2 –  
November 2021 
 
Quarter 3 – March 
2022 

Councillor M Norris. 
Director of Finance & 
Digital Services -  B 
Davies 

Open  Report is presented to the 
Finance & Performance 
Scrutiny Committee 
following consideration by 
Cabinet 

JUNE 
Leader’s Scheme of 
Delegation 

To formally receive 
the Leader’s Scheme 
of Delegation 
following the 2021 
Council AGM 
 

 Cabinet June 2021 Leader of the Council, 
Councillor A Morgan. 
Service Director, 
Democratic Services & 
Communication – C 
Hanagan   
 

Open Cabinet Members 

T
udalen 22



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

Climate Change 
Consultation Strategy 

To receive the 
findings from the 
recent consultation 
on the Council’s Draft 
Climate Change 
Strategy. 

 Cabinet June 2021 Councillor R Lewis – 
Climate Change 
Champion 
Chief Executive 

Open  Overview and 
Scrutiny 

 Climate Change 
Cabinet Steering 
Group 

Access and 
Engagement 
Improvements within 
Democracy 

To receive an update 
in respect of the 
introduction 
arrangements to 
enable the 
broadcasting of 
committee meetings 
and the ability to 
operate through a 
hybrid approach. 
These developments 
aim to encourage 
engagement and 
improve public 
participation in the 
democratic process. 

 Cabinet June 2021 Deputy Leader 
Service Director, 
Democratic Services & 
Communication – C 
Hanagan   

Open   

JULY 
        

        

Corporate Asset 
Management Plan 
Interim Update 

To brief members on 
progress with the 
plan 

 Cabinet July 2021 Councillor M Norris. 
Director of Corporate 
Estates – D Powell 

Exempt  

T
udalen 23



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

 

Medium Term Financial 
Plan Update 

To provide Members 
with an update on 
the Medium Term 
Financial Plan for 
2021/22 – 2024/2025 
 
 

  Cabinet July 2021 Councillor M Norris. 
Director of Finance & 
Digital Services -  B 
Davies 

Open Report is presented to the 
Finance & Performance 
Scrutiny Committee following 
consideration by Cabinet 

        

100-102 Taff St - 
Surrender of lease 

To surrender the 
lease of 100 – 102 
Taff St, Pontypridd 

 Delegated 
Decision  

August 2021 Councillor M Norris & 
A Morgan 
Director of Corporate 
Estates – D Powell 
 

Exempt  

SEPTEMBER 
 

Corporate Parenting 
Board Annual Report  

To consider the 
Annual report of the 
Corporate Parenting 
Board. 
 

 Cabinet  September 2021 Cllr C Leyshon 
Service Director, 
Democratic Services & 
Communication – C 
Hanagan   

  Corporate Parenting 
Board 

 Children & Young People 
Scrutiny  

Council Corporate Plan 
- Investment Priorities 

To consider the 
investment priorities. 

 Cabinet September 2021 Leader of the Council, 
Councillor A Morgan. 
Director of Finance & 
Digital Services – B 
Davies 

  

T
udalen 24



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

Cynon Valley Waste 
Disposal Company 
Limited and  
Amgen Rhondda 
Limited – Annual 
General Meeting 
 

To provide Members 
with details of the 
AGM in respect of 
the Cynon Valley 
Waste Disposal 
Company Ltd and 
Amgen Rhondda Ltd. 
 

 Cabinet September 2021 Councillor A 
Crimmings 
Director of Legal 
Services -  A Wilkins 

Exempt  

        

OCTOBER 
        

Budget Consultation 
Report  

To inform Members 
of the proposed 
approach to resident 
engagement and 
consultation in 
respect of the 
2022/23 budget. 
 

 Cabinet October 2021 Councillor M Webber 
Service Director, 
Democratic Services & 
Communication – C 
Hanagan   

Open  

Council’s Corporate 
Performance Report 

To consider the 
Corporate 
Performance Report 
and recommend its 
endorsement by 
Council 

 Cabinet October 2021 Leader of the Council, 
Councillor A Morgan. 
Chief Executive – C 
Bradshaw 

Open  

Improving the Council’s 
recruitment process for 

To provide Cabinet 
with a number of 
options that could 

 Cabinet September 2021 Deputy Leader, 
Councillor M Webber 

 Open 

T
udalen 25



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

the Armed Forces 
Community 

improve the Council’s 
recruitment process, 
so as to make it 
easier for the Armed 
Forces Community 
and veterans to 
overcome barriers to 
civilian employment. 

Director, Human 
Resources, Service 
Director, Democratic 
Services & 
Communication 

Digital Strategy Work  - 
Update 

To provide Members 
with an update in 
respect of the Digital 
Strategy Work 
Programme 
 

 
 

Cabinet October 2021 Councillor M Norris. 
Director of Finance & 
Digital Services – B 
Davies 
 

Open   

Electrical Vehicle 
Charging Strategy 

To provide Members 
with the EVC 
following 
consultation 

 Cabinet October 2021 Councillor R Lewis 
Director of Corporate 
Estates – D Powell 
 

 Climate change 
steering group 

Ombudsman Annual 
Report and Letter 

To consider the 
Annual Report and 
letter of the 
Ombudsman 

 Cabinet October 2021 Deputy Leader, 
Councillor M Webber. 
Director of Legal  
Services – A Wilkins 

  Overview & Scrutiny 
Governance & Audit 

NOVEMBER 
        

Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers 
Act 2000 (RIPA) - 

To enable Members 
to review the 
Council’s use of the 
Regulation of 

  
Cabinet 

November  2021 Deputy Leader, 
Councillor M Webber. 
Director of  Legal &  
Services – A Wilkins 

Open  

T
udalen 26



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

Use of RIPA in 2020-21 
by RCTCBC 

Investigatory Powers 
Act 2000 (‘RIPA’)  
 

Council Tax Base 
2022/23 

To receive the report 
in respect of setting 
the Council Tax Base 
2022/23 

 Cabinet November 2021 Councillor M Norris. 
Director of Finance & 
Digital Services – B 
Davies 

Open  

        

DECEMBER 
        

JANUARY 
Budget Report To agree a draft 

Revenue Budget 
Strategy for 2022/23 
as a basis to consult 
with stakeholders  
 

 Cabinet  January 2022 Leader of the Council, 
Councillor A Morgan. 
Director of Finance & 
Digital Services – B 
Davies 

  

Corporate Asset 
Management Plan 
Interim Update 

To brief members on 
progress with the 
plan 

 Cabinet January 2022 Councillor M Norris. 
Director of Corporate 
Estates – D Powell 
 

Exempt  

FEBRUARY 

Budget Report The need to adopt a 
budget strategy to 
recommend to 
Council as the basis 
of the budget 

 Cabinet February 2022 Leader of the Council, 
Councillor A Morgan. 
Director of Finance & 
Digital Services – B 
Davies 

Open  Budget Consultation - 
Service Users, Road 
shows, School Budget 
Forum & Scrutiny. 

T
udalen 27



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

strategy for the 
financial year ending 
March 2023, 
following 
consideration of the 
consultation 
feedback 

Council Fees & Charges The need to advise 
Cabinet of the 
proposed Council 
Fees and Charges for 
the financial year 
2022/23 

 Cabinet February 2022 Leader of the Council, 
Councillor A Morgan. 
Director of Finance & 
Digital Services – B 
Davies 

Open   

Capital Programme 
 
 

To propose to 
Council the three 
year capital 
programme 

 Cabinet February 2022 Leader of the Council, 
Councillor A Morgan. 
Director of Finance & 
Digital Services – B 
Davies 

Open  
 
 

NDR relief schemes To receive an update 
in respect of the  
NDR relief schemes    

 Cabinet February 2022 Councillor M Norris. 
Director of Finance & 
Digital Services – B 
Davies 
 
 
 
 
 

Open  

MARCH 

T
udalen 28



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

        

Annual Equalities 
Report 

To receive the report 
of the Director, 
Human Resources in 
respect of the Annual 
Equalities Report. 
 
 

 Cabinet March 2022 Deputy Leader, 
Councillor M Webber 
Director, Human 
Resources – R Evans 

Open   

        

APRIL 

MAY 
Strategic Equality Plan To provide Members 

with details of the 
Councils Strategic 
Equality plan 

 Cabinet May 2022 Deputy Leader, 
Councillor M Webber 
Director, Human 
Resources – R Evans 

Open  

ON GOING UPDATES  
The Council’s Response 
to Covid-19 

To formally receive a 
service update on the 
Council’s service 
response to the 
Covid-19 pandemic 

Continuous Cabinet  When Applicable Leader of the Council, 
Councillor A Morgan,  
Chief Executive – C 
Bradshaw 

Open  Cabinet Members 

 SLT 

 Overview & Scrutiny 

RCT Flooding Update To receive updates in 
respect of flooding in 
Rhondda Cynon Taf 
in addition to 
statutory reporting 

 Cabinet When Applicable  Leader of the Council, 
Councillor A Morgan,  
Chief Executive – C 
Bradshaw 

  

T
udalen 29



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

requirements into 
flooding.  

Brexit To receive a verbal 
update in respect of 
Brexit 
 
 

 Cabinet When appropriate Leader of the Council, 
Councillor A Morgan. 
Chief Executive – C 
Bradshaw 

Open   

Corporate Plan – 
Updates on delivery 

To receive reports 
outlining delivery and 
ambition of the 
Corporate Plan  
 

 Cabinet When Applicable Leader of the Council, 
Councillor A Morgan & 
Chief Executive, C 
Bradshaw 

Open  

Cardiff Capital Region - 
City Deal 

The need to advise of 
the progress being 
made in respect of 
the City Deal 
 

  
Cabinet 

 
When Applicable 

Leader of the Council, 
Councillor A Morgan & 
Chief Executive, C 
Bradshaw 

Open 
 
 

 
 
 

Staff Panel Report To receive details of 
the proposals put 
forward by the 
Council’s Staff Panel 
in respect of 
efficiency savings and 
smarter ways of 
working 
 

  
Cabinet 

 
When Applicable 

Councillor M Webber 
&  
Service Director, 
Democratic Services & 
Communication  - C 
Hanagan 

Open  

Scrutiny 
Recommendations 

To receive 
recommendations 
coming forward 

  
Cabinet 

 
Continuous 

Specific to the 
Scrutiny Review 
undertaken 

Open  
 
 

T
udalen 30



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

 

  

following a scrutiny 
review. 

  
 

        

Write off of 
irrecoverable Debts 

Need to provide 
Cabinet with a 
position statement 
on irrecoverable 
debts  
 

 Cabinet Continuous / When 
Applicable 

Leader of the Council, 
Councillor A Morgan & 
Councillor M Norris. 
Director, Finance & 
Digital Services – B 
Davies 

Exempt  

T
udalen 31



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 
 

Prosperity, Development & Frontline Services 
 

JUNE 
Online Active Travel 
Consultation : 
Outcome Of Exercise 

To consider the 
outcome of an online 
active travel 
consultation exercise 
that the Council 
undertook a few 
months ago, in 
collaboration with 
the Welsh 
Government. 

 Cabinet June 2021 Councillor A Crimmings 
Group Director – 
Prosperity, 
Development & 
Frontline Services – N 
Wheeler 

  

North West Cardiff 
Corridor 
Transportation Study 

To receive an update 
on a transportation 
study which is 
determining which 
public transport 
options offer the 
best business case in 
order to improve 
access through North 
West Cardiff towards 
the city centre. 

 Cabinet June 2021 Councillor A Crimmings 
Group Director – 
Prosperity, 
Development & 
Frontline Services – N 
Wheeler 

  

T
udalen 32



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

UK Levelling Up fund To receive 
information relating 
to the UK Levelling 
Up Fund 

 Cabinet June 2021 Councillor R Bevan 
Director of Prosperity 
& Development -  S 
Gale 

  

        

        

Removal of means 
testing for medium and 
large DFG’s 

Update in relation to 
the Removal of 
means testing for 
medium and large 
DFG’s 

 Delegated 
Decision 

June 2021 Councillor R Bevan 
Director of Prosperity 
& Development -  S 
Gale 

  

JULY 
 

        

AUGUST 

Welsh Governments 
Town Centre Business 
Grant 

To take forward the 
Grant from WG  

 Delegated 
Decision 

August 2021 Councillor R Bevan 
Director of Prosperity 
& Development -  S 
Gale 

  

SEPTEMBER 
Trivallis housing 

adaptation impact 
report and an update 
on wider partnership 
working between RCT 

and Trivallis to 
provide adapted 

To provide an update 
on the innovative 
methods used by 
Trivallis in order to 
spend their 
2020/2021 
Adaptations Budget 

 Cabinet September 
2021 

Councillor R Bevan 
Director of Prosperity 
& Development -  S 
Gale 

  

T
udalen 33



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

homes for some of 
our most vulnerable 

residents 
 

as a result of the 
Covid 19 Pandemic 

Approval of the 
Tourism Strategy 

To receive the 
Tourism Strategy 
consultation 

 Cabinet September 
2021 

Councillor R Bevan 
Director of Prosperity 
& Development -  S 
Gale 

  

Unadopted Roads To receive a report 
advising Members of 
unadopted roads 
across the Authority 

 Cabinet September 
2021 

Councillor A Morgan 
Group Director – 
Prosperity, 
Development & 
Frontline Services – N 
Wheeler 

  

Review of Regulation, 
Awareness and 
Enforcement of Flood 
and Water Legislation 

To advise members 
in regard to the 
review of the 
regulation, 
awareness and 
enforcement of flood 
and water legislation 
within the Council 
following Storm 
Dennis 

 Cabinet September 
2021 

Councillor A Morgan 
Group Director – 
Prosperity, 
Development & 
Frontline Services – N 
Wheeler 

  

Community 
infrastructure levy 
annual  monitoring 
report 

CIL regulations 
require a report to 
update Cabinet on 
the performance of 
CIL during the last 

 Cabinet  
September 
2021 

Councillor R Bevan 
Director of Prosperity 
& Development -  S 
Gale 

 Finance & Performance 

T
udalen 34



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

year and make any 
amendments 
deemed necessary. 

OCTOBER 
        

Revised LDP Preferred 
Strategy 

To receive the  
Revised LDP 
Preferred Strategy 

 Cabinet October 2021 Councillor R Bevan 
Director of Prosperity 
& Development -  S 
Gale 

  

Planning Annual 
Monitoring 

To approve the 
Planning Annual 
Performance Report , 
prior to submission 
to Welsh 
Government 
 

 Delegated 
Decision 

October 2021 Councillor R Bevan 
Director of Prosperity 
& Development -  S 
Gale 

  

LDP Annual Monitoring 
Report 

To approve the LDP 
annual monitoring 
report, prior to 
submission to Welsh 
Government  

 Delegated 
Decision 

October 2021 Councillor R Bevan 
Director of Prosperity 
& Development -  S 
Gale 

  

NOVEMBER 
Tonypandy 
Placemaking Plan   

To receive the  
Tonypandy 
Placemaking Plan   

 Cabinet November 
2021 

Councillor R Bevan 
Director of Prosperity 
& Development -  S 
Gale 

  

Town Centre Strategy 
(Aberdare Acquisitions) 

To receive the Town 
Centre Strategy  

 Delegated 
Decision 

November 
2021 

Councillor R Bevan   

T
udalen 35



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

Director of Prosperity 
& Development -  S 
Gale 

Pontypridd 
Placemaking Plan 

To receive the  
Pontypridd 
Placemaking Plan 

 Cabinet November 
2021 

Councillor R Bevan 
Director of Prosperity 
& Development -  S 
Gale 

  

Local Broadband Fund To receive 
information relating 
to the Local 
Broadband Fund 

 Cabinet November 
2021 

Councillor R Bevan 
Director of Prosperity 
& Development -  S 
Gale 

  

National Heritage 
Lottery Fund Priorities 

To receive 
information relating 
to the  National 
Heritage Lottery 
Fund Priorities 

 Cabinet November 
2021 

Councillor R Bevan 
Director of Prosperity 
& Development -  S 
Gale 

  

Bingo Hall Future Use To consider the 
future use of the 
Bingo Hall, 
Pontypridd 

 Cabinet November  
2021 

Councillor R Bevan 
Director of Prosperity 
& Development -  S 
Gale 

  

Pontypridd M&S 
Future Use 

To consider the 
future use of M&S, 
Pontypridd 

 Cabinet November 
2021 

Councillor R Bevan 
Director of Prosperity 
& Development -  S 
Gale 

  

DECEMBER 
 

        

        

T
udalen 36



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

        

JANUARY 
        

        

FEBRUARY 
Community 
Infrastructure Levy 
“CIL” Consultation 
Responses 

To update Cabinet on 
the responses 
resulting from the 
Community 
Infrastructure Levy 
“CIL” consultation in 
respect of the 
Council’s Regulation 
123 List 

 Cabinet February 2022 Councillor R Bevan 
Director of Prosperity 
& Development -  S 
Gale 

Open  

MARCH 

Review of Adapted 
Housing 

To  review Adapted 
Housing 

 Cabinet March 2022 Councillor R Bevan 
Director of Prosperity 
& Development -  S 
Gale 

  

Local Housing Market 
assessment  

To receive the Local 
Housing Market 
assessment 

 Cabinet March 2022 Councillor R Bevan 
Director of Prosperity 
& Development -  S 
Gale 

  

Supplementary Capital 
Programme - 
Highways, 

The need to seek 
approval for detailed 
investment within the 

 Cabinet March 2022 Leader of the Council, 
Councillor A Morgan. 

Open  

T
udalen 37



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

Transportation & 
Strategic projects  

service following 
Council’s approval of 

the 3 year Capital 
Programme. 

Group Director – 
Prosperity, 
Development & 
Frontline Services – N 
Wheeler 

APRIL 
        

MAY 
        

ONGOING UPDATES 

Processing Of Mixed 
Kerbside Recycling 
 

To provide Members 
with an update in  
respect of the 
opportunities of 
investment into 
processing of Mixed 
Kerbside Recycling 
 

 Cabinet  Leader of the Council 
Councillor A Morgan. 
Group Director – 
Prosperity, 
Development & 
Frontline Services – N 
Wheeler 
 

Exempt   

T
udalen 38



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

Highways Investment 
Scheme 

To receive regular 
updates in respect of 
the Highways 
Investment Scheme 

 Cabinet  Leader of the Council 
Councillor A Morgan. 
Group Director – 
Prosperity, 
Development & 
Frontline Services – N 
Wheeler 

  

Review of Mainstream 
School Transport 
Provision 

Need to provide 
Cabinet with the 
outcomes of the 
periodic review of 
the Council’s 
mainstream School 
Transport Provision 

 Cabinet Periodic 
Review / 
when 
applicable 

Leader of the Council, 
Councillor A Morgan. 
Group Director – 
Prosperity, 
Development & 
Frontline Services – N 
Wheeler 

Open  

Porth Town Centre 
Strategy 

To receive updates as 
and when applicable 

 Cabinet When 
appropriate 

Councillor R Bevan 
Director of Prosperity 
& Development -  S 
Gale 

  

T
udalen 39



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Taff Vale Update and 
Business Plan 

Taff Vale Update 
Report. 

  
Cabinet 

 
When 
appropriate 

Councillor R Bevan 
Director of Prosperity 
& Development -  S 
Gale 

Open 
 
 

 

Scrutiny 
Recommendations 

To receive any 
recommendations 
coming forward 
following a scrutiny 
review. 

 Cabinet Continuous / 
When 
Applicable 

Specific to Scrutiny 
Review undertaken 

Open  Scrutiny 

T
udalen 40



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 
 

Community & Children’s Services 
 

JUNE 

Asylum Seeker Dispersal 
Scheme Participation 

To receive an update in 
respect of the  Asylum 
Seeker Dispersal 
Scheme Participation 

 Cabinet June 2021 Cllr R Lewis 
Director, Public Health 
Protection & 
Community Services – L 
Davies 
 

  

Community Renewal Fund To receive an update on 
the delivery status of 
the UK Community 
Renewal Fund within 
Rhondda Cynon Taf, 
identified as a Priority 
Place for the funding 
opportunity by UK 
Government. 

 Cabinet June 2021    

JULY 

        

T
udalen 41



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

Cwm Taf Carer’s Annual 
Report 

To approve for 
submission to WG the 
annual report. 

 Cabinet July 2021 Councillor G Hopkins &  
Group Director 
Community & Children’s 
Services - P Mee 

Open multi agency Cwm Taf Carers 
Partnership 

Cwm Taf Safeguarding 
Board Annual Plan  

To receive the Cwm Taf 
Safeguarding Annual 
Plan 

 Cabinet July 2021 Councillor G Hopkins, 
Cllr T Leyshon 
Group Director 
Community & Children’s 
Services – P Mee 

Open  

Learning disability day 
service offer 

To provide for Members 
consideration key 
information and issues 
relating to the Council’s 
current day service offer 
for people with a 
learning disability 

 Cabinet July 2021 Councillor G Hopkins 
Group Director 
Community & Children’s 
Services – P Mee 

Open  

Publication of 2021 Air 
Quality Progress Report 

To publish the 2021 Air 
Quality Progress Report 

 Delegated 
Decision 

July 2021 Cllr R Lewis 
Director, Public Health 
Protection & 
Community Services – L 
Davies 
 

Open  

AUGUST 

T
udalen 42



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

        

SEPTEMBER 

Director Social Services 
Annual Report (Draft) 

Statutory required- 
Annual report on the 
delivery, performance, 
risks & planned 
improvements to the 
Social Services function 
of the Council 

Draft Cabinet September 2021 Councillor G Hopkins & 
Councillor C Leyshon - 
Group Director 
Community & Children’s 
Services - P Mee 

Open Children & Young People 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

  

Declaration of Clydach Vale 
as a Country Park 

To seek Cabinet 
approval to declare 
Clydach Vale as a 
Country Park 

 Cabinet September 2021 Cllr A Crimmings 
Director, Public Health 
Protection & 
Community Services – L 
Davies 
 

  

Public Space Protection 
Order- Review and 
Recommendations 

To receive a report in 
respect of Public Space 
Protection Orders. 

 Cabinet September 2021 Cllr R Lewis 
Director, Public Health 
Protection & 
Community Services – L 
Davies 
 

  

Fostering Services – 
Foster Carer Allowances 
(PM) 
 

To provide Cabinet with 
an update on Foster 
Care Allowances 

 Cabinet September 2021 Councillor G Hopkins , T 
Leyshon 

Exempt  

T
udalen 43



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

Group Director 
Community & Children’s 
Services – P Mee 

OCTOBER 

Food Resilience To provide Cabinet with 
an update 

 Cabinet October 2021 Cllr R Lewis 
Director, Public Health 
Protection & 
Community Services – L 
Davies 
 

  

Leisure Strategy To provide Cabinet with 
the Leisure Strategy 

 Cabinet October 2021 Cllr R Lewis 
Director, Public Health 
Protection & 
Community Services – L 
Davies 
 

  

Director Social Services 
Annual Report 

To receive the final 
report of the Director, 
Social Services prior to 
its publication 

 Cabinet October 2021 Councillors G Hopkins & 
T Leyshon. 
Group Director 
Community & Children’s 
Services – P Mee 

Open Children & Young People 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

Gambling Act Policy To receive the Gambling 
Act Policy 

 Cabinet October 2021 Cllr R Lewis 
Director, Public Health 
Protection & 
Community Services – L 
Davies 

 Licensing Committee 

T
udalen 44



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

 

Living Landscape Project To receive the 
comments   of the 
Climate Change Steering 
Group in respect of the 
Living Landscape Project 

 Cabinet October 2021 Cllr R Lewis 
Director, Public Health 
Protection & 
Community Services – L 
Davies 
 

 Climate Change Steering 
Group 

Cwm Taf Safeguarding 
Board Annual Report 

In accordance with the 
SSWB Act, the need to 
report the Cwm Taf 
Safeguarding Annual 
Report to the Cabinet, 
setting out their 
priorities for the coming 
year. 

 Cabinet October  2021 Councillor G Hopkins & 
Councillor C Leyshon 
Group Director 
Community & Children’s 
Services – P Mee 

Open 
 
 

 Cwm Taf 
Safeguarding Board 

 

Social Services Annual 
Complaints Report  

Provide Cabinet with an 
overview of the 
operation & 
effectiveness of the 
Council’s Social Services 
complaints procedure  
 
 

 Cabinet October 2021 Councillor G Hopkins 
Group Director 
Community & Children’s 
Services – P Mee 

Open  

NOVEMBER 

T
udalen 45



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

Early Years 
Transformation 
Programme update 

To provide Cabinet 
with an update on 
the Early Years 
Transformation 
Programme 

 Cabinet November 
2021 

Cllr R Lewis 
Director, Public Health 
Protection & Community 
Services – L Davies 
 

  

Homelessness Strategy To provide Cabinet 
with an update on 
the Homelessness 
Strategy 

 Cabinet September 
2021 

Cllr R Lewis 
Director, Public Health 
Protection & Community 
Services – L Davies 
 

  

 

DECEMBER 

JANUARY 
Publication of 2021 Air 
Quality Progress Report 

To publish the 2021 Air 
Quality Progress Report 

 Delegated 
Decision 

January 2022 Cllr R Lewis 
Director, Public Health 
Protection & 
Community Services 
 

Open  

National Adoption Annual 
Report 

To receive the National 
Adoption Annual Report 

 Cabinet January  2022 Councillor C Leyshon 
and  
Group Director 
Community & Children’s 
Services – P Mee 

Open 
 
 
 

 

FEBRUARY 

T
udalen 46



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 
Regional Adoption 
Annual Report 

To consider the 
Regional Adoption 
Annual Report 

 Cabinet February 2021 Councillor G Hopkins, 
Group Director 
Community & Children’s 
Services – P Mee 

  

MARCH 

APRIL 

MAY 

        

ONGOING UPDATES 

Modernisation of 
Residential Care and Day 
Care for Older People – 
Consultation feedback  

To receive the 
consultation feedback  

 Cabinet When Applicable Councillor G Hopkins, 
Group Director 
Community & Children’s 
Services – G Isingrini 

 Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

SS&WB Board 
Development 
 
 
 

To consider any updates 
as appropriate in 
respect of the SS&WB 
Board 

 Cabinet Continuous / 
When Applicable 

Councillor  C Leyshon 
Group Director 
Community & Children’s 
Services – P Mee 

Open   

T
udalen 47



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

Regional Transformation 
Agenda 

To receive an update on 
the regional 
transformation agenda 

 Cabinet When Applicable Councillor  C Leyshon 
and  
Group Director 
Community & Children’s 
Services – P Mee 

  

Development of 
Community Hubs  

To consider the 
development of 
Community Hubs across 
the County Borough 

 Cabinet Continuous / 
When Applicable 

Councillor R Lewis 
Director, Public Health, 
Protection & 
Community Services 

Open  

Extra Care Strategy To receive update 
reports on the Councils 
progress in respect of 
delivery of the Extra 
Care Strategy 

 Cabinet Continuous / 
When Applicable 

Councillor  C Leyshon 
Group Director 
Community & Children’s 
Services – P Mee 

Open  

Advocacy To provide Cabinet with 
an update in respect of 
advocacy 

 Cabinet When Applicable Councillor  C Leyshon 
and  
Group Director 
Community & Children’s 
Services – P Mee 

  

Cwm Taf MASH Annual 
Report 

To receive the Annual 
report of the Cwm Taf 
MASH 
 
 

 Cabinet When Applicable Councillor  C Leyshon 
Group Director 
Community & Children’s 
Services – P Mee 

Open  

Social Services & Wellbeing 
Act 
 
 

To provide updates as 
and when necessary on 
the Council’s duties in 
respect of the Act 
 

 Cabinet Continuous / 
When Applicable 

Councillor  C Leyshon 
Group Director 
Community & Children’s 
Services – P Mee 

Open  
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 48



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

 

 

  

Local Air Quality 
Management Reports 

To provide details of the 
Local Air Quality 
Management Reports 

 Delegated 
Decision 

Continuous / 
When Applicable 

Councillor R Lewis 
Director, Public Health, 
Protection & 
Community Services 

Open  

Scrutiny Recommendations To receive any 
recommendations 
coming forward 
following a scrutiny 
review. 

 Cabinet Continuous / 
When Applicable 

Specific to Scrutiny 
Review undertaken 

Open  Scrutiny 

T
udalen 49



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 
 

Education & Inclusion Services  
 

JUNE  
School Holiday 
Enrichment Programme 

To provide 
information on the 
SHEP pilot  

  June 2021 Councillor J Rosser. 
Director, Education & 
Inclusion Services  - G 
Davies  
(Author: Andrea 
Richards) 

Open  

Progress report Greater 
Pontypridd Schools Band 
B 

To receive updated 
project costs and re-
profiling of 
programme following 
JR determination 

 Cabinet June 2021 Councillor J Rosser. 
Director, Education & 
Inclusion Services  - G 
Davies  
(Author(s): Gaynor 
Davies/Andrea Richards) 

Open  

YGG Llyn-y-Forwyn To receive the 
outcome of the 
consultation for the 
proposed new school 

 Cabinet June 2021 Councillor J Rosser. 
Director, Education & 
Inclusion Services  - G 
Davies  
(Author(s): Gaynor 
Davies/Andrea Richards) 

Open  

FEO Pilot & potential 
rollout to Primaries 

To seek approval on 
the extension of the 
secondary FEO pilot 

 Cabinet June 2021 Councillor J Rosser. 
Director, Education & 
Inclusion Services  - G 
Davies  

Open  

T
udalen 50



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

and a new primary 
FEO pilot 

(Author(s): Daniel 
Williams) 

Additional repairs and 
maintenance investment 
in schools 

To provide an update 
on additional repairs 
and maintenance 
following additional 
WG grant funding.  

 Cabinet June 2021 Councillor J Rosser. 
Director, Education & 
Inclusion Services  - G 
Davies  
(Author(s): Andrea 
Richards/Lisa Howell) 

Open  

JULY 
RCT SACRE Annual 
Report 
 
 
 

To receive the annual 
report of RCT SACRE 

 Cabinet July 2021 Councillor J Rosser. 
Director, Education & 
Inclusion Services  - G 
Davies  
(Author(s): Angela Hill, 
CSC SACRE Consultant) 

Open  

Proposal re. Virtual 
School Model for CLA 

An opportunity to 
consider a joint pilot 
strategy between 
Education and 
Inclusion Services 
and Children’s 
Services to improve 
the educational 
outcomes of children 
who are looked after 
(CLA) by Rhondda 
Cynon Taf County 
Borough Council 

 Cabinet July 2021 Councillor J Rosser. 
Director, Education & 
Inclusion Services  - G 
Davies  
(Author: Ceri Jones) 

Open  

T
udalen 51



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

(RCTCBC) through 
the creation of a 
Virtual School Model 
(VSM). 

Band B Mutual 
Investment Module 

To receive update on 
costs and 
programme  

 Cabinet July 2021 Councillor J Rosser. 
Director, Education & 
Inclusion Services  - G 
Davies 
(Author(s): Gaynor 
Davies/Andrea Richards)  

Open  

WESP To receive the draft 
10 year Welsh in 
Education Strategic 
Programme to 
approve for 
consultation 

 Cabinet July 2021 Councillor J Rosser. 
Director, Education & 
Inclusion Services  - G 
Davies  
(Author(s): Gaynor 
Davies/Grace Zecca-
Hanagan) 

Open Welsh Language Cabinet Steering 
Group. 

Proposals To Establish 
Primary Education 
Provision For The Llanilid 
Housing Development 

To Receive an update 
on the proposal to 
establish new 
primary education 
provision to serve 
the new housing 
development at 
Llanilid, Llanharan 

 Cabinet July 2021 Councillor J Rosser. 
Director, Education & 
Inclusion Services  - G 
Davies  
 

Open  

SEPTEMBER 
 

        

T
udalen 52



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

YGG Llyn-y-Forwyn To receive the 
outcome of the 
statutory notice 
period new school 
and make a decision 
on whether to 
proceed with the 
proposal 

 Cabinet September  
2021 

Councillor J Rosser. 
Director, Education & 
Inclusion Services  - G 
Davies 
(Author(s): Gaynor 
Davies/Andrea Richards)  

Open  

        

OCTOBER 
Special School report - 
provisional 

  Cabinet October 2021 Councillor J Rosser & 
Director, Education & 
Inclusion Services  - G 
Davies 
(Author(s): Andrea 
Richards/Ceri Jones) 

Open  

Joint report with 
environmental services 
Update on food safety 
legislation (Natasha’s 
Law) 

  Cabinet October 2021 Councillor J Rosser & 
Director, Education & 
Inclusion Services  - G 
Davies 
(Author(s): Andrea 
Richards/Louise Davies) 

Open  

        

NOVEMBER 
        

DECEMBER 

T
udalen 53



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

ALNET Transformation 
and Implementation 

To provide an update 
on the 
implementation of 
the Additional 
Learning Needs and 
Education Tribunal 
Act (2018) 

 Cabinet December 
2021 

Councillor J Rosser & 
Director, Education & 
Inclusion Services  - G 
Davies 
(Author(s): Ceri Jones 

Open  

WESP To receive an update 
on the WESP 
following the public 
consultation 
undertaken. 

 Cabinet December 
2021 

Councillor J Rosser & 
Director, Education & 
Inclusion Services  - G 
Davies 
 

 WLSG 
Children & Young Peoples 
Scrutiny 

JANUARY 
Update on proposals to 
strengthen the 
continuum of school 
provision for pupils with 
social, emotional and 
behavioural difficulties 
(SEBD)  

  Cabinet January 2022 Councillor J Rosser & 
Director, Education & 
Inclusion Services  - G 
Davies 
(Author: Ceri Jones) 

Open  

        

FEBRUARY 
        

MARCH 
Childcare Sufficiency 
Update – Pre-scrutiny 

The need to provide 
details of the 
Childcare Sufficiency 

 Delegated 
Decision 

March  2022 Councillor J Rosser. Open Children & Young People Scrutiny 
Committee 

T
udalen 54



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

Audit undertaken, in 
line with Welsh 
Government 
Requirements 
 

Director, Education & 
Inclusion Services  -G 
Davies;   
(Author(s): Andrea 
Richards/Denise 
Humphries) 

Play Sufficiency 
Assessment 

The need to provide 
details of the play 
sufficiency Audit 
undertake in line 
with Welsh 
Government 
Requirements. 

  March  2022 Councillor J Rosser. 
Director, Education & 
Inclusion Services  -G 
Davies;   
(Author(s): Jess Allen) 

 Children & Young People Scrutiny 
Committee 

Supplementary Capital 
Programme – Education 
& Inclusion Services 

The need to seek 
Cabinet approval for 
further detailed 
investment within 
the service following 
Council’s approval of 
the 3 year Capital 
Programme. 
 

 Cabinet March 2022 Councillor J Rosser. 
Director, Education & 
Inclusion Services  -G 
Davies 
(Author(s): Andrea 
Richards) 

Open  

        

APRIL 

        

T
udalen 55



 

Key Decision Brief Outline  Report 
Status 

Decision 
Maker 
(Cabinet / 
Delegated 

Decision (DD)) 

Proposed 
Date 

Cabinet Member / 
responsible Officer 

Open / 
Exempt Report 

Consultation to be undertaken 
prior to Decision being made? 

 

 

MAY 

        

ONGOING UPDATES 

Scrutiny 
Recommendations 

To receive any 
recommendations 
coming forward 
following a scrutiny 
review. 

 Cabinet Continuous / 
When 
Applicable 

Specific to Scrutiny 
Review undertaken 

Open  Scrutiny 

21st Century Schools  To receive any 
updates in respect of 
the 21st Century 
Schools Programme 

 Cabinet Continuous / 
When 
Applicable 

Councillor J Rosser. 
Director, Education & 
Inclusion Services  - G 
Davies 

Open  

        

        

T
udalen 56



 

 

 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

CABINET 

 

21st SEPTEMBER 2021 

 

CORPORATE PARENTING BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 

 

REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES AND 

COMMUNICATION IN DISCUSSION WITH THE RELEVANT PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER, COUNCILLOR CHRISTINA LEYSHON. 

 

 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to provide the Cabinet with the Annual 

Report of the Corporate Parenting Board for the Municipal Year 
2020/21. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
 It is recommended that the Cabinet: 
 
2.1 Provide comment as appropriate on the Annual Report (which is 

attached as Appendix 1 to the report). 

 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
3.1 Under the Leaders Scheme of Delegation (the 3A) the Corporate 

Parenting Board, comprising of a cross party membership was formed 
to take the lead in ensuring that the Council fulfils its responsibilities as 
corporate parent’s to children who are looked after and formulate 
Council policy in respect of children who are looked after and children 
in need. 

 
3.2 As part of the Board’s Terms of reference, the Board must report its 

work to the Cabinet and it has been agreed that this will take the form 
of an Annual Report. 

 

4. BACKGROUND 

 
4.1 The first Annual Report for the Corporate Parenting Board was 

produced for the 2015/16 Municipal Year. 
 

Tudalen 57

Agendwm 4



4.2 The content of the report acted as a useful basis for a number of 
upcoming topics, which the Members felt needed particular attention in 
the 2016/17 Municipal Year.  

 
4.3 On 12th July 2021, the Corporate Parenting Board approved the Annual 

Report for the 2020/2021 Municipal Year. The report is attached at 
Appendix 1. 

 
4.4 To continue what is considered to be a positive synergy between the 

Board and the Council’s Scrutiny Committees, the Annual Report will 
be presented to the Children & Young People Scrutiny Committee on 
the 22nd September  for information. 

 

5. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 

 
5.1 An Equality Impact Assessment is not needed because the contents of 

the report are for information purposes only. 

 

6. CONSULTATION  

 
6.1 There is no consultation required for this report. 
 

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 

 
7.1 There are no financial implications aligned to this report. 

 

8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED  

 
8.1 The report has been prepared in accordance with Rhondda Cynon Taf 

County Borough Council’s constitution.  
 

9. LINKS TO THE COUNCILS CORPORATE PLAN / OTHER 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES/ FUTURE GENERATIONS – 

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT. 
 
9.1 The work of the Corporate Parenting Board links directly to the 

Council’s Corporate Plan priority – ‘Rhondda Cynon Taf’s Children will 
receive a great start in life...’ 

 
9.2 In respect of the Well-being of Future Generations Act, the work of the 

Corporate Parenting Board meets the Five Ways of Working: 
 

1. Working together with other partners to deliver objectives 
The Corporate Parenting Board considers reports and presentations 
from various service areas of the Council. Members are aware that a 
number of partners and areas must contribute to tackle the range of 
different issues, which young people may experience, such as mental 
health, education and budgeting. 

Tudalen 58



 

2. Involving those with an interest and seeking their views 
The Corporate Parenting Board provide looked after young people and 
care leavers in RCT with the opportunity to attend meetings and have 
their voice heard. It allows them to promote their life experiences at a 
strategic, policy and legislative level and provides Members with the 
chance to hear first-hand experiences.  

 

10. CONCLUSION 
 
10.1 The Corporate Parenting Board Annual report outlines the work of the 

Board in the 2020/2021 Municipal Year and features the priority areas 
the Board will consider in the future ensuring that the Council provides 
continuous improvement to the services that it delivers for its children 
and young people within the Looked After System. 

Tudalen 59



Tudalen wag



 

 
 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF 
CORPORATE PARENTING BOARD 

ANNUAL REPORT  
2020/2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Tudalen 61



 2 

 

CONTENTS 

 
Chair Foreword 
 
 

3 

 
About the Corporate Parenting Board 

 Relevant Legislation 

 Meet the Corporate Parenting Board 

 Terms of Reference 

 The Vision of the Corporate Parenting Board 
 
 

4 - 7 

 
Children Looked After within RCT  
 
 

8 - 9 

Reports considered by the Corporate Parenting Board ~ 

 Regulation 73 Reports 

 Complaints & Compliments 

 Advocacy  

 Employment, Education and Training Programmes for CLA 

 Independent Reviewing Officer Report 

 RCT Forum 

 Overview of the Community Wellbeing and Resilience Service 

 Independent Sector Monitoring 

 CLA Educational Outcomes Improvement Strategy 

 Cwm Taf Regional Fostering Front Door Update 

 Miskin Annual Report 2019-20 

 Therapeutic Families Team Annual Report 2019-20 

 Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Regional Adoption Annual Report 2019-20 

 Fostering Service Quality of Care Report 2019-20  

 Child Practice Review 
 

 

10 – 17 

 

 
Corporate Parenting Board – Moving Forward  
 
 

18 – 21 

 
Corporate Parenting Board Work Programme 2021/22 
 

22 - 23 

Tudalen 62



 3 

 

 

FOREWORD 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Councillor Christina Leyshon  
Cabinet Member for Children’s Services 
Chair of the Corporate Parenting Board 

 
It is with great pleasure, that I present to you the Corporate Parenting Board Annual 
Report for the 2020/21 Municipal Year.   
 
The Corporate Parenting Board is the principle place within the Council for cross-party 
Elected Members and officers to meet on a regular basis as critical friends, to support, 
challenge and strive for stronger collaborative working. By creating a non-judgemental 
environment, both officers and Members can freely voice their opinions to ensure the 
best possible outcomes for the children and young people who are looked after in 
RCT. 
 
As such, I would like to take this opportunity to extend my thanks to all Members of 
the Corporate Parenting Board, both new and longstanding; and, of course, to the 
officers for their ongoing support.  
 
During the 2020/21 Municipal Year, the Corporate Parenting Board have, once again, 
considered a vast range of reports, which were inclusive of various stories of success. 
Regular updates were more important than ever as the Corporate Parenting Board 
sought assurance that both staff and young people were provided with support through 
the pandemic. We have endeavoured to ensure the pandemic has not prevented the 
continuation of key services and we remain committed to ensuring that the children 

 
Conclusion 
 
 

24 

Tudalen 63



 4 

 

and young people of Rhondda Cynon Taf are safe from harm and given the care and 
support that they deserve, regardless of numbers.  
 

 

 

WHAT IS THE CORPORATE 

PARENTING BOARD? 

The concept of Corporate Parenting was introduced in 1998 by the then Secretary of 
State for Health, Frank Dobson, who outlined the duties of members towards Children 
who are Looked After: “For children who are looked after, your council has a legal and 
moral duty to try to provide the kind of loyal support that any good parents would give 
to their children…you should do your utmost to make sure that those children in public 
care get a good start in life…”  
 

 LEGISLATION 

 
 The Children and Social Work Act 2017 set out seven corporate 

parenting principles, to which councils should have regard in 

exercising their responsibilities to looked after children and care 

leavers:  

1. To act in the best interests, and promote the physical and mental health 

and wellbeing, of those children and young people.  

2. To encourage those children and young people to express their views, 

wishes and feelings.  

3. To take into account the views, wishes and feelings of those children and 

young people.  

4. To help those children and young people gain access to, and make best 

use of, services provided by the local authority and its relevant partners.  

5. To promote high aspirations, and seek to secure the best outcomes, for 

those children and young people.  

6. For those children and young people to be safe, and for stability in their 

home lives, relationships and education or work.  

7. To prepare children and young people for adulthood and independent 

living.  

Tudalen 64

https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/get-act-children-and-social-work-act-2017#:~:text=The%20Children%20and%20Social%20Work%20Act%202017%20%28the,provisions%20about%20the%20regulation%20of%20social%20workers.%20


 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 The goals set out in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 

2015:- 

1. A more Equal Wales - A society that enables people to fulfil their 

potential no matter what their background or circumstances (including 

their socio economic circumstances); 

 

2. A Healthier Wales - A society in which people’s physical and mental well-

being is maximised and in which choices and behaviours that benefit 

future health are understood; and 

 

3. A Wales of Cohesive Communities - Attractive, safe, viable and well-

connected. 

 

 

 The Council’s Corporate Plan ‘Making a Difference’ 2020-2024, which 

is guided by the Vision of making Rhondda Cynon Taf “the best place 

in Wales to live, work and play, where people and businesses are 

independent, healthy and prosperous. 

 

1. PRIORITY: Ensuring PEOPLE: are independent, healthy and successful 
- Improving services for children and young people and ensuring the 
needs of children are considered in everything we do. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 65

https://www.futuregenerations.wales/about-us/future-generations-act/
https://www.futuregenerations.wales/about-us/future-generations-act/
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/CorporatePlan2020/CorporatePlan2020ENGFINAL.pdf


 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEET THE CORPORATE PARENTING BOARD 

 

  

 

 

 

    Councillor C Leyshon          Councillor G Hopkins       Councillor J Rosser             Councillor R Yeo 

               (Chair)                             (Vice Chair)                   

  

 

 

 

 

                 Councillor E Griffiths        Councillor S Rees-Owen         Councillor J James          

 
 

“As Councillors, you have a major role to play in ensuring that those children who are 

cared for by your council have the best care that they can possibly receive…the duty 

on you is to do all you can to ensure these children can be the best they can be.” 

Keith Towler, Children’s Commissioner for Wales, 2009. 

 

 TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 To take the lead in ensuring that the Council fulfils its responsibilities as 
corporate parent to children who are looked after and formulate Council 
policy in respect of children who are looked after and children in need. 

 To ensure that all Groups and divisions within the Council work together in 
order to promote best outcomes for children who are looked after and 
children in need. 

 To promote effective relationships with key partner agencies in the best 
interests of children who are looked after and children in need. 

Tudalen 66



 7 

 

 To monitor the implementation of the Action Plan arising from the Best 
Value Review of Services to children looked after, in addition to monitoring 
outcomes for children looked after and children in need. 

 To consider the outcomes and promote positive learning practices 
following consideration of Child Practice Reviews 

 In accordance with HMIP to routinely review the offending rates of CLA by 
gender to ensure that the Corporate Parenting Board understand patterns 
of offending by girls and are able to take actions to address where 
necessary. 

 To consider the impact of relevant other systems/agencies (e.g. health, 
courts, schools) and see how these could be improved. 

 To seek the views of children looked after - the advocacy service will be 
asked to facilitate. 

 To invite representatives from other agencies to attend as appropriate. 

 To report directly to Cabinet through an Annual report of the Board. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 67



 8 

 

 

 

 

CHILDREN LOOKED AFTER IN 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF 

Children Looked After remains a key priority and the Council continues to strive for a 

safe reduction in Children Looked After numbers and to deliver the best possible 

outcomes for the children and young people. 

As at the 31st March 2021, there were a total of 694 children and young people within 

the Local Authority’s care. The demographic has been broken down and compared to 

that of the previous year in the tables below. 

Children Looked After by Age Group  

Age Band Total as at 31/03/2021 Total as at 31/03/2020 
 

0-3 124 129 

4-7 121 128 

8-11 170 164 
 

12-14 144 137 
 

15 41 49 
 

16 47 44 
 

17 47 66 
 

Total 694 717  

 
Figures show that the highest age band remains at 8-11 years. 

Tudalen 68



 9 

 

 
 
Children Looked After by Gender 

Gender Total as at 31/03/21 
Total as at 31/03/2020 

Female 297 303 

Male 397 414 

Total 694 717 

 

The Gender figures show that as at 31st March 2021, 100 more males than females 

remain within the Local Authority’s care, which is consistent with the figures from 

March 2020, where there were 111 more males than females.  

 

 

Children Looked After by Placement Type  

CLA Placement Type 

Total as at 
31/03/2021 

Total as at 
31/03/2020 

Independent Sector Foster 
Placement 

139 161 

RCT Foster Carers 167 161 

RCT Relative Foster Carers 234 233 

Placed for Adoption 16 22 

Placed with Parents 73 70 

Education Placement 2 1 

Other Lodgings 1 6 

Independent Sector 
Residential Sector 

50 53 

RCT Residential Care 11 10 

Secure 1 0 

Total 694 717 

 

It is recognised that each young person has a plethora of needs and that the most 

suitable placement type is unique to the individual. 

The data shows that most children and young people within Rhondda Cynon Taf are 

placed in foster placements, and in particular, with Relative Foster Carers.  

Tudalen 69



 10 

 

Where safe and possible to do so, children and young people are placed with their 

parents. 

It is noted that a key priority of the Regional Adoption Collaboration is to increase its 

supply of adopters. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

UPDATES TO THE CORPORATE 

PARENTING BOARD 

 REGULATION 73 REPORTS 

Regular updates are presented to the Corporate Parenting Board in respect of the 

current position of the residential Children’s Homes and respite service. The reports 

are exempt to ensure that the Board receive a detailed picture of the goings on at each 

home, and are inclusive of case studies, which inform us of the everyday challenges 

faced by our hardworking staff, any areas of concern and, of course, the wellbeing of 

the children who occupy the homes. 

Each of the reports received during the Municipal Year, provided the Corporate 

Parenting Board with honest and reliable feedback from the young people who occupy 

the homes and further insight into the particular challenges associated with looking 

after and trying to develop young people who have been disadvantaged. 

 SOCIAL SERVICES COMPLAINTS AND 

COMPLIMENTS 

The Corporate Parenting Board receives quarterly updates in respect of the operation 
and effectiveness of the statutory Social Services complaints and compliments 
procedure. At each meeting, Members monitor the number of complaints received, the 
nature of the complaints and any lessons learnt, along with noting those enquiries 
received from Elected Members, A.M’s and M.P’s. 

Tudalen 70



 11 

 

The importance of feedback from those who use the services is invaluable to the 
Corporate Parenting Board. During the year, Members were provided with detailed 
and honest feedback in response to questions around the updates. It was pleasing to 
note that the service had been used by Elected Members and A.M and M.P 
colleagues, which builds upon the already strong relationship with officers. 

 ADVOCACY 

Following the appointment of Tros Gynnal Plant (TGP) Cymru as the Local Authority’s 

advocacy service, the Corporate Parenting Board have received regular and 

informative updates at its meetings. The Board are provided with a detailed breakdown 

of issues by age, gender, referral source and type, along with information on the take 

up of the active offer. This information enables both TGP Cymru and Children Services 

to discuss issues that affect service delivery in the community on a strategic level and 

to work in partnership to provide improved and better outcomes.  

It was particularly pleased to note that during the January 2021 update, there had been 

a 55% increase in young people referred for advocacy support, a 41% increase on 

Active Offer referrals and a 65% increase on advocacy issues.  

The Board had previously raised questions regarding the ethnicity of those using the 

service and were pleased to note that the service was moving in the right direction 

with an increase in mixed race and Asian users.  

More information on the services provided by Tros Gynnal Plant (TGP) Cymru can be 

found here. 

 Employment, Education and Training 

Programmes for CLA 

Although not a statutory requirement, it has been customary in recent years, for the 
Corporate Parenting Board to receive an annual update in respect of the Council’s 
dedicated programmes to support Children Looked After, Care Leavers and those with 
care and support needs into employment, education and training and support the 
transition into independent living. 
 
The Corporate Parenting Board were provided with the following breakdown of 
outcomes from April 2019 – March 2020 in respect of the Step in the Right Direction, 
Care2Work and Cater2Work programmes: 
 

Step in the Right Direction Care2Work Cater2Work 
Trainees Recruited – 11 
Trainee Placements Secured - 
19 
Trainees securing employment 
in RCT Council - 9 
Trainees securing employment 
externally - 2 

Referrals Received – 58  
Enrolments – 39 
Training/Further 
Learning/Education – 26 
Employment Outcomes - 
5 

Number of Cohorts – 6 (each 
cohort is for 10 weeks)  
Number of participants – 15  
Training/Further 
Learning/Education – 8  
Employment  - 1 

 

Tudalen 71

https://www.tgpcymru.org.uk/
https://www.tgpcymru.org.uk/


 12 

 

 INDEPENDENT REVIEWING OFFICER UPDATES 

The Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 (referred to as the SSWB Act) 

and the Care Planning, Placement and Case Review (Wales) Regulations 2015 and 

16 (referred to as the CPPCR Regulations) provide legislation and guidance pertaining 

to the role and functions of an Independent Reviewing Officer (IRO). The Adoption 

and Children Act 2002 requires the Local Authority to appoint Independent Reviewing 

Officers to conduct reviews for Children who are Looked After and monitor the Local 

Authority’s performance in relation to implementing the care plans for individual 

children. As such, regular reports are presented to the Board to monitor the activities 

of the IRO service.  

 

 

 

 RCT FORUM 

 

The RCT Forum provides looked after young people and care leavers in RCT with 

opportunities to have their voice heard and to enable their life experiences to 

contribute at a strategic, policy and legislative level both locally and nationally.   

During the Municipal Year, the RCT Forum attended a meeting of the Corporate 

Parenting Board to provide a summary of activity during April 2019 – March 2020. The 

Forum engaged with 32 care experienced children and young people in RCT, through 

monthly sessions focused on three main areas: 

a) Developing information resources from care experienced young people; 
b) Undertaking a training to become peer mentors who deliver wellbeing and self-

care training to their peers; and  
c) A creative writing project focusing on mental health. 

 

Receiving such feedback on the services provided by the Council for Children who are 

Looked After and care leavers to the Board is fundamental in helping the Board ensure 

that the provisions and support provided by the Council are adding benefit to the 

people that require them, and to ensure that the young people within the service are 

treated as equal to those young people outside of the service. 

 

 OVERVIEW OF THE COMMUNITY WELLBEING 

AND RESILLIENCE SERVICE 

 
In November 2017, the Cwm Taf Public Services Board (PSB) agreed to work with the 

Welsh Government to undertake a joint collaborative approach to redesigning Early 

Tudalen 72



 13 

 

Years arrangements across Cwm Taf. The aim of the work was to reconstruct the 

Early Years and Flying Start service, to create an integrated delivery model.  

Receiving updates allows the Corporate Parenting Board to compare the annual data 

and to monitor the progress and impact of the service. 

More information on the Resilient Families Service can be accessed here. 

 

 

 

 

 INDEPENDENT SECTOR PLACEMENTS 

MONITORING 

 

Our priority is to place children in the most suitable placement to meet their needs. 

However, to offer a range of suitable placement accommodation for Children looked 

after and to meet the increase in demand, it is necessary for RCT to commission 

placements with external fostering and residential providers, in addition to the in-house 

placement capacity.  

External placement provision is provided by agencies which are either voluntary 

organisations, not for profit companies or private for profit companies. The Children’s 

Commissioning Consortium Cymru provides support to all local authorities across 

Wales to manage the process of commissioning and monitoring providers on the All 

Wales Frameworks. 

An annual update of RCT external placement activity is received by the Corporate 

Parenting Board, which highlights gaps in information available to 4c’s, for Members 

to compile a full analysis of external placement provision. 

 

 CWM TAF REGIONAL FOSTERING FRONT 

DOOR 

 

The recruitment of mainstream foster carers remains a national challenge. As such, 

the Regional front door for Fostering recruitment was established in April 2019 as a 

joint collaboration between RCT CBC and Merthyr Tydfil CBC to address some of the 

concerns about the numbers of foster carers recruited, the speediness of responses 

to enquires and the quality of recruitment work being undertaken. The primary 

objective of the team is to achieve a net gain in approved mainstream foster carers. 

Tudalen 73

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/CorporateParentingBoard/2020/09/21/Reports/Item6ResilientFamiliesProgramme.pdf


 14 

 

In order to monitor the progress of the service, the Corporate Parenting Board receive 

an analysis of key performance data and details on the future developments of the 

service. 

More information on the Cwm Taf Regional Fostering Front Door service can be 

accessed here. 

 

 

 CHILDREN LOOKED AFTER 2019-2020 DATA 

AND EDUCATIONAL IMPROVEMENT 

STRATEGY  
 

It is noted that RCT has many Children Looked After, in comparison to other Local 

Authorities and that there are various risk factors which can adversely impact the 

educational outcomes of Children Looked After. Notwithstanding that, improving the 

educational attainment of Children Looked After remains a key focus of the Corporate 

Parenting Board and each year, Members receive performance data for the previous 

academic year. 

Summary of Data for the academic year 2019-2020* 

1. Incidents of Fixed Term (FT) Exclusions in Autumn and Spring term 

2019/2020 involving RCT Children who are Looked After:  

Source: Plasc Jan 20 (33,708) 

 

 

 

2. Attendance Levels of Children who are Looked between 02/09/2019 and 

20/03/2020 compared with Non CLA: 

Overall attendance in RCT schools 

CLA pupils Non CLA pupils 

93% 92% 

Primary school attendance 

95.9% 93.3% 

Secondary school attendance 

Cohort Number of FT 
exclusions 

Number of 
students with 
a FT 
exclusion 

Cohort of 
pupils of 
statutory 
school age 

% of statutory 
school aged 
pupils 
excluded  

CLA 81 47 522 9% 

Non CLA 1428 889 33,186 2.7% 

Tudalen 74

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/CorporateParentingBoard/2021/01/25/Reports/Item5CwmTafRegionalFosteringFrontDoor.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/CorporateParentingBoard/2021/01/25/Reports/Item5CwmTafRegionalFosteringFrontDoor.pdf


 15 

 

91% 91.4% 

Through school attendance 

90.9% 90.8% 

Special school attendance 

95% 88.1% 

 

3. In response to the disrupted educational experience due to COVID -19,  

PDG LAC money provided an offer of online tuition in Maths or English for 

all Key Stage 4 pupils taking exams.  Pupils who engaged with tuition in 

Years 10 and 11: 

 

Year group No of pupils participating 

11 16 out of 25 eligible pupils 

10 23 out of 31 eligible pupils 

 

*Note: Any overall data for the academic year 2019 – 2020 needs to be viewed with caution 

due to the impact of school closures in Summer Term 2020 in response to the COVID-19 

pandemic which means that direct comparisons with previous academic years are not 

possible.   

Further to the performance data update, the Corporate Parenting Board received 
information on a recent paper commissioned by Welsh Government: An Integrated 
approach to improving educational outcomes for Children Looked After, which had 
been long requested by Members. 

The report considers integrated Local Authority approaches to supporting CLA, with a 

particular focus upon how the Virtual School model in England and Scotland could be 

used as a basis for local authorities in Wales to promote the educational achievement 

of CLA.  

Following a recommendation put forward to Welsh Government to establish Virtual 

Schools, all Local Authorities had been part of a discussion to consider its area’s 

needs. In the context of RCT, it was the view that the introduction of a virtual school 

head would not only increase capacity within the local authority in relation to 

supporting educational outcomes but would provide an enhanced voice to advocate 

for CLA pupils at a senior management level in education – strengthening the 

corporate parenting role. 

More information on the Improvement Strategy in relation to RCT can be accessed 

here. 

 

Tudalen 75

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-07/integrated-approach-improving-educational-outcomes-looked-after-children.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-07/integrated-approach-improving-educational-outcomes-looked-after-children.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/CorporateParentingBoard/2021/01/25/Reports/Item3ChildrenLookedAfterEducationalOutcomesImprovementStrategy.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/CorporateParentingBoard/2021/01/25/Reports/Item3ChildrenLookedAfterEducationalOutcomesImprovementStrategy.pdf


 16 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 MISKIN 

 

Miskin delivers intensive family focused evidence-based interventions, which aim to 

improve parenting capacity to enable families to care for their children with the 

minimum statutory intervention.  Services are delivered through individual, family, 

group work and holiday programmes. 

 

The focus of the Service includes: 

 High level of need, and if intensive supports are not provided the child/children 
are at risk of being accommodated; 

 Family need an intensive period of support for child/children to return to their 
care;  

 High level of assessed need for a child looked after, risk of placement 
breakdown without intensive support; and 

 Child looked after requires support to return from an out of county placement to 
either home or a more local placement. 

 

The Corporate Parenting Board receive annual updates in respect of the Miskin 

service, to monitor the effectiveness of the service, particularly at a time when demand 

exceeds capacity. 

 

 THERAPEUTIC FAMILIES TEAM 

 
 
The Therapeutic Families Team (TFT) is a multidisciplinary team, created to offer 
consultation, therapeutic assessments and interventions to children and families in 
Rhondda Cynon Taf.  
 
Recently established, the Team works with: 

 Families assessed as high need where support from the Families Therapeutic 
Team would add value to the Resilient Families Service intervention; 

 Family receiving a service from statutory Children's Services and child/ren 
assessed as being at risk of becoming Children Looked After (CLA);  
Children Looked After whose placement has been assessed as being at risk of 
breakdown where therapeutic support could promote placement stability; 

Tudalen 76



 17 

 

 Children Looked After who require therapeutic support to assist in a return 
home to live with parents/family/friends or live independently; 

 Children Looked After placed out of county who require therapeutic support to 
assist in moving to local placements; and 

 Families assessed as high need where support from the Families Therapeutic 
Team would add value to the statutory Children's Services intervention. 

 
The Corporate Parenting Board received the first annual report of the Therapeutic 
Families Team and will continue to monitor the positive outcomes achieved following 
its first year of operation. 
 

 VALE, VALLEYS & CARDIFF REGIONAL 

ADOPTION ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 

 
Vale, Valleys and Cardiff Adoption Collaborative (VVC) provides a regional adoption 
service to the Vale of Glamorgan Council, Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council, 
Cardiff Council and Rhondda Cynon Taff County Borough Council.  VVC is one of the 
five regional Collaboratives which form part of the National Adoption Service in Wales 
(NAS). All adoption services are required to provide an annual review of their service 
as set out in Regulation 22 of the Local Authority Adoption Service (Wales) 
Regulations 2007. 
 
The supply of adopters remains a challenge for Local Authorities and as such, 
receiving the annual data and strategies for improvement of the Regional Adoption 
Service is vital to the Corporate Parenting Board.  

The report was also considered in depth by the Council’s Children and Young People 
Scrutiny Committee. 

 FOSTERING SERVICE QUALITY OF CARE 

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 

 

The Fostering Service Quality of Care Annual Report is compiled as required under 

the Regulation and Inspection of Social Care (Wales) Act 2016. Regulation 52 of the 

Local Authority Fostering Services (Wales) Regulations 2018 also requires the Local 

Authority Manager to put suitable arrangements in place to establish and maintain a 

system for monitoring, reviewing and improving the quality of service. 

The Corporate Parenting Board monitored the progress in relation to carer support 

and consultation, education, establishing the Regional Front Door Service and the 

priorities for the year ahead. 

 CHILD PRACTICE REVIEW 

 

Tudalen 77

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/ChildrenandYoungPeopleScrutinyCommittee/2021/01/13/Minutes/13.01.2021mins.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/ChildrenandYoungPeopleScrutinyCommittee/2021/01/13/Minutes/13.01.2021mins.pdf


 18 

 

A Child Practice Review is conducted in line with the Cwm Taf Morgannwg 

Safeguarding Children Board’s duties under Working Together to Safeguard People 

Volume 3) which is issued under the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014.  

The process is focussed on positive outcomes for children and young people through 

learning lessons to improve multi agency safeguarding practice. It includes different 

types of reviews; concise and extended as well as multi agency practitioner forums. A 

panel established for the purpose conducts the review. The timeframe for such reviews 

is usually 12 months extending to 24 months in specific circumstances.  

During the Municipal Year, the Corporate Parenting Board received the outcome of 

one Child Practice Review.  

Tudalen 78



 19 

 

THE CORPORATE PARENTING 

BOARD – MOVING FORWARD 

In the 2021/22 Municipal Year, key areas of focus of the Corporate Parenting Board 

will include: 

 REGULAR PERFORMANCE DATA 

 
It is essential that the Corporate Parenting Board regularly receive the qualitative data 

and statutory updates. The monitoring of regular performance data allows the 

Corporate Parenting Board to effectively analyse key areas and determine ways to 

further improve and enhance the services the Council provides provide. The updates 

will include: 

 Regulation 73 Reports 

 Complaints & Compliments 

 Advocacy Updates 

 CIW Inspections reports of the Children’s Homes 

 Child Practice Review 

The Corporate Parenting Board will receive annual updates from the following services 

to continue to monitor the progress, achievements, and future aspirations: 

 Miskin 

 Therapeutic Families Team 

 Resilient Families Service 

 Youth Offending Service  

 Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Regional Adoption Service  

 Fostering Services Quality of Care 

 Registered Childcare Provision 

 Young Carers  

 Youth Offending Service 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 79



 20 

 

 INTERACTION WITH YOUNG PEOPLE 

 

The Corporate Parenting Board welcome the attendance of looked after young people 

and care leavers at its meetings and recognise that their voice must be at the centre 

of all discussions. Often, the Board receive reports containing data and statistics, but 

there is nothing more important than hearing the first-hand experiences from the young 

person. Encouraging their participation will be key moving forward as it can often 

provide Members with a different perspective and further insight into the areas where 

improvements need to be made. 

In 2018, RCT Children Services supported children who were looked after to complete 

the Your Life, Your Care Survey. The survey had been developed through the Bright 

Spots Programme to measure the well-being of children looked after.  

Following the survey, the following areas of improvement were identified: 

‘Social workers need to: 

 Ensure that children and young people understand who they are. 

 Work with children and young people to involve them in decisions. 

 Explain to every child why they are in care and regularly review this with 
them to establish if they would like more information. 

 Continue to communicate with schools to identify and help children who feel 
bullied at school and those who feel that they do not have a good friend. 

 Give carers further training in therapeutic parenting. 

 Consider not just organised activities but contact with nature when reviewing 
opportunities to have fun/hobbies 

 Regularly review contact plans taking into account children and young 
people’s wishes and feelings 

 Be aware of gender difference and give opportunities to young people (11-
18 years) to build self-esteem and a positive self-image.’ 

 

The Corporate Parenting Board will monitor the implementation of the areas identified 

to ensure that they have been incorporated into improvement plans; and welcome 

further updates from future surveys, which would be conducted on a two year basis. 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 80



 21 

 

 EDUCATION, EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING 

OPPORTUNITIES 

 
The Corporate Parenting Board recognise the educational disadvantages often 

experienced by young people who are looked after, which can have an adverse effect 

on opportunities moving into higher education and into adulthood.  

The Corporate Parenting Board will focus on: 

 Welsh Government’s ‘Virtual School’ proposal and its benefits for the 

young people in RCT; 

 Post-16 education, employment, and training opportunities for CLA; and 

 Pupil Development Grant – An evaluation of the Cluster Based Model. 

 

 THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING OF YOUNG 

PEOPLE WHO ARE LOOKED AFTER AND CARE 

LEAVERS 

 
In the Cwm Taf Statement of Intent for Children and Young People: ‘A Shared 

Regional Strategy for Supporting Children, Young People and Families’, emotional 

wellbeing was identified as a priority for improvement to better meet the needs of 

children and young people with complex needs.  

Over the years, the Corporate Parenting Board and colleagues from Scrutiny have 

raised concerns regarding the level of services available to our young people and it is 

recognised that mental health has never been so important as we exit the midst of the 

Covid-19 pandemic.  

The Corporate Parenting Board will focus on the provision available and the progress 

made by the Children and Young Persons Group to action the priorities of the Regional 

Strategy.  

 ELECTED MEMBER TRAINING 

OPPORTUNITIES 

TUNITIES 

It is recognised that the role of the Corporate Parent is a collective duty of the Council 

as a whole and as such, refresher training is welcomed to Board Members and to all 

Elected Members of the Council to further enhance knowledge and to strengthen the 

Council’s commitment to the children and young people within our care. 

 

 

 

Tudalen 81



 22 

 

 THE WORK OF WELSH GOVERNMENT TO 

STRENGTHEN AND EXTEND CORPORATE 

PARENTING 

 
The Programme for Government, Taking Wales Forward, commits to “examine ways 
of ensuring looked after children enjoy the same life chances as other children and if 
necessary reform the way they are looked after”. As part of its focus, Welsh 
Government policy intent is to strengthen corporate parenting across all departments 
within the local authority, which will enable better partnership between services to 
enhance the outcomes for Children Looked After. 
 
The Corporate Parenting Board welcome future updates in relation to the work and 
the opportunity to consider any amendments to its Terms of Reference.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Tudalen 82

https://janehutt.wales/2016/09/20/taking-wales-forward/#:~:text=Taking%20Wales%20Forward%20is%20a%20Programme%20for%20Government,to%20maximise%20our%20impact%20in%20these%20uncertain%20times.


 23 

 

CORPORATE PARENTING BOARD 
WORK PROGRAMME  

2021-2022 

A 2021-22 work programme for the Corporate Parenting Board is set out below.  The 

work programme is a fluid document, which can be amended by Members at any given 

point to accommodate a change in priorities.  The programme is based on factors 

highlighted within the Board’s Annual Report and does not include the statutory 

updates presented to the Board.   

REPORT DATE 
Corporate Parenting Board Work Programme July, 2021 

  

Corporate Parenting Board Annual Report 2020-21 July 2021 

  

Youth Offending Service Annual Report 2020-21 July, 2021 

  

Registered Childcare Provision – Annual Update 2020-21 July, 2021 

  

Young Carers Annual Report 2020-21 and attendance of a 
young carer 

July, 2021 

  

Pupil Deprivation Grant – evaluation of cluster based model. July, 2021 

  

Housing Offer to Care Leavers July, 2021 

  

RCT Forum September, 2021 

  

Children Looked After Website Advancements Presentation September, 2021 

  

Resilient Families Service – Performance Data Update 2019-20 September, 2021 

  

Bright Spots Survey Implementation Progress and Results September 2021 

  

Miskin Annual Report and Therapeutic Families Team Annual 
Report 2020-21 

November, 2021 

  

Mental Health Provision for CLA and the progress of the 
priorities identified within the Cwm Taf Statement of Intent for 
Children and Young People: ‘A Shared Regional Strategy for 
Supporting Children, Young People and Families’ 

November, 2021 

  

PDG LAC – Offer of Online Tuition Feedback November, 2021 

Tudalen 83



 24 

 

Employment, Education and Training Programmes and 
attendance of young person who has accessed the service. 
 

November, 2021 

  

Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Regional Adoption Annual Report  
January, 2022 

  

Cwm Taf Fostering Front Door  - Update on developments and 
impact of marketing campaigns 

January, 2022 

  

Fostering Service Quality of Care Annual Report January, 2022 

  

Youth Offending Service Annual Report 2021-22 March, 2022 

  

Registered Childcare Provision – Annual Update 2021-22 March, 2022 

  

Young Carers Annual Report 2021-22 March, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 84



 25 

 

CONCLUSION 

Thank you for taking the time to read the Corporate Parenting Board Annual Report 

for the 2020/21 Municipal Year. The report seeks to highlight the scope of work 

undertaken during the past year and the Council’s ongoing commitment to improving 

the outcomes for the children and young people who are looked after in Rhondda 

Cynon Taf. 

In the 2020/21 Municipal Year, the Corporate Parenting Board will ensure that a full 

and varied work programme is set, which will focus on the above-mentioned reports, 

as well as any other topical or urgent business which may arise. 

We will continue to seek the best possible outcomes for the children and young people 

in our care. Despite uncertain times and the national rise in the number of children 

who are becoming looked after, the Corporate Parenting Board and the Council as a 

whole are committed to its safeguarding duties. 

 
 

Councillor Christina Leyshon 
Chair, Corporate Parenting Board; 
Cabinet Member for Children & Young People 
 

Tudalen 85



Tudalen wag



 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

CABINET 
 

21st SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

REVIEW OF REGULATION, AWARENESS AND ENFORCEMENT OF 
FLOOD AND WATER LEGISLATION. 

 
REPORT OF GROUP DIRECTOR PROSPERITY DEVELOPMENT AND 
FRONTLINE SERVICES IN DISCUSSIONS WITH THE RELEVANT 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER CLLR MORGAN, LEADER OF THE COUNCIL. 
 
AUTHOR(s): Andrew Stone, Strategic Projects Manager 
   
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to advise members in regard to the review 

of the regulation, awareness and enforcement of flood and water 
legislation within the Council following Storm Dennis. 
 

1.2 The Report will further advise members in regard to the implementation 
an enhanced Flood Awareness and Enforcement team and increased 
regulation via the enactment of Land Drainage Byelaws under S66 of the 
Land Drainage Act 1991.  

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Cabinet:  
 
2.1.1 Agree to the creation of an enforcement team and post as indicated in 

Section 4.3 and Section 7. 
 
2.1.2 Agree to the creation of a flooding awareness and support officer post as 

indicated in Section 4.4 
 
2.1.3 Agree that officers commence the process for the adoption of the 

drainage byelaws and refer the matter to Council for consideration. 
 
2.1.4 Note the proposal to review the practical operational implications within 

12 months of establishing the new byelaws and enforcement team to 
consider resourcing implications based on actual workload. 
 

Tudalen 87

Agendwm 5



  

2.1.5 Agree that the financial implications for the current year are met from 
existing resources and to update the Medium Term Financial Plan for 
2022/23 onwards with the additional ongoing revenue costs. 

 
 
3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1  Flooding remains a key threat to communities across Wales and 

managing this risk is important to minimise the risk to communities. The 
consequences of flooding can include loss of life, damage to the 
economy, social implications and environmental damage. Climate 
change is predicted to increase the frequency and the intensity of 
flooding, increasing the risk in RCT and across the UK. Though flooding 
is an inevitable natural process, through careful management the 
probability of flooding along with its impact can be reduced. 

 
3.2 From an RCT perspective, the following summaries the current situation 
 

 10,071 properties in RCT were considered to be at ‘high-risk’ of 
surface water (8,611) or main river flooding (1,460), with a further 
4,221 properties in the ‘medium-risk’ category. Source: 
Communities at Risk Register (CaRR) published as at 2019. 

 

 RCT has 25 of the top 5% (111 communities) of Wales’ highest 
flood risk communities meaning that RCT has 22.5% of the 
highest ranked communities considered to be at a high risk of 
flooding in Wales.  RCT is ranked as number 1 in Wales for 
properties at risk of flooding from Surface water flooding 
(Pluvial). Source: Communities at Risk Register (CaRR) 
published as at 2019. 

 

 RCT has 3 out of 33 communities defined as nationally significant 
high flood risk areas in Wales Source: Preliminary Flood Risk 
Assessment.   

 

 It is also currently predicted that by the year 2039 the peak water 
flows within rivers and watercourses will increase from 2015 levels 
by between 10% – 25% ,  by  2069 20%–40% and by 2115 25%-
75%    Source: Adapting to Climate Change: Guidance for Flood 
and Coastal Erosion Risk Management Authorities in Wales 

 
3.3 The recommendations made in this report strongly link to the following:- 
 

1. The Corporate Plan 
2. The National Flood Risk Management Strategy 
3. The Local Flood Risk Management Strategy 

Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 
 

Tudalen 88

http://lle.gov.wales/catalogue/item/CommunitiesAtRiskRegisterCarr/?lang=en#:~:text=The%20Communities%20at%20Risk%20Register%20%28CaRR%29%20has%20been,be%20quantified%20and%20ranked%20%28from%20High%20to%20Low%29.
http://lle.gov.wales/catalogue/item/CommunitiesAtRiskRegisterCarr/?lang=en#:~:text=The%20Communities%20at%20Risk%20Register%20%28CaRR%29%20has%20been,be%20quantified%20and%20ranked%20%28from%20High%20to%20Low%29.
http://lle.gov.wales/catalogue/item/CommunitiesAtRiskRegisterCarr/?lang=en#:~:text=The%20Communities%20at%20Risk%20Register%20%28CaRR%29%20has%20been,be%20quantified%20and%20ranked%20%28from%20High%20to%20Low%29.
https://naturalresources.wales/evidence-and-data/research-and-reports/reports-evidence-and-data-on-flooding/preliminary-flood-risk-assessment/?lang=en
https://naturalresources.wales/evidence-and-data/research-and-reports/reports-evidence-and-data-on-flooding/preliminary-flood-risk-assessment/?lang=en
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-04/adapting-to-climate-change-guidance-for-flood-and-coastal-erosion-risk-management-authorities-in-wales.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-04/adapting-to-climate-change-guidance-for-flood-and-coastal-erosion-risk-management-authorities-in-wales.pdf


  

4. BACKGROUND 
 
 
4.1.1 After the Unprecedented Storms in February 2020.  The Council 

published a Cabinet paper on 18 December 2020 on “Review of 
Council’s Response to Storm Dennis”.  Which the Cabinet agreed the 
following actions 
 
RECOMMENDATION 3 – The Council will create a Flood Support 
Team alongside the Housing Grants Service that supports 
landowners, residents and businesses in high risk flood areas to 
procure local flood prevention measures, provides advice and 
guidance 
.  
RECOMMENDATION 4 – Individual landowners and property 
owners, particularly in high flood risk areas, will be requested to 
consider and evidence how best they can protect their land, homes, 
and businesses through local measures. 

 
Extract – “It is proposed that we will appoint a small team of Flood 

Enforcement Officers including legal support to ensure landowners take 

their flood responsibilities seriously and are fully compliant with the 

relevant legislation.” 

 
 
  

Tudalen 89



  

Current Enforcement and Regulation for Flood Risk Management 
Activities. 
 
 
4.1.2 The following table briefly sets out the current legislative situation :- 
 

Legislation Enforcement/Regulation Activity 

Land Drainage Act 
1991 

S14– Power to carry out drainage works 

 S14A – Power to carry out flood risk management 
works 

 S23 – Prohibition of structures in ordinary 
watercourses. 

 S24 – Enforcement powers in respect of 
unconsented structures in ordinary watercourse.  

 S25 – Powers to require works for maintaining 
flow of a watercourse. 

 S64 – Powers of enter onto land. 

 S66 – Powers to make Byelaws (currently none in 
force in RCT) (See section 4.2) 
 

Flood and Water 
Management Act 2010 

S14 – Power to request information 

 S15 – Civil Sanctions (not providing information 
under S14). 

 Schedule 1 – Designation of Features -  
Ability to designate “private” structures as a 
significant asset and protect it from alteration. 
(cannot enforce maintenance) 

 Schedule 3 – Sustainable Drainage Systems.   
The Sustainable Drainage (Enforcement) (Wales) 
Regs (2018) 
 

 
 
4.1.3 The aftermath of Storm Dennis and the inspection and survey of over 

50km of watercourse highlighted a significant number of instances where 
some form of enforcement was required.  The amount of enforcement 
activity since Storm Callum in 2018 has slowly increased and after Storm 
Dennis in February 2020 a large increase with currently 15 items of 
enforcement activity ongoing.   

 
4.1.4 This suggests that as regulation, asset surveys and inspections continue 

there will be a steady increase in the requirement for enforcement, 
whether by warning, notice or prosecution. 
 

4.1.5 However, it should be noted that the current Land Drainage Act 1991 
does not give full regulatory control or “protect” existing watercourses 

Tudalen 90



  

from alteration. Additional regulation of watercourses through the 
adoption and making of byelaws will be required. 
 

4.1.6 Taken into consideration the review and recommendation made in the 
Cabinet Report dated 18 December 2021; the following actions are 
proposed 
 

1. Regulation – The regulation of Flood Assets is increased by 
Adoption of Land Drainage Byelaws – Section 4.2 

2. Enforcement – A Team of enforcement officers with legal 
support is created. (Section 4.3) 

3. Awareness and Support – The bridge between Regulation and 
Enforcement is built with the introduction of a Flood Risk 
Support Officer. (Section 4.4) 

 
 
4.2 Increased Regulation - Adoption of Land Drainage Byelaws 
 
Background 
 
Under the Flood & Water Management Act 2010, councils in Wales were given 
additional powers and responsibilities for managing flooding from surface 
water, groundwater and ordinary watercourse. As part of these new powers, 
the responsibility for issuing ordinary watercourse consent under Section 23 
Land Drainage Act 1991 passed from Natural Resources Wales (NRW) to Lead 
Local Flood Authorities in April 2012.  
 
Since taking on this consenting duty and wider flood risk management function, 
practitioners have noted that powers under current legislation are limited and 
certain activities which are not currently consented could potentially increase 
the risk of flooding especially in more built-up areas. It was therefore decided 
in 2013 to set-up a Task & Finish Group to oversee a review of current byelaws 
with the aim of creating a new set to help LLFAs in Wales manage more 
effectively and consistently activities along ordinary watercourse. For example, 
building over culverts, diversion of watercourses, restrictions to access for 
maintenance. 
 
 
DEFRA model byelaws have for a number of years been widely used across 
the UK by the Environment Agency and Natural Resources Wales to manage 
activities along main rivers, and several English LLFAs and Internal Drainage 
Boards also enforce the same byelaws. However, these byelaws have 
remained unchanged, not suitable for ordinary watercourse and the majority are 
rarely enforceable due to their inappropriateness.  
 
 
A new set of byelaws have been drafted by key strategic partners in response 
to concerns about measures available to manage risk arising from potential 

Tudalen 91



  

flooding. As such they draw on the experience of a wide range of practitioners 
thus offering sensible and balanced powers consistent with other agencies 
across the region. 
 
These standard set of byelaws have been ratified by the appropriate Welsh 
Minister and provides for a standard and consistent approach by the Welsh 
Lead Local Flood Authorities. These are included at Appendix 1. 
 
The primary function of the new Land Drainage Byelaws is to assist Lead Local 
Flood Authorities manage the risk of flooding though better regulation.  
However, through careful revised wording and a wide range of activities being 
covered these byelaws can also benefit the wider environment.  By doing so, 
they will benefit other functions within local government and help with the 
delivery of other legislation including the Water Framework Directive and the 
Habitat Directive. 
 
Ultimately, this holistic approach to flood risk management though the use of 
Land Drainage Byelaws will be in line with the principles of the Well-Being and 
Future Generations Act and assist the LLFA its goals. 
 
Welsh Government and the WLGA are encouraging local authorities to adopt 
the model byelaws without any modification to ensure consistency across 
Wales and avoid potential legal hurdles and lengthy approval process. 
 

How can byelaws benefit flood risk management and the wider 

environment 

 
The primary function of the new Land Drainage byelaws is to help LLFAs 
manage the risk of flooding where it is the highest through better control. 
However, through careful revised wording and a wide range of activities 
covered these byelaws can also benefit the wider environment. By doing so, 
they will benefit other functions within local government and help with the 
delivery of other legislations including the Water Framework Directive and 
Habitat Directive. 
 
Ultimately, this holistic approach to flood risk management through the use of 
Land Drainage byelaws will be in line with the principles of the Well-Being of 
Future Generations Act and help LLFAs deliver its goals. 

Legal Framework and extent of powers 

 
Under Section 66 of the Land Drainage Act 1991, local authorities in Wales 
have the powers and authority to make byelaws. These byelaws however can 
only be made for 4 specific purposes: 
 

a- To secure the efficient working of a drainage system in the land drainage 

authorities’ district or area; 

Tudalen 92



  

b- To regulate the effects on the environment in the land drainage 

authorities’ area of a drainage system; 

c- To secure the effectiveness of flood risk management work1; or 

d- To secure the effectiveness of incidental flooding or coastal erosion 

works2 

Byelaws cannot repeat, contradict or overrule any other legislation but are 
nevertheless a statutory tool at the disposition of local authorities and other 
public bodies. Byelaws are local laws designed to complement rather than 
replace existing laws. As such, they should be used in conjunction with relevant 
legislation. 
 
These byelaws are intended to prevent third parties undertaking unconsented 
activities which may increase the risk of flooding. They cannot however stop 
anyone who has already a right or a duty under any other legislation such as 
an Act or Regulation or permit to act accordingly.  
 
For example, if a riparian owner has obtained planning permission to build a 
structure within the byelaws distance, the planning permission would override 
the byelaw. Having the byelaws in place would however ensure early discussion 
with the developer and planning colleagues and the inclusion of conditions is 
necessary. 
 
There are 3 main legal limitations to these byelaws: 
 

1. they cannot relate to main rivers, the banks of main rivers or any 

drainage work in connection with a main river3; 

2. they cannot prevent reasonable facilities being afforded to allow stock to 

access drinking water4 and  

3. they cannot conflict with or interfere with the operation of any byelaws 
made by a navigation authority, harbour authority or conservancy 
authority 

 

Local Authority’s Adoption Process 

 
The ordinary watercourse byelaws confirmed by the Welsh Minister for 
Environment and Rural Affairs have been designed as model for local 
authorities to either use in their current format as a whole or to help develop 
their individual byelaws if they wish to depart from the model.  
 

                                            
1 As defined in section 14A of the Land Drainage Act 1991  
2 As defined in sections 38 and 39 of the Flood and Water Management Act 2010. 
3 Section 66(3) 
4 Section 66(4) 

Tudalen 93



  

These byelaws have been designed by experienced FRM practitioners 
following extensive consultation with various local authority’s departments and 
Natural Resources Wales. Welsh Local Government Association is 
encouraging local Authorities to adopt the model byelaws as they are, without 
any modifications, to ensure consistency across Wales and avoid potential legal 
hurdles and a lengthy approval process.  
 
If for any reason the authority wishes to depart from the model confirmed by the 
Welsh Ministers, it can do so. However, the decision would need to be justified 
and the Welsh Ministers would need to be satisfied with such departure before 
approving these byelaws.  
 
Although already confirmed by the Welsh Ministers, to be in a position of 
implementing the byelaws locally, the authority must be adopted under the 
provisions set out in sections 7-8 of Local Government Byelaws (Wales) Act 
2012. 
 
Section 7 deals with the formalities regarding the confirmation of byelaws. This 
involves the Council:- 
 

 publishing on its web site an initial written statement which describes the 
issue which the Council thinks may be addressed by making the 
byelaws; 
 

 consult any person (including, where applicable, a community council) 
who the Council thinks is likely to be interested in, or affected by, the 
issue; 
 

 following the consultation, considering the responses and deciding 
whether making the byelaws is the most appropriate way of addressing 
the issues; 
 

 publishing on its web site a second statement which contains the original 
written statement, a summary of the consultation and the responses and 
its decision as to whether to make the byelaws; 
 

 if the decision is to proceed with the adoption of the byelaws they must 
be submitted to Welsh Ministers for confirmation but at least 6 weeks 
prior to their submission notice of the Council’s intention to adopt the 
byelaws must be published in one or more local newspapers circulating 
in the areas to which the byelaws are to apply and on the Council’s 
website; and 
 

 in addition to the notice referred to above the Council must publish the 
byelaws on their web site, deposit copies of the byelaws in each of the 
areas to which they apply, send a copy of the byelaws to all community 
councils affected and ensure that a copy of the byelaws are open to 

Tudalen 94



  

public inspection at all reasonable hours without payment. In addition 
any person is entitled to a copy of the byelaws without charge.  

 
As mentioned above the byelaws must be submitted to the Welsh Ministers for 
confirmation. They come into effect on the date fixed by the Welsh Ministers as 
confirming authority but if no date is fixed they come into force at the end of one 
month from the date they are confirmed.  
 
Once confirmed the Council must publish the date of confirmation and copies 
of the byelaws on their web site, deposit copies of the byelaws in each of the 
areas to which they apply, send a copy of the byelaws to all community councils 
affected and ensure that a copy of the byelaws are open to public inspection at 
all reasonable hours without payment. In addition, any person is entitled to a 
copy of the byelaws without charge.   
 
The power to make byelaws is a function of the Council and not the Executive 
and so Cabinet is asked it endorse officers commencing the process for the 
reasons detailed above. 
 
 
 

Enforcement and penalty  

 
Non-compliance with the byelaws can lead to two proceedings: first the offender 
will be fined and the land drainage authority can remedy the breach and recover 
the costs incurred. 
 
Under section 66(6) of the LDA every person who acts in contravention of or 
fails to comply with any of the foregoing Byelaws is liable on summary 
conviction in respect of each offence to a fine not exceeding the amount 
prescribed for level 5 (currently £5,000) on the standard and a further fine not 
exceeding £40 for every day on which the contravention or failure is continued 
after conviction.  
 
By section 66(7) of the Act if any person acts in contravention of or fails to 
comply with any of these Byelaws the LLFA may without prejudice to any 
proceedings under section 66(6) of the Act take such action as may be 
necessary to remedy the effect, of the contravention or failure and may recover 
the expenses reasonably incurred by it in doing so from the person in default.  
 

Purpose and Layout of byelaws 

 
The “model” set, See Appendix 1, comprises of 16 individual byelaws designed 
to work in parallel and complement the Land Drainage Act 1991(especially 
sections 23, 24 and 25), Flood & Water Management Act 2010, and Natural 

Tudalen 95



  

Resource Wales’ guide to your rights and responsibilities of riverside ownership 
in Wales5 which sets out riparian owner’s rights and responsibilities.  
 
The complete set comprises of 7 sections but byelaws themselves are only 
grouped under 4 distinct chapters: 
 

I. Control the introduction of water and increase in flow or volume, 

or water 

II. Control any potential to cause impediment or obstruction to flow 

III. To ensure the condition of the banks of a watercourse are 

maintained 

IV. To cover incidental provisions 

Chapter II which focusses on controlling the introduction of water and increase 
in flow or volume, or water comprises of 4 individual byelaws aimed at 
controlling activities that may alter the natural level or direction of the flow of 
water in, into or out of any watercourse. Additional wording has also been added 
to ensure better control over the creation or extension of watercourses which 
had been highlighted as an issue by practitioners. This chapter also covers 
unconsented interference with assets controlling flow or level of water.  
 
Chapter III which focusses on controlling the potential to cause impediment or 
obstruction to flow comprises of 3 byelaws. These byelaws cover activities on 
land liable to flooding and watercourse banks as well the building and repairs 
of structures. Additional wording has been added to provide better control 
related to building over culverts which was raised as a concern period by 
practitioners.  
 
Chapter IV comprises of 3 byelaws which have been drafted to ensure the 
condition of ordinary watercourse banks and avoid damages to the banks. 
Byelaws included in this section will also benefit WFD by protecting river banks 
and water quality. Please note that byelaw 14 may be challenged for the 
purpose of enabling animals to drink.  
 
  

                                            
5 The document can be downloaded on: 

https://naturalresources.wales/flooding/managing-flood-risk/riverside-property-

owners-know-your-rights-and-responsibilities/?lang=en 

Tudalen 96

https://naturalresources.wales/flooding/managing-flood-risk/riverside-property-owners-know-your-rights-and-responsibilities/?lang=en
https://naturalresources.wales/flooding/managing-flood-risk/riverside-property-owners-know-your-rights-and-responsibilities/?lang=en


  

 
4.3 New Enforcement Team. 
 
Previous enforcement actions have been carried out by non-dedicated and non-
specialist officers within the Flood Risk Management Team (FRM). This has 
been partially successful but has been very much a reactive rather than 
proactive service. 
 
The enforcement activities after Storm Callum in 2018 and recently Storm 
Dennis in 2020 has shown a step-by-step increase in enforcement actions 
required.  There has also been an increase in complexity of the type of 
enforcement required. With also the introduction of the Sustainable Drainage 
Approval Body (SAB) in 2019 and potentially the adoption of Byelaws there is 
a need for a dedicated specialist team of officers.  This was also found in the 
Storm Dennis review in December 2020. 
 
With 2 pieces of new legislation, The Sustainable Drainage (Enforcement) 
(Wales) Order 2018, and the potential byelaws it is very difficult to predict the 
enforcement effort that will be required.  There is a risk that enforcement 
activities will vary greatly.  However, by positioning the enforcement team within 
the FRM team and introducing a specialist technical element into the role the 
team will be flexible enough to also assist with investigations, consents and 
approvals. 
 
A review of the Resource required to undertake the regulation and enforcement 
function of the LLFA has been undertaken taking into consideration the effects 
of an increased proactive approach and the adoption of byelaws on the existing 
FRM team and legal services team: 
 
Additional Posts within the Flood Risk Management Team:- 

 
No. Enforcement Officer (GR10) 1   No. Enforcement Assistant (GR7/8) 

 
Legal support will be required to assist the new enforcement team consisting of 
providing legal advice and support to the officers and undertaking prosecutions.  
 
However, due to the unknown nature of the new legislation and the work 
required prior to implementation and the drafting of procedures it is 
recommended that the Enforcement Officer be implemented immediately. 
 
A review of the implications on workload and resources will be undertaken 
around 12 months after the full establishment of the service to inform future 
resource requirements based on actual rather than perceived workload for both 
the FRM and Legal Services teams.    
  

Tudalen 97



  

 
 
4.4   Flood Risk Awareness and Support 
 
 Flood Risk Management is very data heavy and is very complex for 

communicating risk to the public.  Advice and guidance on what to do if 
your property is within a high-risk area is not always easily accessible 
once the risk is communicated and access to insurance before or after 
an event is sometimes difficult. 

 
 It is felt that to bridge the gap between the “data” and regulation and 

ultimately to improve awareness and community resilience and avoid 
enforcement action wherever possible is a specialist role.  The role will 
cover, but not be limited to:- 

 

 Enhance and maintain RCTs website. 

 To develop guidance on property resilience measures and insurance for 
residential and business. 

 Develop a communications strategy to include Risk data, interventions 
(projects), riparian responsibilities, regulation requirements, Insurance 
and property and/or community resilience. 

 Develop community and//or individual flood plans.  Liaison with 
community groups. 

 Help with wider consultations, for example, Local Flood Risk Strategy. 

 Liaise with colleagues in Housing Grants, public health and Emergency 
planning to develop a support plan for communities affected by flooding. 

 
A review of the Resource required to undertake the above role has been 
undertaken taking into consideration the effects of an increased proactive 
approach and increased awareness and regulation.: 
 
Additional Post within the Flood Risk Management Team:- 

 
1 no. Flood Risk Awareness and Support Officer (GR10GR8) 

 
 
  

Tudalen 98



  

 
5 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 An Equality Impact Assessment screening form has been prepared for 
the purpose of this report. It has been found that a full EIA is not required. There 
are no negative or adverse equality or diversity implications associated with this 
report. 
 
6 CONSULTATIONS  
 

1. Finance 
2. Legal  

 
7 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
 The following analysis assumes all recommendations are agreed.   
 
 Implementation of Byelaws. 
 
 Although there will be an increase in consenting and regulation, it is felt 

that this additional burden can be absorbed into the current Flood Risk 
Management Team Resources as some current duties such as 
awareness and communications and enforcement will be carried out by 
additional posts. 

 
 There is therefore a NIL financial implication on the existing Team. 
 
 Creation of Enforcement Team. (Section 4.3) 
 
  

Establishment of new post (Annual cost to service) = £42,265 
  

ICT Establishment One off charge = £3k 
 

 A review of resources/workload will be undertaken around 12 months 
after the service has been established to inform long-term resource 
requirements. 

 
         Creation of Flood Awareness and Support officer. (Section 4.4) 
 
 Establishment of new post = £35,460 
 Printed/Publicity Materials =£1k 
 Consultants = £2k 
   
 Total annual additional cost to service = £38,460  
 

ICT Establishment One off charge = £3k 
 

Tudalen 99



  

Subject to the recommendations being agreed there will be a part year 
impact on the budget for this financial year (2021/22) depending on when 
the appointments to the new posts are made.  This can be met from 
existing one-off resources within the overall Frontline Services revenue 
budget. 
 
The ongoing annual impact on the revenue budget will be included in the 
Medium Term Financial Plan for 2022/23 onwards. 
 

8 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED  
 

There are legal implications and the relevant legislation has been 
considered in Section 4.   

 
9 LINKS TO THE COUNCILS CORPORATE PLAN / OTHER 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES/ SIP / FUTURE GENERATIONS – 
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT. 

 
9.1 National Strategy for Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management 

in Wales 
 
9.1.1 Required by the Flood and Water Management Act 2010, the National 

Flood Risk Management Strategy (NFRMS)6 for Wales, produced by 
Welsh Government, provides a policy framework for flood and coastal 
erosion risk management in Wales. The second iteration of the National 
Strategy was published In October 2020, within which sets out the 
following Aim of the strategy: 

 
‘Reduce the risk to People and Communities from Flooding and 

Coastal Erosion’. 
 
 
To facilitate the overarching aim, the strategy sets out 5 core Objectives 
which require the following: 
 
 

1. Improve our understanding and communication of risk 

2. Preparedness and Building Resilience 

3. Prioritising investment to the most at risk Communities 

4. Preventing more people becoming exposed to risk 

5. Providing an effective and sustained response to events 

In delivering the regulation and awareness raising as described within section 
4.3 and 4.4 the authority will directly support the delivery of Objective 1, 2, 4 
and 5 of the NFRMS. 

                                            
6 National Strategy for Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management in Wales: https://gov.wales/national-

strategy-flood-and-coastal-erosion-risk-management-wales 

Tudalen 100



  

 
 
9.2  Local Flood Risk Management Strategy  
 
9.2.1  Rhondda Cynon Taf has published a Local Flood Risk Management 

Strategy (LFRMS)7 in January 2013 in accordance with Section 10 of the 
FWMA 2010. The LFRMS defines who the ‘Risk Management 
Authorities (RMA) are, what their function is and what their 
responsibilities are. The strategy further identifies the Local Objective 
and Measures being implemented for the short, medium and Long term 
to manage flood risk within the authority. 

 
9.2.2 Within the LFRMS RCT is identified as a Lead Local Flood Authority 

(LLFA) which is identified as the RMA responsible for managing the risk 
of flooding from local sources, which includes regulation and 
enforcement. This function is set out within five specific measures aimed 
at delivering 9 Local objectives, Table 2 provides a summary of the 
LFRMS local objectives and measures.  

 
Table 2: LFRMS Objectives and Measures  
 

LFRMS Measure 
Number 

LFRMS Measures 
LFRMS Strategy 
Objective 

16 
Power to request 
information and civil 
sanctions 

1, 2, 3, 4, 11 

18 
Designation of 
Structures 

1, 2, 3, 4, 10 

20 

Consenting of 
Structures to 
Ordinary 
Watercourses 

1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 

21 
Enforcement to 
maintain flow in 
watercourses 

1, 2, 3, 4 

22 
Enactment of Land 
Drainage Byelaws 

1, 2, 3, 4 

Table 2: Provides a summary of the LFRMS Measures and how they Link to the LFRMS 
Objectives; related to regulation and enforcement. 

  

                                            
7 RCT Local Flood Risk Management Strategy: 

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/ParkingRoadsandTravel/Roadspavementsandpaths/FloodAlleviati

on/LocalFloodRiskManagementStrategy.aspx 

 

Tudalen 101



  

 
9.2.3 Whilst Table 2 provides a range of measures aimed at regulation and 

Enforcement, the LFRMS further includes for a wider range of measures 
aimed at managing the risk before, during and after the event with a 
particular focus on flooding awareness; which aims to ensure 
communities are prepared for flooding events, ensuring they are resilient 
and capable of recovering. Table 3 summarises the LFRMS local 
objectives and measures related to flooding awareness.    

 
 

LFRMS Measure 
Number 

LFRMS Measures 
LFRMS Strategy 
Objective 

5 Flood Awareness 1, 2, 3, 4, 10, 11, 12 

6 Flood Warning 1, 2, 3 

8 Community Flood Plans 10, 11, 12, 13, 14 

26 
Local Property-Level 
Flood Mitigation – 
Resilience 

12 

27 
Local Property-Level 
Flood Mitigation – 
Resistance 

12 

35 
Community/Public 
Engagement/Consultation 

10, 11 

Table 3: Provides a summary of the LFRMS Measures and how they link to LFRMS 
Objectives; related to flooding awareness. 

 
9.3  Corporate Plan  
 
9.3.1 The Highway Maintenance and Management Delivery Plan for the 

2020/21 financial year identifies areas for improvement. Specifically 
Service Priority 5 which specifies: 

 
 

‘To provide services related to flood risk management as required of the 
Lead Local Flooding Authority under Flood and Water Management Act 
2010, Flood Risk Regulations 2009 and as the Land Drainage Authority 
under the Land Drainage Act 1991.’ 

 
9.3.2 The service priority aligns with two corporate plan priorities specifically;  
 

1 Place – Creating neighbourhoods where people are proud 
to live and work 

2 Economy – Building a strong economy 
  

Tudalen 102



  

9.4 Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 
 

9.4.1 A resilient Wales - focuses on the development of a ‘Biodiverse natural 
environment with healthy functioning ecosystems that support social, 
economic and ecological resilience and the capacity to adapt to change’. 
 
To support the delivery of this goal, the development of an enforcement 
team and adoption of the bylaws will contribute to the enhancement of 
the local aquatic and semi aquatic environments, specifically through the 
regulation of ordinary watercourse environments to reduce the loss of 
habitat and enforce upon those individuals that would seek to damage it.  
 
Furthermore, the creation of a flooding awareness and support officer 
will enhance the authority’s communication of flood risk to our 
communities. Whilst encouraging the interconnectivity between the 
natural environment and urban communities. This approach will focus on 
the integration of green infrastructure to manage the risk of flooding, 
which will promote the development of new habitats and outline the 
adaptability of the natural environment to manage the impacts of climate 
change which in turns ensures a more resilient environment that benefits 
the community.  

 
9.4.2 A Wales of Vibrant Culture & Thriving Welsh Language provides a 

‘Society that promotes and protects culture, heritage and the Welsh 
Language, and which encourages people to participate in the arts, and 
sports and recreation.  

 
In delivering this role, the flood awareness and enforcement officers will 
enable the communication of flood risk management in a bilingual manor 
to ensure the community understand their risk and the responsibility of 
the community to manage the risk of flooding.  
 
In enhancing the engagement with the wider communities’ opportunities 
to encourage community groups and organisations to engage with flood 
risk management activities will develop and provide a more resilient 
community network which will support a vibrant culture.  

 
 
9.4.3 A Healthier Wales is a society in which peoples physical and mental 

well-being is maximised and in which choices and behaviours that 
benefit future health are understood.  

 
In delivering this goal, the flooding awareness officer will provide a 
mechanism for communicating the cycle of risk management i.e. 
preparation, response, recovery, prevention, and mitigation to ensure the 
mental wellbeing of communities impacted as a result of flooding are 
healthier and more resilient.  

 

Tudalen 103



  

The regulation of ordinary watercourse’s and expansion of the bylaws 
will further contribute to ensuring the local communities’ natural 
environments are not detrimentally impacted. This enables the 
maintaining and enhancement of these environments, through 
consenting activities. Such activities could provide amenity value which 
in turn enables the communities to enhance their physical well-being.  

 
 
9.4.4 A more equal Wales is a society that enables people to fulfil their 

potential no matter what their background or circumstances.  
 

To deliver this goal the flooding awareness officer will provide a platform 
of flood risk management advice, to those communities identified to be 
at highest risk of flooding, regardless of their background or 
circumstances that surround those communities. This will enable 
communities to participate in community engagement and will assist with 
the decision making around future flood risk management activities.  
 

 
9.4.5 A Wales of cohesive communities promotes an ‘Attractive, Safe, 

Viable and Well-Connected Community’. 
 

In delivering this goal both the enforcement team and flood awareness 
officer will support community engagement and will focus upon the 
education of riparian land owners to ensure they are aware of their 
responsibilities to manage ordinary watercourse infrastructure and 
ensure they are safe, attractive and viable to minimise the potential for 
community disruption.  
 

 
9.4.6 A globally responsible Wales is a ‘Nation which, when doing anything 

to improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being 
of Wales, takes account of whether doing such a thing may make a 
positive contribution to global well-being’. 

 
In delivering this goal the enforcement team and flood awareness team 
will support the education and encourage the behavioural change related 
to our natural environment. This communication will focus upon the 
importance of the earths resources and the need to enhance the natural 
environment in a sustainable manor that takes into account the affects 
of climate change.   

 
  
  

Tudalen 104



  

 
10 CONCLUSION 
 
 
10.1 The Storms of Feb 2020 showed how vulnerable the communities of 

RCT are to intense rainfall.  Climate change projections suggest a 25% 
to 75% increase in flows within large watercourses and rivers in the next 
93 years.  This is exacerbated by the way RCT’s urban areas have been 
developed over the last 150 years, which is typical of valleys 
communities and not unique to RCT, with natural routes for water from 
the hillsides towards rivers “buried” in culverts with no space for water to 
travel overland once the capacity those culverts are exceeded, with 
urbanised areas providing very little natural attenuation or infiltration. 

 
 It is clear that RCT has challenges ahead in managing the current and 

future risk from flooding.   
 
 The Welsh Government’s National Flood Risk Strategy being published 

in October 2020 triggers the requirement under S10 of the Flood and 
Water Management Act 2010 for the Council as Lead Local Flood 
Authority to review the Local Flood Risk Management Strategy. There is 
therefore a huge opportunity within this review to set a sustainable 
strategy to manage flood risk and build resilience and facilitate adaption 
for future generations.  This will be progressed over the next 12-18 
months. 

 
 The adoption of the byelaws and creation of the enforcement team and 

flooding awareness and support officer will help protect the assets we 
have, prevent new risks from being created, build resilience within our 
community and ultimately help communities adapt to this particular 
consequence of climate change, whilst providing valuable information to 
feed into the Local Flood Risk Strategy Review to provide a robust 
strategy to manage the increasing risk of flooding through climate 
change. 

 
Whilst the recommendations propose the immediate recruitment of 
additional resources, it is unclear on the extent of workload that will be 
generated and the impact upon resources over the medium to long term. 
As such a 12-month review will enable the assessment of the future 
resource requirements based on actual rather than perceived workload 
for both the FRM and Legal Services teams.  

 
 
  
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 105



  

 
 
Appendix 1 
 
Model Byelaws. 
 

  

Tudalen 106



  

Land drainage (Wales) Byelaws 

Contents 
 

Chapter I - Administrative ................................................................................................. 22 

1. Citation and commencement ...................................................................................... 22 

2. Application of Byelaws ................................................................................................. 22 

3. Definition and Interpretation ....................................................................................... 22 

4. Causing or knowingly permitting ............................................................................... 25 

 

Chapter II - Control of introduction of water and increase in flow or volume or 

water ........................................................................................................................................ 25 

5. Control of the introduction of water, altering flow and volume of water ......... 25 

6. Interference with sluices, flood and tidal defences .............................................. 25 

7. Operation of watercourse or tidal control works ................................................... 25 

8. Tidal Outfalls .................................................................................................................... 26 

 

Chapter III - Potential to cause impediment or obstruction to flow ....................... 26 

9. Maintenance of land liable to flooding and watercourse banks ........................ 26 

10. Building of structures, pipes, etc. on land liable to flooding ............................ 27 

11. Repairs to buildings and structures ........................................................................ 27 

 

Chapter IV - Ensuring the condition of the banks of a watercourse ...................... 28 

12. Vegetation ....................................................................................................................... 28 

13. Driving of animals and vehicles ................................................................................ 28 

14. Damage by grazing animals ....................................................................................... 28 

 

Chapter V – Incidental provisions ................................................................................... 29 

15. Control of animals......................................................................................................... 29 

16. Interference with local authority [/internal drainage board]’s functions ........ 29 

 

Chapter VI – Exemptions ................................................................................................... 29 

17. Emergency works ........................................................................................................ 29 

18. General Permitted Developments ............................................................................ 29 

Tudalen 107



  

19. Ladders and scaffold towers .................................................................................... 29 

 

Chapter VII – Miscellaneous ............................................................................................. 30 

20. Penalty ............................................................................................................................ 30 

 

Land Drainage (Wales) Byelaws 

[Name of Local Authority] under and by virtue of the powers and authority vested 

in them by section 66 of the Land Drainage Act 1991, do hereby make the 

following Byelaws which are considered necessary for [one or more of] the 

following purposes: 

- a) securing the efficient working of a drainage system in the Council’s area,  

b) regulating the effects on the environment in the Council’s area of a drainage 

system,  

c) securing the effectiveness of flood risk management work within the meaning 

of section 14A of that Act, or  

d) securing the effectiveness of works done in reliance on section 38 or 39 of the 

Flood and Water Management Act 2010 (incidental flooding or coastal erosion), 

 

 

Chapter I - Administrative 
 

1. Citation and commencement 

These Byelaws have been approved by the Cabinet Secretary for Environment and 

Rural Affairs Lesley Griffiths and may be cited as [Name of Local Authority] Land 

Drainage Byelaws [2017] and they shall commence on [date]. 

 

2. Application of Byelaws  

These Byelaws apply to ordinary watercourses situated within the area in Wales of the 

local authority [or: under the control of the Internal Drainage Board] making these 

byelaws. 

 

3. Definition and Interpretation 

In these byelaws, unless defined below or the context otherwise requires, the terms 

and expressions to which meanings are assigned by the Water Resources Act 1991, 

the Land Drainage Act 1991, the Environment (Wales) Act 2016 and the Interpretation 

Act 1978 shall have the same meanings in these byelaws. 

Tudalen 108



  

In these byelaws: 

The expressions “bank”, “drainage”, ‘’drainage body’’, “Internal Drainage Board”, 

“land”, “local authority”, ‘’ordinary watercourse’’ have the same meaning as defined in 

the Land Drainage Act 1991. 

“the Act” means the Land Drainage Act 1991 

"Animal" means any animal including birds, any horse, cattle, sheep, deer, goat, 

swine, goose or poultry; but excluding fish and human beings;  

"Byelaws distance" means any land lying landward within the following distances 

measuring horizontally from any watercourse bank: 

(i) if it includes a wall or embankment 8 metres from its landward extent; or 

(ii) in other cases 8 metres from the top of the watercourse bank; or 

(iii) any land lying 8 metres horizontally from the outer perimeter of a culvert 

measured from the widest part of the culvert. 

‘’Building or structure’’ means any structure or erection, and any part of a building 

so defined, but does not include plant or machinery comprised in a building; It also 

includes a fence, post, pylon, wall, wharf, bridge, loading stage, piling, groyne, 

pontoon, revetment, and an engine or any mechanical contrivance; any formwork, 

falsework, scaffold or other structure designed or used to provide support or means of 

access during construction work, and any reference to a structure includes part of a 

structure. 

‘’Consent of the authority’’ means the prior written agreement, either by email or 

formal documentation, of any person authorised on behalf of the Authority, and which 

may include any conditions/restrictions as deemed necessary by the Authority. 

"Culvert" means an enclosed channel pipe or conduit for the carrying of a watercourse 

and any other structure forming part of a culvert including headwall, outlet and trash 

screen. 

"Embankment" means a natural or artificial mound or other raised defence. 

"Flood Defence works " means tidal, fluvial or pluvial flood defence structures and 

works including walls, gates, embankments or bypasses constructed or used for these 

purposes as well as man-made or natural sand dunes and earth retaining structures 

or structures constructed or used as a defence against inundation of any land by raising 

water levels. 

‘’Flood warning system’’ means any apparatus used by the Authority for obtaining or 

providing information in relation to and warnings of flood. 

"Land liable to flooding" means all land over which watercourse water flows in times 

of flood, including areas where that water is stored in times of flood.  

“Nets” includes 

(a) a stake net, bag net or keep net;  

Tudalen 109



  

(b) any net secured by anchors and any net, or other implement for taking fish, 

fixed to the soil or made stationary in any other way;  

(c) any net placed or suspended in any inland or tidal waters unattended by the 

owner or a person duly authorised by the owner to use it for fish, and any engine, 

device, machine or contrivance, whether floating or otherwise, for placing or 

suspending such a net or maintaining it in working order or making it stationary.  

"Occupier" means any tenant, licensee or other person either in occupation of any 

land or entitled to its occupation.  

“Objects or matters” means natural or man-made liquid or solid matters or objects or 

materials including trees, roots of trees, branches, timber, tins, bottles, boxes, tyres, 

bricks, stones, soil, wire, rubbish. 

"Owner" means the owner of a legal estate, and when the owner is not in immediate 

occupation shall include an occupier.  

"Person" includes where appropriate, reference to more than one person, including a 

body of persons corporate or non-corporate.  

"Sea defence" means any artificial or natural defence against sea water or tidal water 

including natural or artificial high ground (including sand dunes and cliffs) and any 

works constructed or used as a defence against inundation of any land by sea or tidal 

waters, or for securing adequate watercourse outfalls provided it shall not include any 

sea defence works which are vested in or under the control of a Coast Protection 

Authority, a local authority or any Navigation Harbour or Conservancy Authority. 

‘’Tidal control works’’ means any floodgate, lock, sluice or other structure or 

appliance provided or constructed for the purpose of defence against sea or tidal water. 

“Vegetation” means trees, willows, shrubs, weeds, grasses, reeds, rushes or other 

vegetation growths;  

"Vessel" means any ship, boat, or any other waterborne craft, including hovercraft and 

any remains of any vessel. 

"Watercourse" means any river, stream, ditch, channel or other passage through 

which water flows including the channel of any watercourse that is for the time being 

dry but excluding public sewers within the meaning of the Water Industry Act 1991.  

"Watercourse bank" means any bank, wall, revetment or embankment adjoining or 

confining any watercourse from the top to the bottom of the sloping or upright part.  

"Watercourse bed" means land forming any part of a watercourse over which water 

normally flows.  

“Water control structure” means a structure or appliance for introducing water into 

any watercourse and for controlling or regulating or affecting flow, and includes any 

sluice, slacker, floodgate, lock, weir, pump or pumping machinery;  

 

Tudalen 110



  

4. Causing or knowingly permitting 

Where by or under these byelaws the doing of any act is prohibited or restricted the 

same prohibition or restriction shall extend to causing or knowingly permitting the act 

or restriction to be done.  

 

Chapter II - Control of introduction of water and 

increase in flow or volume or water 
 

5. Control of the introduction of water, altering flow and volume of 

water 

 

(1) Without prejudice to sections 23 and 25 of the Land Drainage Act 1991 no person 

shall without the consent of the authority take any action to:  

(a) stop up any watercourse; or  

(b) divert; or  

(c) impede; or  

(d) alter 

the level of or direction of the flow of water in, into or out of any watercourse. 

(2)  In this byelaw ‘alter’ includes creating or extending a watercourse and introducing 

water which directly or indirectly increases the flow or volume of water in any 

watercourse within the local authority’s area. 

 

(3) In this byelaw impede includes blocking off or infilling of any watercourse channel, 

and obstruction of any arch of any bridge or causeway designed of, or which permits 

the passage of water in any watercourse or land liable to flooding. 

 

6. Interference with sluices, flood and tidal defences 

 

(1) No person shall without consent of the authority operate or interfere with any sluice, 

flood gate, flood or tidal defence or other water control structure or appliance or 

flood warning or monitoring system used for controlling, regulating or monitoring 

the flow of water in, into or out of an ordinary watercourse. 

 

(2) In this byelaw “interfere” includes removing, damaging or disturbing materials 

forming part of a flood or tidal defence.  

 

7. Operation of watercourse or tidal control works 

Any person having control of 

(a) any sluice or flood gate; or 

Tudalen 111



  

(b) any water control structure or appliance for controlling or regulating or affecting 

the flow of water in, into or out of a watercourse 

shall use and maintain such structure or appliance in a proper state of repair and 

efficiency with a view to: 

(a) the prevention of flooding or of any shortage in the flow or supply of water and  

(b) the efficient working of the drainage system in the area of the (local authority/ 

internal drainage board) 

 

8. Tidal Outfalls 

No person shall place or abandon upon the foreshore any object or matter or 

vegetation which, whether immediately or as a result of subsequent tidal action, may 

(a)  impede or be likely to impede the flow of water through the sluices, flood gate, 

or outfall pipes through the tidal banks or through the watercourses on such 

foreshore; or 

(b) impede or be likely to impede the operation of such sluices, flood gate, or outfall 

pipes; or  

(c) cause or be likely to cause damage to such sluices, flood gate, or outfall pipes.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chapter III - Potential to cause impediment or 

obstruction to flow 
 

9.  Maintenance of land liable to flooding and watercourse banks 

 

(1) No person shall without the consent of the authority plant any tree, deposit or store 

objects or matters, light a fire or interfere with a watercourse bed or bank within the 

byelaw distance in such a manner as is likely to: 

(a) cause flooding, 

(b) impede the flow, or 

(c) cause or be likely to cause damage to, or  

(d) endanger the stability of, or 

(e) affect the efficiency of 

a culvert, watercourse bank, watercourse control work, flood defence, tidal control work 

or sea defence.  

 (2) In this byelaw: 

Tudalen 112



  

“interfere” includes to dredge, remove, damage or disturb materials forming part of a 

flood or tidal defence or of a watercourse bank or bed; and to make any excavation or 

do anything in, to or upon any land like to damage a watercourse bank or bed. 

“light a fire” includes committing any action liable to cause any fire to be lit on any land 

adjoining any watercourse where such action is liable to set on fire any peat land 

forming the banks of the watercourse or any vegetation growing on land forming the 

banks of the watercourse.  

“store objects or matters” includes depositing or stacking or keeping objects and solid 

or liquid matters including vegetation and vegetation cuttings. 

“objects” include vessels. 

 

10. Building of structures, pipes, etc. on land liable to flooding 

 

(1) No person shall without the consent of the authority: 

     (a) erect or construct any building or structure 

(i) in, on, under or over any watercourse or in or on any bank of a 

watercourse; 

(ii) within the byelaws distance; 

(iii) on any watercourse control work, flood defence, tidal control work 

or sea defence; or 

(iv) over any part of a culvert, or within the byelaws distance on either 

side of it; or 

     (b) make or cut any excavation or any tunnel or any drain, culvert or other passage 

for water in, into or out of any watercourse or in or through any bank of any 

watercourse;  

in such a manner or for such length of time as to cause damage to the watercourse 

bed or banks; or obstruct the flow of water in, into or out of such watercourse.  

(2) This byelaw does not apply to any temporary work executed in an emergency. 

(3) In this byelaw: 

 “Emergency” means causing immediate danger to life or property. 

 

11. Repairs to buildings and structures 

The person having control of any building, fence or structure in, on, under or over any 

watercourse, culvert, watercourse bank, flood defence works, tidal control works, tidal 

or sea defence shall maintain such building, fence or structure in a proper state of 

repair and efficiency with a view to preventing such building, fence or structure from: 

(a) impeding the flow of water in into or out of any watercourse;  

Tudalen 113



  

(b) damaging any watercourse bank, flood protection works, tidal control works 

or sea defence; or  

(c) creating danger or obstruction to the carrying out of flood defence works by 

the (local authority/internal drainage board)  

 

Chapter IV - Ensuring the condition of the banks of a 

watercourse 
 

12. Vegetation 

The owner or occupier of any land through which any watercourse flows or on which 

any sea defence is situated or any adjoining land over which the local authority 

[/internal drainage board] needs access to get to such land shall maintain all vegetation 

situated within the byelaws distance and shall remove such vegetation from the 

watercourse or bank immediately after such cutting so that it does not impede the flow 

of the watercourse.  

 

13. Driving of animals and vehicles 

No person shall use or drive any cart or vehicle of any kind on, over or along any bank 

of a watercourse control work, flood protection work, tidal control work, or sea defence 

in such manner as to cause damage to such bank, control work, flood protection work, 

tidal control work, or sea defence. 

 

14. Damage by grazing animals 

No person shall graze, keep or water any animal on any watercourse, watercourse bed 

or bank, flood protection work or sea defence without: 

(a) taking all such steps as are necessary to prevent the watercourse, the 

watercourse bed or bank, flood protection work or sea defence from being 

damaged by such use and  

(b) reporting to the local authority [/internal drainage board] any damage caused 

to the watercourse, the watercourse bed or bank, flood protection work or sea 

defence by the grazing, keeping or watering of animals, as soon as practicable 

following the occurrence of such damage.  

  

Tudalen 114



  

 

Chapter V – Incidental provisions 
 

15. Control of animals 

The owner or occupier of any land through which any watercourse flows or on which 

any sea defence is situated or any adjoining land over which the local authority 

[/internal drainage board] needs access to get to such land to carry out any work or 

inspection, shall ensure that, during the progress of any work or any inspection animals 

on such land are kept under proper control and supervision or, if such control and 

supervision is not possible, are not kept on such land. 

16. Interference with local authority [/internal drainage board]’s 

functions 

No person shall interfere with: 

(a) access required to any land by the local authority [/internal drainage board] 

or of their agents to carry out their flood management functions; or 

(b) the carrying out of their functions. 

 

Chapter VI – Exemptions 
 

17. Emergency works 

These Byelaws shall not apply to any work executed in an emergency but a person 

executing any work so excepted shall, as soon as practicable, inform the Council in 

writing of the execution and of the circumstances in which it was executed and comply 

with any reasonable directions the Council may give with regard thereto. 

 

18. General Permitted Developments 

These byelaws shall not apply to any development by a drainage body in, on or under 
any watercourse or land drainage works and required in connection with the 
improvement, maintenance or repair of that watercourse or those works. 

 

19. Ladders and scaffold towers 

(1) These Byelaws shall not apply to any work requiring the temporary erection and 

use of ladders and scaffold towers (“equipment”). 

(2) For the purposes of this paragraph, the specific conditions are— 

     (a) the suitability of river conditions is reviewed by the operator each working day; 

     (b) the equipment is erected on each working day on which it is required; and 

     (c) the equipment is removed at the end of each working day and is stored outside 

the river and its banks. 

Tudalen 115



  

 

 

Chapter VII – Miscellaneous 

  
20. Penalty 

By section 66(6) of the Act every person who acts in contravention of, or fails to comply 

with, any of the foregoing Byelaws, is liable on summary conviction in respect of each 

offence to a fine not exceeding the amount prescribed from time to time for level 5 

(£5,000) on the standard scale referred to in section 37 of the Criminal Justice Act 

1982 and a further fine not exceeding forty pounds for every day on which the 

contravention or failure is continued after conviction.  

By section 66(7) of the Act if any person acts in contravention of, or fails to comply with 

any of these Byelaws the Council may without prejudice to any proceedings under 

section 66(6) of the Act take such action as may be necessary to remedy the effect of 

the contravention or failure and may recover the expenses reasonably incurred by it in 

doing so from the person in default.  

 

Tudalen 116



 

 
 

 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
CABINET 

 
21st SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
UNADOPTED ROADS 

 
 
REPORT OF GROUP DIRECTOR PROSPERITY DEVELOPMENT AND FRONTLINE 
SERVICES IN DISCUSSIONS WITH THE RELEVANT PORTFOLIO HOLDER CLLR 
MORGAN, LEADER OF THE COUNCIL. 
 
Author:  Roger Waters, Service Director Frontline Services. 
Tel 01443 494702 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
1.1 This report proposes a pilot programme of works to private streets which the 

Council considers are not, to the Council’s satisfaction, sewered, levelled, paved, 
metalled, flagged, channelled, made good and lighted. 
 

1.2 The report also seeks the Council’s approval to progress private streetworks at 
Belle Vue, Trecynon utilising Welsh Government grant funding. 
 

1.3 It is proposed that following the implementation of the works, the streets be 
adopted as highways maintainable at public expense. 
 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 It is recommended that Members: 
 
2.1 Note and approve the streets listed in Appendix A which are proposed to make 

up the pilot project. 
 

2.2 Determine that the streets listed in Appendix A are not, to the authority’s 
satisfaction, sewered, levelled, paved, metalled, flagged, channelled, made good 
and lighted. 
 

2.3 Instruct the Service Director Frontline Services to prepare schemes, estimates 
and provisional apportionments and to present these for approval in a future 
report to the Group Director Prosperity, Development and Frontline Services for 
consideration and approval in liaison with the portfolio holder. 
 

 

Tudalen 117

Agendwm 6



2.4 Note and approve the proposed works and estimate for Belle Vue, Trecynon as 
shown in appendix B.   
 

2.5 Determine that no costs will be apportioned to the property frontagers 
 
 
3.    BACKGROUND 

 
3.1 The Highways Act 1980 Sections 205 to 237 are known as the Private 

Streetworks Code (The Code). They give a streetworks authority powers in 
relation to making up to its satisfaction and adopting private streets as highways 
maintainable at public expense.  The Code empowers the streetworks authority 
to apportion all or a proportion of the costs to the owners of properties fronting 
onto the street, or to determine to bear the costs of streetworks itself. 
 

3.2 The Council is the streetworks authority for all streets in its area with the exception 
of the A470, A465 and M4 trunk roads for which Welsh Government are the 
streetworks authority. 
 

3.3 There are approximately 190km of identified private streets across RCT along 
with an unknown quantity of unidentified private streets. It is estimated that more 
than 90% of the private streets have been identified. 
 

3.4 Private streets range from footpaths and back lanes to roads serving as the 
primary access for substantial numbers of residential properties.  They vary in 
condition from very poor to excellent. 
 

3.5 Due to the unknown makeup of the existing road constructions, likely issues with 
shallow services and unknown condition of drainage systems a contingency 
allowance of £50k has been included. 
 

3.6 Welsh Government have allocated funding to a pilot project to assist councils to 
carry out works to bring private streets up to a suitable standard and to adopt 
them as highways maintainable at public expense.  The Council successfully bid 
for £157,000 of funding to carry out private streetworks at Belle Vue, Trecynon. A 
plan showing the proposed works can be found at Appendix B. Future phases of 
work at Belle Vue will be included in future grant applications should Welsh 
Government determine to continue their project. 
 

3.7 In order to determine the types of issues which may arise a pilot project is 
proposed to be implemented during 2021/22 financial year. 
 

3.8 A prioritisation process is under development for consideration when 
recommending future projects, however, in order to progress the pilot schemes 
this financial year, they have been chosen based on Engineer’s knowledge and 
previous member requests. 
 

 
4. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS  
 

4.1  An Equality and Diversity impact assessment has been carried out and there 
have been no adverse implications identified.  

Tudalen 118



 
5.  CONSULTATION  
 
5.1  There are no consultation requirements relating directly to the report but the 

proposed schemes will (or have) involve varying degrees of consultation, some of 
which will relate to statutory processes (such as Traffic Regulation Orders).  

 
5.2 Consultation on individual schemes will be carried out with ward members and 

residents of the streets. 
 
6.  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
6.1  £250,000 of funding can be allocated from existing resources. 
 
6.2 Belle Vue, Trecynon is funded by a grant from Welsh Government. 
 
6.3 Following the adoption of the streets as highways maintainable at public expense, 

the council will be responsible for the future maintenance of the streets.  The costs 
of this maintenance will be met from existing highway maintenance budgets. 

 
7.  LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED  
 
7.1  The works and subsequent adoption of the streets will be carried out utilising the 

council’s powers under sections 205 – 237 of the Highways Act 1980.  
 
8.  LINKS TO THE CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE WELL-

BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT.  
 
8.1  This investment programme supports the Council’s Corporate Plan Priority ‘Places 

– Where people are proud to live, work and play’.  
 
8.2  The programme supports enhanced connectivity to link homes with employment 

opportunities, education and health facilities, and to act as a catalyst for development 
and regeneration.  

 
8.4  The programme supports the Well-Being goals fostering prosperity and resilience 

with inclusive and sustainable transport options supporting more cohesive and 
vibrant communities.  

 
9.  CONCLUSION  
 
9.1  The above recommendations continue the enhanced levels of investment under the 

RCTInvest initiative, delivering sustained improvements to the resilience and 
durability of our highways and transportation infrastructure, promoting sustainable 
transport opportunities and network efficiency.  

 

 
************************************ 

 

Tudalen 119



Appendix A 
 

Schemes for Inclusion in the Unadopted Roads Pilot Project 
 

Street Name Town Budget 

Miner’s Row Llwydcoed £60,000 

Brecon Place Aberaman £15,000 

Heol Penrhiw Mountain Ash £45,000 

Hillside Terrace Llwynypia £10,000 

Trafalgar Terrace Ystrad £60,000 

Poet’s Close Rhydyfelin £10,000 

Contingencies  £50,000 

Total   £250,000 

 
 

Tudalen 120



DRAWINGS AND IDENTIFY LOCATIONS OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND SERVICES

WORKERS SHOULD FOLLOW THE GUIDANCE ON SOCIAL DISTANCING

CORRECT PPE SHOULD BE WORN AND WORKERS SHOULD WASH THEIR HANDS

WORKERS WHO ARE UNWELL WITH SYMPTOMS OF CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19)

KEY

- Type 1 200mm unbound mixture sub-base

- HRA 55/10 laid 40mm thick As per TSCS

- AC 20 HDM Binder 60mm thick

- AC 32 H/D Base 100mm thick

- Colbond 50 bond coat

- Footway Type A1 comprising of granular

material

- Type 1 sub-base 150mm thick, AC dense bin

100/150rec 40mm thick, AC 6 Surf 160/220

20mm thick

- 400x400x65mm paving slabs in footway on

granular

Type 1 sub-base 150mm thick and 30mm thick

clean sharp sand bedding layer; joints brushed

with kiln dried sand

Proposed new carriageway

HRA 55/10 laid 40mm thick

Proposed new footway

Footway Type A1

400x400x65mm paving slabs

SIGNIFICANT OR EXCEPTIONAL RISKS ARE IDENTIFIED BELOW

CONSTRUCTION PHASE

1. PLEASE REFER TO AND THE WORKS INFORMATION FOR DETAILS OF THE RISKS

ASSOCIATED WITH THIS WORK.

2. IN PREPARATION OF CONSTRUCTION METHOD STATEMENTS CONSIDERATION

SHOULD BE GIVEN TO THE CLOSE PROXIMITY OF ANY STRUCTURES THAT MAY

BE AFFECTED BY CONSTRUCTION.

3. RESIDUAL HAZARDS ARE LISTED HERE AND REFERENCED ON THE DRAWING.

· WORKING ON A ELEVATED LOCATION.

4.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO STATUTORY UNDERTAKERS LAYOUT

DRAWINGS AND IDENTIFY LOCATIONS OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND SERVICES

PRIOR TO CARRYING OUT EXCAVATION WORKS.

COVID-19

1. WORKERS SHOULD FOLLOW THE GUIDANCE ON SOCIAL DISTANCING

THROUGHOUT THE CONSTRUCTION PROCESS.

2. CORRECT PPE SHOULD BE WORN AND WORKERS SHOULD WASH THEIR HANDS

BEFORE AND AFTER USING EQUIPMENT.

3. WORKERS WHO ARE UNWELL WITH SYMPTOMS OF CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19)

SHOULD NOT TRAVEL OR ATTEND THE WORKPLACE.

HEALTH AND SAFETY INFORMATION

Drg. No.File No.

Scales

Drawn Checked

Date

Group Director
Environmental Services,
Rhondda Cynon Taff
County Borough Council,
Sardis House, Sardis Road,
Pontypridd, CF37 1DU.

Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran y
Gwasanaethau Amgylchedd,
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol
Rhondda Cynon Taf,
Ty Sardis, Sardis Road,
Pontypridd, CF37 1DU.

Tynnu
Gwirio

Dyddiad

Rhif y cynllun

Graddfeydd

Rhif y ffeil

Size

Maint

Approved

Cymeradwyo

Client

Project

Dwg Title

General Arrangement - Phase1

Belle Vue St, Aberdare

Rhondda Cynon Taf

County Borough Council

CF01/00/85 002

NTS

BM

17/05/2021

JB

A3

SAP

Rev

-

Location Plan

Easting: 299603

Northing: 203567

W

S

E

N

W

S

E

N

Carriageway Detail

Footway Detail

T
udalen 121

AutoCAD SHX Text
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
Harp

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
Dafydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
Library

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
159.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
153.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
Cymru

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
UNION STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
19a

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
Bryn Seion

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
16a

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
58d

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
156.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
Eglwys

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
TRECYNON

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
Inn

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
158.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
Cross

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
Welsh

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
105a

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
15a

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
MOUNT PLEASANT ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
152.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
152.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
46a

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
FREDERICK STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
58a

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
58c

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
58b

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
152.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
MOUNT PLEASANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
20a

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
EBENEZER STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
EDWARD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
153.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
81a

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
6a

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
WINDSOR STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
PRIMROSE HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
151.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
152.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
MILL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
MARGARET

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
16b

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
Bresbyteraidd

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
157.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
Plas

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
153.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
HIRWAUN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
152.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
24b

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
18a

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
DAVID STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
9a

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
Babell

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
24a

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
154.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
Ty

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
Llewellyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
Cartref

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
Ebenezer

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
Newydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
2b

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
5a

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
Noddfa House

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
Primary School)

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
Olwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
(Aberdare Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
Ysgol Gynradd Parc Aberdar

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
Ty Felin

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
Parc

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
Shelters

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
Morgan's

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
Ty^ Hen

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
Ardd

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
CYNON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
Afon Cynon

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
137.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
132.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
BELLE VUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
MP 23.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
WELLINGTON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
MEIRION STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
136.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
143.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
150.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
Glyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
47b

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
21a

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
Melrose

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
5 to 13

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
ALMA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
BELL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
Brynderwen

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
Oakdene

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
Pleasant

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
PLEASANT STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
PARK GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
Mount

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
147.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
ST JOHN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
137.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
133.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
BELLE VUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
BELLE VUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
Gadlys Uchaf

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
145.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
WATERLOO PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
139.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
47a

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
131.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
Mineral Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
150.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
146.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
Anbredale

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
Coliseum

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
The Laurels

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
MOUNT

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
MEIRION STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
Mineral Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
Cycle Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
PARK GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
Norwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
Gospel House

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
A to D

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
MP 23.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
Ty Olaf

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
61a

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
Cwm Sian

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
143.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
28a

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
60a

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
149.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
MARGARET STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
139.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
St Fagan's Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
146.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
Villa

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
Jordans

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
Chapel Of Rest

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
138.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
PRIMROSE HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
CLIVE PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
146.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
HARRIET STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
Church Row

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
17a

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
Vicarage

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
146.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
149.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
1 to 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
147.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
Maes-rhydwen

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
CLIVE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
149.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
152.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
Flats

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
145.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
STAG STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
St Fagan's Community Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
Police

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
Old

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
Glyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
47b

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
Melrose

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
ALMA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
BELL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
147.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
BELLE VUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
145.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
47a

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
Anbredale

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
Gospel House

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
ST JOHN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
Glyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
47b

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
Melrose

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
ALMA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
BELL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
147.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
ST JOHN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
BELLE VUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
145.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
47a

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
Anbredale

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
Gospel House

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
12



T
udalen w

ag



Belle Vue to Bell St1-8 Belle Vue Total
Estimated Works 
Costs 17,247.56£    81,206.18£     98,453.74£    
Estimated Utility 
Works 10,000.00£    15,000.00£     25,000.00£    
Sub Total 27,247.56£    96,206.18£     123,453.74£  
Contingency 10% 2,724.76£      9,620.62£       12,345.37£    
Estimated Total 
Works Costs 29,972.32£    105,826.80£  135,799.11£  
Design & Supervision 
(15%) 4,495.85£      15,874.02£     20,369.87£    
Total Estimated Cost 34,468.16£    121,700.82£  156,168.98£  

Belle Vue Tecynon Phase 1 Estimated Costs

Tudalen 123



Item Description Qty Unit Rate Total
Series 100
Preliminaries

Temporary Accommodation

S100/9 Erection of offices and messes for the Contractor 1 item 350.00£       1,000.00£       

S100/10 Servicing of offices and messes for the Contractor 1 wk 450.00£       450.00£           

S100/11 Dismantling of stores and workshops for the Contractor 1 item 200.00£       200.00£           

S100/12 Erection of stores and workshops for the Contractor 1 item 350.00£       350.00£           

S100/13 Servicing of stores and workshops for the contractor 1 wk 450.00£       450.00£           

S100/14 Dismantling of stores and workshops for the Contractor 1 item 200.00£       200.00£           

Traffic Safety and Management

S100/17 Traffic safety & management on a single carriageway, with 
speeds of 30mph or less during the day

7 day 110.00£       770.00£           

3,420.00£       

Belle Vue to Bell Street
Preliminaries

Page:1 To Section Summary

Tudalen 124



Item Description Qty Unit Rate Total
Series 200
Site Clearance

Take up or down and set aside for reuse or remove to store 
off site

S200/73 Take up or down & remove to tip off site paving/ slabs m2 7.00£            -£                 

S200/75
Take up or down and remove to tip off site precast concrete 
kerbs, granite kerbs, concrete channelling and edgings

m 7.00£            -£                 

-£                 Page:2 To Section Summary

Site Clearance
Belle Vue to Bell Street

Tudalen 125



Item Description Qty Unit Rate Total
Series 500 cont
Drainage and Service Ducts

S500/224 Connection of 225mm dia pipe to existing 225mm dia pipe 
depth to invert exceeding 2 metres but not exceeding 4 
metres

no 180.00£       -£                 

S500/267 Connection of 150 mm internal diameter pipe to existing 
chamber depth to invert not exceeding 2 metres.

no 100.00£       -£                 

S500/295 Precast concrete trapped SG gully with D400 cover and frame 
as SEWFSD/0503.02

no  £       450.00 -£                 

S500/31 150mm internal diameter 'thermoplastic structured wall 
pipe' drain specified as Type A of SEWFSD/0502.05 in trench, 
depth to invert not exceeding 2 metres

m 52.00£          -£                 

S500/44
225mm internal diameter 'thermoplastic structured wall 
pipe' drain specified as Type A of SEWFSD/0502.05 in trench, 
depth to invert exceeding 2m but not exceeding 4 metres.

m 94.00£          -£                 

S500/289 Precast concrete chamber Type B with D400 cover and frame 
depth to invert exceeding 2 metre but not exceeding 3 
metres as SEWFSD/0502.01.

no 1,800.00£    -£                 

S500/307 Renewal of up to 150 x 150mm Min class D400 stop valve 
cover and frame on brick or precast concrete chamber.

2 no 80.00£          160.00£           

S500/310 Renewal of up to 600 x 600mm Min class D400 cover and 
frame on brick or precast concrete chamber.

no 50.50£          -£                 

160.00£           

Belle Vue to Bell Street
Drainage and Service Ducts

Page:3 To Section Summary

Tudalen 126



Item Description Qty Unit Rate Total
Series 600
Earthworks

S600/3 Excavation of unacceptable material Class U1A in cutting and 
other excavation.

32 m3 62.00£          1,984.00£       

S600/20 Extra over excavation for excavation in Hard Material 3 m3 26.00£          78.00£             

S600/14 Disposal of unacceptable material Class U1A. 32 m3 27.00£          864.00£           

To Section Summary 2,926.00£       

Belle Vue to Bell Street
Earthworks

Page:4

Tudalen 127



Item Description Qty Unit Rate Total
Series 700 Pavements 
Pavements.

S700/1 Type 1 200mm unbound mixture sub-base 32 m3 36.00£          1,152.00£       

Rouge HRA 55/10 laid 40mm thick As per TSCS 157 m2 13.00£          2,041.00£       

S700/12 AC 20 HDM Binder 60mm thick 157 m2 14.00£          2,198.00£       

S700/2 AC 32 H/D Base 100mm thick 157 m2 18.00£          2,826.00£       

S700/45 milling pavement 0 - 50mm thick 157 m2 2.45£            384.65£           

S700/46 milling pavement 51 - 100mm thick 157 m2 2.85£            447.45£           

S700/47 milling pavement 101 - 150mm thick 157 m2 3.83£            601.31£           

S700/48 milling pavement 151 - 250mm thick 157 m2 5.45£            855.65£           

S700/40 Colbond 50 bond coat 314 m2 0.75£            235.50£           

10,741.56£     Page:5 To Section Summary

Belle Vue to Bell Street
Pavements.

Tudalen 128



Item Description Qty Unit Rate Total
Series 1100
Kerbs, Footways and Paved Areas
Kerbs, Channels, Edgings, Combined Drainage and Kerb 
Blocks and Linear Drainage Channel Systems

Rogue 400x400x65mm paving slabs in footway on granular Type 1 
sub-base 150mm thick and 30mm thick clean sharp sand 
bedding layer; joints brushed with kiln dried sand

m2 74.00£          -£                 

S1100/60 Footway Type A1 comprising of granular material Type 1 sub-
base 150mm thick, AC 20 dense bin 100/150rec 40mm thick, 
AC 6 surf 160/220 20mm thick

m2 27.00£          -£                 

S1100/21 Precast concrete kerb(s) Type DL1 (dropper) laid straight or 
curved exceeding 12 metres. m 25.00£          -£                 

S1100/24
Precast concrete kerb(s) Type DR1 (dropper) laid straight or 
curved exceeding 12 metres. m 33.00£          -£                 

S1100/07
Precast concrete kerb(s) Type BN laid to curves not exceeding 
12 metres. m 30.00£          -£                 

S1100/32 Precast concrete channel(s) Type CF (fluted) laid straight or 
curved exceeding 12 metres radius.

m 39.00£          -£                 

S1100/30 precast concrete channel(s) Type CD (dished), laid straight or 
curved exceeding 12 metres radius.

m 32.00£          -£                 

S1100/2 precast concrete kerb(s) Type HB2 laid straight or curved 
exceeding 12 metres radius

m 30.00£          -£                 

S1100/34 precast concrete edging(s) Type EF laid straight or curved 
exceeding 12 metres radius

m 17.00£          -£                 

-£                 

Belle Vue to Bell Street
Kerbs, Footways and Paved Areas

Page:6 To Section Summary

Tudalen 129



Description Amount

Page : 1 Series 100 3,420.00£       

Page : 2 Series 200 -£                 

Page : 3 Series 500 160.00£           

Page : 4 Series 600 2,926.00£       

Page : 5 Series 700 10,741.56£     

Page : 6 Series 1100 -£                 

17,247.56£     Page:7 To General Summary

Belle Vue to Bell Street
Cost Summary

Tudalen 130



Item Description Qty Unit Rate Total
Series 100
Preliminaries

Temporary Accommodation

S100/9 Erection of offices and messes for the Contractor 1 item 350.00£       1,000.00£       

S100/10 Servicing of offices and messes for the Contractor 9 wk 450.00£       4,050.00£       

S100/11 Dismantling of stores and workshops for the Contractor 1 item 200.00£       200.00£           

S100/12 Erection of stores and workshops for the Contractor 1 item 350.00£       350.00£           

S100/13 Servicing of stores and workshops for the contractor 9 wk 450.00£       4,050.00£       

S100/14 Dismantling of stores and workshops for the Contractor 1 item 200.00£       200.00£           

Traffic Safety and Management

S100/17 Traffic safety & management on a single carriageway, with 
speeds of 30mph or less during the day

63 day 110.00£       6,930.00£       

16,780.00£     

1 - 8 Belle Vue, Trecynon
Preliminaries

Page:1 To Section Summary

Tudalen 131



Item Description Qty Unit Rate Total
Series 200
Site Clearance

Take up or down and set aside for reuse or remove to store 
off site

S200/73 Take up or down & remove to tip off site paving/ slabs 111 m2 7.00£            777.00£           

S200/75
Take up or down and remove to tip off site precast concrete 
kerbs, granite kerbs, concrete channelling and edgings

130 m 7.00£            910.00£           

1,687.00£       Page:2 To Section Summary

Site Clearance
1 - 8 Belle Vue, Trecynon

Tudalen 132



Item Description Qty Unit Rate Total
Series 500 cont
Drainage and Service Ducts

S500/224 Connection of 225mm dia pipe to existing 225mm dia pipe 
depth to invert exceeding 2 metres but not exceeding 4 
metres

1 no 180.00£       180.00£           

S500/267 Connection of 150 mm internal diameter pipe to existing 
chamber depth to invert not exceeding 2 metres.

2 no 100.00£       200.00£           

S500/295 Precast concrete trapped SG gully with D400 cover and frame 
as SEWFSD/0503.02

2 no  £       450.00 900.00£           

S500/31 150mm internal diameter 'thermoplastic structured wall 
pipe' drain specified as Type A of SEWFSD/0502.05 in trench, 
depth to invert not exceeding 2 metres

38 m 52.00£          1,976.00£       

S500/44
225mm internal diameter 'thermoplastic structured wall 
pipe' drain specified as Type A of SEWFSD/0502.05 in trench, 
depth to invert exceeding 2m but not exceeding 4 metres.

41 m 94.00£          3,854.00£       

S500/289 Precast concrete chamber Type B with D400 cover and frame 
depth to invert exceeding 2 metre but not exceeding 3 
metres as SEWFSD/0502.01.

6 no 1,800.00£    10,800.00£     

S500/307 Renewal of up to 150 x 150mm Min class D400 stop valve 
cover and frame on brick or precast concrete chamber.

14 no 80.00£          1,120.00£       

S500/310 Renewal of up to 600 x 600mm Min class D400 cover and 
frame on brick or precast concrete chamber.

3 no 50.50£          151.50£           

19,181.50£     

1 - 8 Belle Vue, Trecynon
Drainage and Service Ducts

Page:3 To Section Summary

Tudalen 133



Item Description Qty Unit Rate Total
Series 600
Earthworks

S600/3 Excavation of unacceptable material Class U1A in cutting and 
other excavation.

69 m3 62.00£          4,278.00£       

S600/20 Extra over excavation for excavation in Hard Material 7 m3 26.00£          182.00£           

S600/14 Disposal of unacceptable material Class U1A. 69 m3 27.00£          1,863.00£       

To Section Summary 6,323.00£       

1 - 8 Belle Vue, Trecynon
Earthworks

Page:4

Tudalen 134



Item Description Qty Unit Rate Total
Series 700 Pavements 
Pavements.

S700/1 Type 1 200mm unbound mixture sub-base 69 m3 36.00£          2,484.00£       

Rouge HRA 55/10 laid 40mm thick As per TSCS 346 m2 13.00£          4,498.00£       

S700/12 AC 20 HDM Binder 60mm thick 346 m2 14.00£          4,844.00£       

S700/2 AC 32 H/D Base 100mm thick 346 m2 18.00£          6,228.00£       

S700/45 milling pavement 0 - 50mm thick 346 m2 2.45£            847.70£           

S700/46 milling pavement 51 - 100mm thick 346 m2 2.85£            986.10£           

S700/47 milling pavement 101 - 150mm thick 346 m2 3.83£            1,325.18£       

S700/48 milling pavement 151 - 250mm thick 346 m2 5.45£            1,885.70£       

S700/40 Colbond 50 bond coat 692 m2 0.75£            519.00£           

23,617.68£     Page:5 To Section Summary

1 - 8 Belle Vue, Trecynon
Pavements.

Tudalen 135



Item Description Qty Unit Rate Total
Series 1100
Kerbs, Footways and Paved Areas
Kerbs, Channels, Edgings, Combined Drainage and Kerb 
Blocks and Linear Drainage Channel Systems

Rogue 400x400x65mm paving slabs in footway on granular Type 1 
sub-base 150mm thick and 30mm thick clean sharp sand 
bedding layer; joints brushed with kiln dried sand

110 m2 74.00£          8,140.00£       

S1100/60 Footway Type A1 comprising of granular material Type 1 sub-
base 150mm thick, AC 20 dense bin 100/150rec 40mm thick, 
AC 6 surf 160/220 20mm thick

0 m2 27.00£          -£                 

S1100/21 Precast concrete kerb(s) Type DL1 (dropper) laid straight or 
curved exceeding 12 metres. 4 m 25.00£          100.00£           

S1100/24
Precast concrete kerb(s) Type DR1 (dropper) laid straight or 
curved exceeding 12 metres. 4 m 33.00£          132.00£           

S1100/07
Precast concrete kerb(s) Type BN laid to curves not exceeding 
12 metres. 4 m 30.00£          120.00£           

S1100/32 Precast concrete channel(s) Type CF (fluted) laid straight or 
curved exceeding 12 metres radius.

25 m 39.00£          975.00£           

S1100/30 precast concrete channel(s) Type CD (dished), laid straight or 
curved exceeding 12 metres radius.

m 32.00£          -£                 

S1100/2 precast concrete kerb(s) Type HB2 laid straight or curved 
exceeding 12 metres radius

110 m 30.00£          3,300.00£       

S1100/34 precast concrete edging(s) Type EF laid straight or curved 
exceeding 12 metres radius

50 m 17.00£          850.00£           

13,617.00£     

1 - 8 Belle Vue, Trecynon
Kerbs, Footways and Paved Areas

Page:6 To Section Summary

Tudalen 136



Description Amount

Page : 1 Series 100 16,780.00£     

Page : 2 Series 200 1,687.00£       

Page : 3 Series 500 19,181.50£     

Page : 4 Series 600 6,323.00£       

Page : 5 Series 700 23,617.68£     

Page : 6 Series 1100 13,617.00£     

81,206.18£     Page:7 To General Summary

1 - 8 Belle Vue, Trecynon
Cost Summary

Tudalen 137



Tudalen wag



 
 

 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 CABINET 

 
21st SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
21ST CENTURY SCHOOLS PROGRAMME – PROPOSAL TO IMPROVE 

EDUCATION PROVISION FOR YSGOL GYNRADD GYMRAEG LLYN-Y-FORWYN 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION AND INCLUSION SERVICES IN 
DISCUSSION WITH THE CABINET MEMBER FOR EDUCATION (COUNCILLOR 
MRS J ROSSER)  
 
Author(s): Gaynor Davies, Director of Education and Inclusion Services  

Andrea Richards, Service Director of 21st Century Schools and 
Transformation 
 
 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to advise Members of the outcome of the recent 

publication of a Statutory Notice in respect of the proposal to: 
 

 Carry out a regulated alteration to Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Llyn-y-Forwyn 
(“YGG Llyn-y-Forwyn”), by way of transferring the school to a new building 
on a new site. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
It is recommended that Cabinet: 
 

2.1 Note that no objections or comments were received in response to the 
publication of the statutory notice to progress this proposal. 

 
2.2 Agree to implement the proposal with no amendments.  
 
2.3 Agree to receive further reports as the project develops and progresses through 

the Welsh Government’s 21st Century Schools and Colleges approval 
processes. 

 
3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 To implement the proposal in accordance with the process outlined in Welsh 

Government legislative guidance (the School Organisation Code). 
 

Tudalen 139

Agendwm 7



 

3.2 To increase capacity and improve the quality of the Welsh medium primary 
education provision available to learners in the Rhondda Fach area of Rhondda 
Cynon Taf.  

 
4. BACKGROUND 

 
4.1 Members will recall that, at the meeting of the Cabinet held on 28th January 

2021, approval was given to begin a process to formally consult on a proposal 
to carry out a regulated alteration to Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Llyn-y-Forwyn 
(“YGG Llyn-y-Forwyn”), by way of transferring the school to a new building on 
a new site. 

 
4.2 Following the conclusion of the consultation period, and at a subsequent 

meeting of the Cabinet held on 17th June 2021, a decision was taken to 
progress to the next phase of the statutory process and to publish the required 
Statutory Notice. 

 
4.3 The Statutory Notice was published on 25th June 2021 which triggered the 

commencement of the Objection Period.  This ran for a period of 28 days.  No 
objections or comments were submitted during this period.  

 
5. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS/SOCIO-ECONOMIC DUTY 

 
5.1 The Council has to satisfy its public sector duties under the Equalities Act 2010 

(including specific Welsh public sector duties).  Pursuant to these legal duties 
Councils must in making decisions, have due regard to the need to (1) eliminate 
unlawful discrimination, (2) advance equality of opportunity and (3) foster good 
relations on the basis of protected characteristics. 

 
5.2 Equality and Community Impact Assessments have been prepared in respect 

of this proposal and published on the Council’s website together with a 
consultation document that outlines the proposal in further detail and in 
accordance with the requirements of Welsh Government’s School Organisation 
Code (2nd Edition) (011/2018) (the “Code”). 

 
6.      WELSH LANGUAGE IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 A Welsh  Impact Assessment has been prepared in respect of this proposal and 

published on the Council’s website together with a consultation document that 
outlines the proposal in further detail and in accordance with the requirements 
of Welsh Government’s School Organisation Code (2nd Edition) (011/2018) 
(the “Code”). 

 
7. CONSULTATION 
 
7.1 The consultation processes in respect of this proposal have been undertaken 

under the arrangements outlined within the Code and the ‘Changes to the 
School Organisation Code in response to the coronavirus outbreak’ which were 
updated on 8th January 2021.  
 

Tudalen 140



 

7.2 The consultation took place between 1st March 2021 and 30th April 2021 and 
full details of this process were published in a Consultation Report, which was 
presented at the meeting of Cabinet held on 17th June 2021 and subsequently 
published on the Council website. 
 

8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

8.1 Based on current estimates it is proposed that circa £9M is required to build the 
new school to ensure the pupils of YGG Llyn-y-Forwyn have a high quality, 
viable and sustainable 21st Century learning environment.  Welsh Government 
has recently approved an increase to the funding envelope for the  Council’s 
Strategic Outline Programme (SOP) for Band B as part of the 21st Century 
Schools and Colleges Programme, and in accordance with the approval 
process, business cases will be submitted to the Welsh Government to secure 
the investment required to deliver this project. If successful,  a 65% Capital 
contribution from Welsh Government will be made. It is proposed that the 
Council’s 35% share of the capital costs will be met through prudential 
borrowing.  

 
8.2 Any revenue and capital costs that accrue in preparing financial business cases 

for Welsh Government approval will be met from within existing budgets. 
 

9. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 
 
9.1 Part 1 of the Education Act 1996 (“the 1996 Act”) imposes a number of general 

duties on all local authorities in Wales.  The general duty in section 13 of the 
1996 Act is to contribute (so far as the Council’s powers enable them to do so) 
towards the spiritual, moral, mental and physical development of the community 
by securing that efficient primary education and secondary education are 
available to meet the needs of the population of their area. 

 
9.2 Section 13A(3) of the 1996 Act states that a local authority in Wales must 

ensure that their relevant education functions and their relevant training 
functions are exercised by the authority with a view to promoting high standards 
and promoting the fulfilment of learning potential by every person to whom the 
subsection applies, including those who are of compulsory school age or are 
below school age and are registered as pupils at schools maintained by the 
authority. 

 
9.3 Section 14 of the 1996 Act then provides that the Council shall secure that 

sufficient schools for providing primary education and secondary education are 
available in the Council’s area. Schools available for an area shall not be 
regarded as sufficient unless they are sufficient in number, character and 
equipment to provide for all pupils the opportunity for appropriate education. 

 
9.4 Appropriate education means education which offers such variety of instruction 

and training as may be desirable in view of (a) the pupils’ different ages, abilities 
and aptitudes; and (b) the different periods for which they may be expected to 
remain at school, including practical instruction and training appropriate to their 
different needs. 

Tudalen 141



 

 
9.5 Powers for Councils to develop school organisation proposals are governed by 

the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 and the Code.  Local 
authorities must, when exercising functions under Part 3 of the 2013 Act, act in 
accordance with any relevant requirements contained in the Code and must 
have regard to any relevant guidelines contained in it.  A copy of the Code is 
found here: 
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/schoolorganisation-
code-second-edition.pdf 

 
10. LINKS TO THE COUNCIL’S CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES 

AND THE WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT 
 
10.1 There are links to RCTCBC’s Corporate Plan for the period between 2020 to 

2024, specifically the priority: 

 Prosperity – Creating the opportunity for people and businesses to be 
innovative, entrepreneurial and fulfil their potential and prosper 
o Ensuring we have good schools so all children have access to a 

great education. 
 

10.2 Due regard has been made to all seven well-being goals and the Five Ways of 
Working, as contained within the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 which requires the Council to think about the long-term impact of 
decisions, on communities to prevent consistent issues such as poverty, health 
inequalities and climate change. 
 
This proposal would contribute to achieving the wellbeing goals by: 

 

 Improving sustainability of school buildings in the Council portfolio through 
a commitment to achieving a zero carbon building and building to 
BREEAM excellent. 

 Providing additional school places to meet Welsh Government targets and 
to promote the Welsh language in the community. 

 Opening new community facilities that would create opportunities for local 
people to utilise.   

 
This proposal would achieve the five ways of working by: 

 

 Creating a new school environment that can deliver the New Curriculum 
for Wales as set out in the national mission statement. 

 Provide first class learning facilities for pupils and the wider community 
and contribute towards a healthier Wales by providing additional outdoor 
sport facilities for pupils. 

 Contributing towards a prosperous Wales by committing to opportunities 
for local tradespeople and to use local resources, wherever possible, to 
build the new school. 

 Engaging with the community on a thorough consultation with 
opportunities for all stakeholders in the community to engage throughout 
the process. 

 

Tudalen 142

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/schoolorganisation-code-second-edition.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/schoolorganisation-code-second-edition.pdf


 

10.3 An Equality Impact Assessment, including further detail on the contribution of 
the proposal to the Wellbeing of Future generations Act, formed an integral part 
of the consultation document.  This was and is still available for all stakeholders 
to view.  A Welsh Language Impact Assessment was also undertaken as part 
of the consultation and again, this is still available to view on the Council 
website. 

 
11. CONCLUSION 
 
11.1 The proposal to construct a new school build upon the momentum gathered to 

improve Welsh medium education provision throughout the County Borough. 
This project will provide significantly improved facilities and increase the 
number of pupil places available.  

 
11.2 This proposed investment for YGG Llyn-y-Forwyn provides the opportunity for 

more learners to benefit from improved educational facilities taught through the 
medium of Welsh.  It is recommended therefore that Members formally approve 
the proposal as consulted upon with no amendments allowing the project to 
progress.  

 
 
 

 

 

Other Information:-  

Relevant Scrutiny Committee-  

Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee  

Background Papers-  

None  

Tudalen 143



 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972  

AS AMENDED BY  

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985  

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL  

CABINET 
 

21st of SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION AND INCLUSION SERVICES IN 
DISCUSSION WITH THE CABINET MEMBER FOR EDUCATION (COUNCILLOR 
MRS J ROSSER)  
 
 

Item:   

Background Papers 
 

None 
 

 
Officer to contact:   
Lisa Howell, 21st Century Schools Business and Organisation   
01443 744062 
 

Tudalen 144



       

 

 

   
 
 
 
 

 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
CABINET 

 
DESIGNATION AS A COUNTRY PARK OF LAND AT CLYDACH VALE,  

TONYPANDY CURRENTLY KNOWN AS CWM CLYDACH COUNTRYSIDE 
PARK 

 
21ST SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
A REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE ESTATES IN 
DISCUSSION WITH THE CABINET MEMBER FOR CORPORATE 
SERVICES, COUNCILLOR MARK NORRIS AND THE DIRECTOR OF 
PUBLIC HEALTH, PROTECTION AND COMMUNITY SERVICES IN 
DISCUSSION WITH THE CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT, 
LEISURE AND HERITAGE SERVICES, COUNCILLOR ANN CRIMMINGS.  

 
Authors:  Kelly Daniel, Estates Surveyor: Acquisition and Disposals, 
Corporate Estates and Michelle Gibbs, Facility Development Manager, 
Leisure and Parks. 

 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 

1.1 To seek authority to designate land currently known as Cwm Clydach 
Countryside Park at Clydach Vale, Tonypandy (within the Rhondda Fawr 
Valley) as a Country Park in accordance with the provisions of the 
Countryside Act 1968. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
It is recommended that Cabinet: 

 
2.1 Approve the designation of an area of land currently known as Cwm 

Clydach Countryside Park, measuring approximately 67.2 ha / 166 acres 
at Clydach Vale, Tonypandy as ‘Cwm Clydach Country Park’ in 
accordance with the provisions of the Countryside Act 1968.  

 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
3.1 The designation of the land will provide the County Borough with a new 

Country Park within the Rhondda Valley which will complement the 
existing Dare Valley Country Park in the Cynon Valley. 
 

Tudalen 145

Agendwm 8



       

 

 

3.2 The Country Park designation will allow the Council to erect Tourist 
Destination signs, which are brown in colour, to identify the area’s specific 
status and promote the area to visitors. The Tourism Service would 
promote the location as part of a wider offer to visitors of the park, which 
will contribute to the ‘outdoor activity’ theme specified within the Council’s 
Tourism Strategy. 

 
3.3 The designation of the land as a Country Park will allow the Council and 

partners to apply for external grant funding to enhance opportunities for 
residents and visitors and which will have a direct improvement on health 
and wellbeing of people using the Country Park. 

 
3.4 The Council has developed a working partnership with both Friends of 

Cwm Clydach Country Park and Cambrian Village Trust (CVT) in relation 
to the future developments of the land both at the proposed county park 
site and the new 3G sports pitch in Clydach Vale.  The designation will 
support both organisations that work in partnership with the Council to 
further enhance and develop the land for both residents and visitors. 

 
4. BACKGROUND  

 
4.1 The land currently known as Cwm Clydach Countryside Park is identified 

in Appendix 1 of this report and comprises the area outlined in red on the 
map.  
 

4.2 The Park is located on the site of the old Cambrian colliery, an area of 
outstanding natural beauty.  There are two lakes located on the site known 
locally as “top lake” and “bottom lake”, along with a number of small 
waterfalls.  Located to the East of the lakes is the Cambrian Lakeside Café 
Bar with recently resurfaced free public car parking area. 

 
4.3 The land was reclaimed by the Welsh Development Agency, now Welsh 

Government in 1984 after the land was acquired by the Authority from the 
National Coal Board and Coal Industries Ltd.  Part of that whole area has 
been redeveloped to provide commercial and industrial accommodation 
including the County Borough Council’s civic centre and ancillary office 
accommodation. These areas of the land will be excluded from any 
country park designation and are shown outside the red line area on the 
map. 

 
4.4 The land shaded green on the plan in Appendix 1 is part of the Healthy 

Hillside Project currently being managed by Countryside Section. The 
project is a multi-agency partnership focussed on providing land 
management solutions to reduce grass fires in South Wales delivering 
multiple environmental benefits. The land at Clydach Vale is one of the 
project sites identified for development of a long-term conservation 
grazing project to test the sustainability of using grazing to deliver grass 
fire prevention. Existing Project Staff will continue to take forward the co-
ordination and delivery of the work. 

Tudalen 146



       

 

 

 
4.5 A Site of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC) has been designated 

on much of the undeveloped land which comprises well-established 
woodlands and vegetation consistent with the use of the land for leisure 
purposes. 

 
5. CURRENT STATUS OF THE LAND 
 
5.1 The Council’s property legal team completed an examination of the 

Council’s title deeds for the land (report on title) shown edged red in 
Appendix 1, on the 14th January 2021, the findings of such are as     
follows: 

 

5.2 The land comprises of several registered titles, most of which are 
registered at the HM Land Registry to Rhondda Cynon Taf County 
Borough Council under the class of absolute freehold title, with the 
exception of one parcel of land where the class of title is possessory title 
to Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council. Subject to the decision 
on the designation of the Country Park, it is proposed that the Council 
make an application to Land Registry to upgrade this parcel to title 
absolute. Absolute freehold title is the best class of title available. 

  
5.3 The land is subject to various rights and covenants, including restrictions 

in respect of developments in certain areas where mine shafts are located. 
Any planned developments will need to satisfy any conditions and adhere 
to any restrictions contained in the deed for that parcel of land. 

 
5.4 There are various agreements on the land including historic grazing 

licences and allotment agreements. The designation of the area as a 
Country Park would have no adverse impact on these licences and 
agreements. 

 
5.5 The Lakeside café and adjacent car park are leased to the ‘Trustees of 

Cambrian Village’ Trust and ‘the Cambrian Village Trust’, a registered 
charity, respectively. The designation of the area as a Country Park would 
have no adverse impact on these leases.  

 
5.6 There is nothing apparent within the deed wallet restricting the land being 

designated as a Country Park. 
 

5.7 The Countryside Act 1968 under which the designation is being made, 
does not authorise any development or change of use for which planning 
is required. Planning permission would only be required if there is a 
material change of use of the land.  
 

5.8 The majority of the land surrounding the Countryside park (outside of the 
site location plan outlined in red on the map) is registered under a HM 
Land Registry Title to the National Assembly for Wales.  Any request to 

Tudalen 147



       

 

 

further extend into land that is not within the ownership of the Council will 
need to be agreed by way of a Deed with the registered owner. 

 
6. FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS 

 
6.1 The Council has developed a partnership with Cambrian Village Trust over 

a number of years.  The organisation links with a range of Council 
departments including Leisure, Parks and Countryside, the RCT Together 
Community Development Team and Adult Services. 

 
6.2 Cambrian Village Trust has successfully delivered a number of key large 

capital projects in the Park and surrounding areas, such as the 
development of the lakeside café and office accommodation, the FIFA 
accredited 3G pitch and in partnership with the Cwmclydach Community 
Development Trust, the hydropower scheme.  Talks to deliver a new 
hydropower scheme are ongoing with other partners. 

 
6.3 Friends of Cwm Clydach Country Park are working alongside Cambrian 

Village Trust to assist in the general maintenance of the area undertaking 
litter picks and carrying out repair works to fencing and paths.  Both groups 
are also a partner in the Groundwork Well-being Project (Conservation 
Workshops) being delivered weekly at this site. 

 
6.4 Cambrian Village Trust has developed a Strategic Board with the Council 

and other key partners such as ‘RHA Wales’ (Rhondda Housing 
Association), the Friends of Group and other local groups and 
organisations. Council representatives include Leisure, Parks and 
Countryside, Adult Services, Tourism, Heritage and Visitor Attractions, 
Prosperity and Development and the RCT Together Community 
Development Team. 

 
6.5 The focus of the Board is to develop a vision and strategic plan for the 

proposed Country Park focusing on tourism, heritage biodiversity and 
physical activity.  It will also identify key large scale capital projects for 
development in the future. This strategic plan will contribute to the 
Council’s commitment to the climate change. 

 

7. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS / SOCIO ECONOMIC 
DUTY 

 
7.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EqlA) screening form has been 

completed for the proposal. 
 
7.2 The proposed designation has no impact on the protected characteristics 

therefore a full assessment is not required at this time. 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 148



       

 

 

8. WELSH LANGUAGE IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

 

8.1 A Welsh Language Impact Assessment has been carried out on this 
proposal. 

 
8.2 This phase is for the designation of Country Park status therefore the 

proposal has neutral impact on the welsh language. 
 
9. CONSULTATION 

 
9.1 There is no legal requirement set out in the Countryside Act 1968 to 

undertake a public consultation as part of the process to designate an 
area as a Country Park.  
 

9.2 Initial consultation has been carried out with the local Councillor and local 
community interest groups, notably Cambrian Village Trust and Friends of 
Cwm Clydach Country Park regarding the proposed designation. All 
stakeholders were in support of the proposal outlined in this report.  

 
9.3 Although wider community consultation on the proposed designation is 

not required at this stage, consultation on any future developments and 
projects will take place as required.   

 
9.4 The Councils Tourism and Planning Services have been consulted and 

commented that the provision of an improved open green space would be 
beneficial to the health and wellbeing of both visitors and residents in the 
area. 

 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 

 
10.1 The designation of the land as a Country Park will enable the Council and 

recently established Strategic Board to apply for external funding to 
enhance and develop the site. This will be the primary mechanism to fund 
the development of the Country Park.  

 
10.2 The initial designation of the Park will incur additional costs in respect of 

brown tourist signs, interpretation / directional signage and maintenance. 
An allocation of £50k has been set aside to support this work and will be 
managed from within existing resources. 

 
10.3 Thereafter, as part of the on-going development of the Country Park, 

should proposals require additional resources, these will be subject to 
further reports for consideration / decision, as appropriate.   

 
11. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 

 
11.1 The Countryside Act 1968 provides that a local authority shall have power, 

on any site in the countryside appearing to them suitable or adaptable for 

Tudalen 149



       

 

 

the powers set out in section 6(1), to provide a Country Park, that is to say 
a park or pleasure ground to be used for that purpose.  

 
12. LINKS TO THE CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE 

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT 

 

12.1 This proposal directly supports the Council’s 2020-2024 Corporate Plan – 
‘Making a Difference’ where there is a commitment to Investing in our town 
centres, bringing jobs and homes into our town centres to create vibrant, 
thriving places people wish to live, work and socialise. 

 
12.2 Specifically, the designation of land at Clydach Vale as a Country Park will 

contribute to the Council’s corporate priorities: 
 

 Ensuring People: are independent, healthy and successful;  

 Creating Places: where people are proud to live, work and play;  

 Enabling Prosperity: creating the opportunity for people and 

businesses to: be innovative; be entrepreneurial; and fulfil their 

potential and prosper.  

12.3 Future works, led by Cambrian Village Trust, in partnership with the 
Council and Friends of Cwm Clydach Country Park, will help develop a 
vision document and future plan for the park, linked in with corporate and 
national priorities. 

13. CONCLUSION 

 

13.1 The report sets out a proposal to designate an area of reclaimed land as 
a Country Park, further promoting the area as a place for residents and 
tourists to visit and enjoy the countryside. 

 
13.2 An increase in visitors to the Country Park and wider region will assist to 

increase footfall in local towns boosting the local economy. 
 
13.3 The increased footfall to the Country Park and continued delivery of 

outdoor activities and education opportunities, will help support the health 
and wellbeing of both local residents and park visitors. 

 
 

 
Other Information:- 
 
Relevant Scrutiny Committee 
 
Public Services Delivery, Communities and Prosperity 

 
  

Tudalen 150



       

 

 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

 
AS AMENDED BY 

 
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 

 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
CABINET 

 
 

21ST SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

DESIGNATION AS A COUNTRY PARK OF LAND AT CLYDACH VALE, 
TONYPANDY, CURRENTLY KNOWN AS CWM CLYDACH COUNTRYSIDE 

PARK 
 

 
A REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE ESTATES IN 
DISCUSSION WITH THE CABINET MEMBER FOR CORPORATE 
SERVICES, COUNCILLOR MARK NORRIS AND THE DIRECTOR OF 
PUBLIC HEALTH, PROTECTION AND COMMUNITY SERVICES IN 
DISCUSSION WITH THE CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT, 
LEISURE AND HERITAGE SERVICES, COUNCILLOR ANN CRIMMINGS.  

 
 
Background Papers 

 
None  
 
 
Officers to contact:   

 
Kelly Daniel, Estates Surveyor: Acquisition and Disposals, Corporate Estates  
Michelle Gibbs, Facility Development Manager, Leisure and Park 
  

Tudalen 151



       

 

 

 
Appendix 1 - Site location plan: 

 
 

 

T
udalen 152



 

 
 
 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

CABINET 
  

21st SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

COUNCIL CORPORATE PLAN – INVESTMENT PRIORITIES 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE & DIGITAL SERVICES IN 
CONSULTATION WITH THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL, CLLR A MORGAN 
 
AUTHOR: Barrie Davies, Director of Finance & Digital Services (01443 424026) 
 
 
1.  PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  
 
1.1 This report sets out the position regarding the opportunity for Cabinet to propose to 

Council to further invest in the Council’s priority areas, aligned to the Corporate 
Plan, “Making a Difference” 2020 – 2024. 

 
 
2.  RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

It is recommended that Cabinet agree:  
 
2.1 To review and if acceptable propose the additional investment and funding 

arrangements as set out in the report at Appendix A to Council at its meeting on 
29th September 2021. 
 
 

3.  BACKGROUND  
 
3.1 The importance of investment in areas supporting key Corporate Plan priorities has 

already been recognised by the Council with £123M of additional resources, over 
and above normal Capital Programme allocations, invested since October 2015. 
 

3.2 The attached report proposes to continue to invest a further £6.5M in key priorities 
which can be funded by existing resources already set aside for investment in 
infrastructure. 

 

4. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS / SOCIO-ECONOMIC DUTY 
 
4.1 An Equality Impact Assessment is not needed because the contents of this report 

relate solely to the proposed report to Council at Appendix A. 
 
 
 

Tudalen 153

Agendwm 9



 

5. WELSH LANGUAGE IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 There are no welsh language implications because the contents of the report relate 

solely to the proposed report to Council at Appendix A 
 
 
6. CONSULTATION  
 
6.1 There are no consultation requirements as a result of the recommendations in this 

report. 
  
 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 All financial implications are included in the proposed report to Council at Appendix 

A. 
 
 
8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED  
 
8.1 There are no legal implications as a result of the recommendations set out in the 

report. 
 
 
9. LINKS TO THE CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE WELL-

BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT. 
 
9.1 The proposed investment areas are in line with all the Corporate Plan priorities and 

the Council’s five workstreams and contributes to all of the seven national wellbeing 
goals. 

 
 
10. CONCLUSION 
 
10.1 The draft report at Appendix A sets out the proposed investment areas and funding 

arrangements. 
 
 
 

******************* 

Tudalen 154



 

 
 
 
 

Appendix A 
 

 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
MUNICIPAL YEAR 2021 – 2022 

 
COUNCIL 

29TH SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

COUNCIL CORPORATE PLAN – INVESTMENT PRIORITIES 

 
REPORT OF THE CABINET 
 
AUTHOR: Barrie Davies, Director of Finance and Digital Services (01443 424026) 
 
 
1.  PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  
 
1.1 This report sets out the position regarding the opportunity for the Council to further 

invest in its priority areas, aligned to the Corporate Plan, “Making a Difference” 
2020 – 2024. 

 
 
2.  RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
2.1 It is recommended that Council:  

 
2.1.1 Review and if acceptable agree the additional investment and funding 

arrangements as set out in paragraph 4 which, if agreed, will be incorporated 
into the Council’s Capital Programme. 

 
 

3.  BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The importance of investment in areas supporting key Corporate Plan priorities has 

already been recognised by the Council with £123M of additional resources, over 
and above normal Capital Programme allocations, invested since October 2015. 
 

3.2 A further opportunity for investment is now available for consideration. 
 
 
4. ADDITIONAL INVESTMENT 
 
4.1 In line with the Council’s Corporate Plan priorities, additional investment is now 

proposed across the following areas.   
 

Tudalen 155



 

Investment Priority £M 

Highways & Roads 1.500 

Highways Structures 0.500 

Parks Structures 0.500 

A4119 Dualling 2.000 

Llanharan Bypass 2.000 

Total Investment 6.500 

 

4.2 The Council’s Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ending 31st March 2021 
(presented elsewhere on this agenda) show the Council has revenue stream 
earmarked reserves at the 31st March 2021 of £73.791M which are set aside for a 
variety of purposes. In addition, there are specific reserves relating to Capital 
Funding, Insurance and Treasury Management. 
 

4.3 The Investment/Infrastructure reserve is a specific reserve to fund the cost of 
maintaining and enhancing infrastructure across the County Borough.  The balance 
of this reserve at 31st March 2021 was £9.497M, therefore the proposed investment 
priorities shown at paragraph 4.1 can be fully funded from this reserve. 

 
4.4 Further detail on the proposed additional investment is shown below.   

 
a) Highways & Roads (£1.500M) 

 
Funding will continue to support the enhanced investment in the Council’s 
largest asset, building on sustained increases in annual funding for highways 
capital maintenance over recent years. 
 

b) Highways Structures (£0.500M) 
 
Funding will allow the continuation of the enhanced programme of capital 
repairs and maintenance of over 1,500 structures including, bridges, culverts, 
retaining walls, reinforced earth embankments and rock anchors.  These 
structures are often critical to the continued safe operation of the highway 
network.   
 

c) Parks Structures (£0.500M) 
 
Funding will allow the continuation of the enhanced programme of capital 
repairs and maintenance of footbridges, retaining walls and other structures 
within our parks and countryside.   
 

d) A4119 Dualling Coedely to Ynysmaerdy (£2.000M) 
 
Additional funding will allow the continuation of the scheme through to the next 
stages.  Detailed design is ongoing, Dwr Cymru Welsh Water sewer diversion 
works are progressing well and due for completion in September 2021, tender 
documents are at final review stage and due for issue in September 2021 and 
a public inquiry is scheduled for November 2021. 
 

 

e) Llanharan Bypass (£2.000M) 

Tudalen 156



 

 
Additional funding will allow the continuation of the scheme through to the next 
stages.  Ecology surveys, ground investigations and preliminary designs are 
complete.  Pre-planning application consultation is due to be launched late 
September 2021 with full planning application anticipated for early 2022. 
 
The above investments support the Corporate Plan priority of Places: where 
people are proud to live, work and play. 
 

 
5. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS / SOCIO-ECONOMIC DUTY 
 
5.1 There are no equality and diversity implications as a result of the recommendations 

set out in the report.  
 
 
6. WELSH LANGUAGE IMPLICATIONS  
 
6.1 There are no welsh language implications as a result of the recommendations set 

out in the report. 
 
 
7. CONSULTATION  
 
7.1 There are no consultation requirements as a result of the recommendations set out 

in the report. Subject to the decision of Council, consultation will be undertaken on 
specific areas, as appropriate, as part of developing/implementing projects.  

 
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
  
8.1 The financial implications of the recommendations are set out in the report.  The 

proposed investment priorities are fully funded from Council resources already set 
aside for this purpose. 
 
 

9. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED  
 
9.1 The recommendations have been compiled ensuring continued compliance with 

the Council’s legal requirement to make arrangements for the proper administration 
of its financial affairs as set out in Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972. 
In addition, the proposed investment areas support the delivery of the Council’s 
Corporate Plan priorities, in line with the requirements of the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015.  

 
 
10.  LINKS TO CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE WELL-BEING 

OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT 
  
10.1 The proposed investment areas are in line with the priorities included within the 

Council’s Corporate Plan and support the sustainable development principle of the 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, in particular, planning for the 

Tudalen 157



 

‘long term’, helping to ‘prevent’ problems occurring or getting worse in the future 
and delivering services in ‘collaboration’ with others.  

 
 
11.  CONCLUSION  
 
11.1 This report has identified the opportunity to invest a further £6.500M of additional 

resources in our local area including our own assets in order to improve our 
infrastructure and the services which are available to our residents. 

 
 
 

**************** 

Tudalen 158



 
 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

CABINET 
 

21st September 2021 

 
 
COUNCIL PERFORMANCE REPORT – 30th June 2021 (Quarter 1) 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND DIGITAL SERVICES IN 
DISCUSSION WITH THE RELEVANT PORTFOLIO HOLDER (CLLR NORRIS) 
 
AUTHOR: Paul Griffiths, Service Director – Finance and Improvement 
Services (01443) 680609  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report provides Members with an overview of the Council’s performance, 

both from a financial and operational perspective, based on the first three 
months of this financial year (to the 30th June 2021). 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 It is recommended that the Cabinet: 

 
2.1  Note the on-going impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on service delivery and, 

in parallel, the re-introduction of services as Covid-19 restrictions are 
gradually lifted.  

 
Revenue 
 

2.2 Note and agree the General Fund revenue outturn position of the Council as 
at the 30th June 2021 (Section 2 of the Executive Summary) and note the 
incorporation of Welsh Government Covid-19 funding into this position to 
support on-going service delivery.  

 
Capital 
  

2.3 Note the capital outturn position of the Council as at the 30th June 2021 
(Sections 3a – e of the Executive Summary). 

 
2.4 Note the details of the Treasury Management Prudential Indicators as at the 

30th June 2021 (Section 3f of the Executive Summary). 

Tudalen 159

Agendwm 10



2 
 

Corporate Plan Priorities 

 
2.5 Note the Quarter 1 progress updates for the Council’s Corporate Plan 

priorities (Sections 5 a – c of the Executive Summary).  
 
2.6  Note the progress update to enhance the Council’s short term and long-term 

response to extreme weather events (Section 6 of the Executive Summary).  

 
 
 
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1  To agree the Council’s financial and operational performance position as at 

the 30th June 2021 to enable elected Members and other stakeholders to 
scrutinise the performance of the Council.  

 
 
4.0 BACKGROUND 
 
4.1  This report provides Members with the first update of the Council's financial 

and operational performance position for the financial year ending the 31st 
March 2022.  

 
4.2  The aim of the report is to bring together the Council’s performance into an 

Executive Summary and make available more detailed information to the 
reader through electronic links. Information contained in the Executive 
Summary includes financial data, progress against our Corporate Plan 
priorities (with exceptions highlighted within the detailed sections to ensure 
that elected Members and other readers are able to quickly identify the key 
issues) and progress made to enhance the Council’s response to extreme 
weather events.  

 
4.3 Members will note that this report is set in the context of the Covid-19 

pandemic continuing to pose significant challenges in the delivery of Council 
Services alongside on-going significant additional costs and income losses 
that have, to date, been funded in the majority of cases by Welsh 
Government. Further information in this regard is included within the 
Executive Summary.  
 

 
5.0 QUARTER 1 REPORT 
   

5.1  The Quarter 1 report is attached and comprises:  
 

• Executive Summary – setting out, at a glance, the overall performance 
of the Council as at Quarter 1 (i.e. 30th June 2021). 
 

Tudalen 160



3 
 

• Revenue Monitoring – sections 2a – e setting out the detailed projected 
financial spend against budget across our Revenue Budget with 
exceptions highlighted. 

 

• Capital Monitoring – sections 3a – e setting out capital spend across 
our Capital Programme with exceptions highlighted and section 3f 
covering Prudential Indicators. 

 

• Organisational Health – includes information on turnover, sickness 
absence, organisational health related investment areas and Council 
strategic risks. 

 

• Corporate Plan Priorities – three action plans (Sections 5a – c) setting 
out progress updates for the priorities of People, Places and Prosperity.  

 

• Enhancing the Council’s response to extreme weather events -  
Section 6 setting out progress made to implement the recommendations 
agreed by Cabinet on 18th December 2020.  
 

 

6.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS AND SOCI-ECONOMIC 
DUTY 

 
6.1  The Council’s Performance Report provides an update on financial and 

operational performance for the first 3 months of 2021/22; as a result, there 
are no equality and diversity or socio-economic duty implications to report.  

 
 
7.0 CONSULTATION  
 
7.1  Following consideration by Cabinet, this Report will be presented to the 

Finance and Performance Scrutiny Committee for review, challenge and 
where deemed required, the scrutiny of specific areas in line with the 
Committee’s Terms of Reference. With specific regard to progress made to 
implementation recommendations to enhance the Council’s response to 
extreme weather events, this information will be scrutinised by the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee.  

 
 
8.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

8.1  There are no financial implications as a result of the recommendations set 
out in the report. 

 
 
9.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED  

9.1  There are no legal implications as a result of the recommendations set out in 
the report. 

Tudalen 161

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Cabinet/2020/12/18/Reports/Item6ReviewoftheCouncilsResponsetoStormDennis.pdf


4 
 

10.0  LINKS TO CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE WELL-
BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT 

 
10.1  The Corporate Plan progress updates included within this report align with 

the priorities as set out within the Council’s Corporate Plan 2020 – 2024 
“Making a Difference”. With regard to the Well-being of Future Generations 
Act (Wales) Act 2015, at the 4th March 2020 Council meeting, it was agreed 
that the Corporate Plan priorities would also serve as its Well-being 
Objectives in line with the Act.  

 
11.0 CONCLUSION  
 
11.1  This report sets out the financial and operational performance of the Council 

as at Quarter 1 2021/22, that is, 30th June 2021.  
  
11.2 The Quarter 1 revenue budget position is projecting a £0.415M overspend. 

This is an early projection for the full year and reflects the impact of forecasted 
changes in demand through to year-end, with key pressures being primarily 
within Adult Social Care and Children’s Services, and takes account of 
forecasted additional costs and income losses as a direct result of the Covid-
19 pandemic (that are assumed to be fully funded by Welsh Government). 
Work will continue to closely monitor the Council’s financial position, refresh 
financial forecasts as updated information becomes available and continue 
to engage with Welsh Government to highlight the importance of providing 
additional funding to support the financial implications of Covid-19 and also 
on-going permanent cost pressures.  

 
11.3  Capital investment as at 30th June 2021 is £10.624M, with a number of 

schemes being re-profiled during the quarter to reflect changes in costs and 
also new external grant funding approvals received. The expenditure to date 
represents the continuation of a long-term programme of investment that is 
supporting visible improvements to infrastructure and assets across the 
County Borough, taking account of Covid-19 safety requirements.  

 
11.4 With regard to the Council’s Corporate Plan priorities of People, Places and 

Prosperity, overall, good progress has been made during the first three 
months of the year. 

 
11.5 The third progress update on the delivery of recommendations to enhance 

the Council’s response to extreme weather events shows a positive position, 
with key actions being taken forward that provide a clear direction for the 
future.  

 
Other Information:- 
Relevant Scrutiny Committee: Finance and Performance Scrutiny 
Committee  
Contact Officer: Paul Griffiths  

Tudalen 162

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/CorporatePlan2020/CorporatePlan2020ENGFINAL.pdf
https://www.futuregenerations.wales/about-us/future-generations-act/
https://www.futuregenerations.wales/about-us/future-generations-act/


5 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

AS AMENDED BY 
 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
21st September 2021 

 
COUNCIL PERFORMANCE REPORT – 30th June 2021 (Quarter 1) 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND DIGITAL SERVICES IN 

DISCUSSION WITH THE RELEVANT PORTFOLIO HOLDER (CLLR NORRIS) 
 

Item: 10 

 
 

Background Papers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Officer to contact: Paul Griffiths  

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 163



6 
 

COUNCIL PERFORMANCE REPORT 
QUARTER 1 2021/22 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Contents 
Section 1 – INTRODUCTION  

 

Section 2 – REVENUE BUDGET  

Revenue Budget Performance – more detailed breakdowns are included in the following 
sections:  

 

• 2a Education and Inclusion Services;   

• 2b Community and Children’s Services;  

• 2c Chief Executive;  

• 2d  Prosperity, Development & Frontline Services; and 

• 2e Authority Wide Budgets.  
 

Earmark reserve update – Section 2f provides a breakdown of expenditure against service 
areas. 
 

Section 3 – CAPITAL PROGRAMME   

Capital programme budget – more detailed breakdowns are included in the following 
sections:  

 

• 3a Chief Executive;  

• 3b Prosperity, Development & Frontline Services;  

• 3c Education and Inclusion Services; 

• 3d Community and Children’s Services; and 

• 3e Capital Programme Funding.  
 

Prudential Indicators – a detailed breakdown is included in Section 3f.   

Section 4 – ORGANISATIONAL HEALTH  

• Turnover; 

• Sickness Absence;  

• Organisation Health related investment areas; and 

• Council Strategic Risks.  

Section 5 – CORPORATE PLAN  

Corporate Plan priority progress updates – Quarter 1 position statements are included 
within the following sections:  
 

• 5a – People;  

• 5b – Places; and  

• 5c – Prosperity.  
 
Section 6 – ENHANCING THE COUNCIL’S RESPONSE TO EXTREME WEATHER 
EVENTS  
 
Progress update on the implementation of recommendations agreed by Cabinet on 18th 
December 2020 to enhance the Council’s response to extreme weather events.  
 

Tudalen 164



7 
 

Section 1 – INTRODUCTION  

 
This Executive Summary, bringing together and summarising the Council’s financial and 

operational performance position as at 30th June 2021, is set within the context of Council 

service delivery operating within a very challenging environment as a result of the on-going 

impact of Covid-19, as was the case during 2020/21. This has required the Council, like all 

local authorities in Wales, to continue to adapt and change the way it provides services, many 

in partnership with others, to help meet the needs of residents and businesses. Where 

appropriate, service specific information has been included within this Executive Summary to 

provide the reader will a full as picture as possible in this regard. 

 

In addition, throughout the Executive Summary electronic links have been included that 

enable the reader to access more detailed information, as required.  

 
Section 2 – REVENUE BUDGET   
 
Revenue Budget Performance  
 

 2021/22 – as at 30th June 2021 (Quarter 1) 

Service Area  

Full Year 
Budget 

£M 

Projected 
Expenditure as at 

Quarter 1  
£M 

Variance 
Over / (Under) 

£M 

Education & Inclusion 
Services (2a)  

195.725 195.646 (0.079) 

Community & Children’s 
Services (2b) 

168.293 168.798 0.505 

Chief Executive (2c) 30.857 30.601 (0.256) 

Prosperity, Development 
& Frontline Services (2d) 

60.235 60.400 0.165 

Sub Total 455.110 455.445 0.335 

Authority Wide Budgets 
(2e)  

72.793 72.873 0.080 

Grand Total 527.903 528.318 0.415 

  

Tudalen 165

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QtrlyPerfRpt2122/Qtr12122/12aEduQ12122.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QtrlyPerfRpt2122/Qtr12122/12aEduQ12122.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QtrlyPerfRpt2122/Qtr12122/22bCommServQ12122.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QtrlyPerfRpt2122/Qtr12122/22bCommServQ12122.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QtrlyPerfRpt2122/Qtr12122/32cChExecsQ12122.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QtrlyPerfRpt2122/Qtr12122/42dPDFLServQ12122.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QtrlyPerfRpt2122/Qtr12122/42dPDFLServQ12122.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QtrlyPerfRpt2122/Qtr12122/52eAuthWideQ12122.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QtrlyPerfRpt2122/Qtr12122/52eAuthWideQ12122.pdf


8 
 

Welsh Government Covid-19 funding incorporated within the Quarter 1 position (30th  
June 2021) 
 
The full year revenue budget variance, projected as at 30th June 2021, is a £0.415M 
overspend. This forecasted position assumes that additional costs and income losses as a 
direct result of the pandemic will be offset by the continuation of additional funding being 
made available by Welsh Government to all local authorities in Wales. Notwithstanding the 
on-going uncertainties associated with the pandemic, for example, the impact of easing of 
restrictions, the effectiveness of the vaccination programme and the potential for a further 
‘wave’ during the autumn / winter period, the current estimated full year additional cost / 
income loss to the Council, forecasted at 30th June 2021, is £29M. This position will be kept 
under on-going review alongside Welsh Government’s intentions for the continuation of 
additional financial support (including with regard to the Council Tax Reduction Scheme) and 
updated information will be included within Performance Reports during the year.  
 
For information, the specific financial assistance provided to local authorities includes:  
additional costs in respect of housing / homelessness, free school meal payments, Adult 
Social Services and staff cover due to absence; and income losses where there has been a 
need to temporarily suspend or reduce service provision (for example, Leisure Centres, 
Theatres and visitor attractions).  
 
The Table below sets out the additional costs and income losses incurred and accounted for 

relating to Quarter 1 of 2021/22.   

 

Service Area  
Actual Additional Costs / Income 

Loss Recovered (Quarter 1)* 

£M 

Education & Inclusion Services -2.211 

Community & Children's Services  -5.146 

Chief Executive  -0.416 

Prosperity, Development & Frontline Services  -0.848 

Authority Wide  -0.040 

TOTAL  -8.661 

* Excludes additional costs incurred / projected in respect of Test, Trace and Protect and supporting the delivery 

of the vaccination programme, the funding for which is being made available by Welsh Government and the 

Local Health Board respectively, in line with guidance. Also excludes spend incurred and funded on Welsh 

Government schemes where the Council is acting as an agent.  

 

 

  

Tudalen 166



9 
 

Revenue budget variances projected at Quarter 1  
  
1. Community and Children’s Services  

 
ADULT SERVICES 

o Long Term Care & Support (£0.341M overspend); 
o Commissioned Services (£0.463M overspend);  
o Provider Services (£0.075M underspend); and 
o Short Term Intervention Services (£0.302M underspend). 

 
CHILDREN SERVICES 
o Safeguarding & Support (including Children Looked After) (£0.108M overspend);  
o Early Intervention (£0.088M overspend); and 
o Cwm Taf Youth Offending Service (£0.088M underspend). 

 
PUBLIC HEALTH AND PROTECTION  

o Leisure, Parks & Countryside and Community Facilities (£0.076M overspend).  
 

2. Prosperity, Development & Frontline Services  
 
FRONTLINE SERVICES  

o Transportation (£0.062M overspend);  
o Street Cleansing (£0.052M underspend); and 
o Waste Services (£0.196M overspend). 

 
3. Chief Executive  

 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

o Human Resources (£0. 070M underspend); and 
o Finance & Digital Services (£0.063M underspend). 

 
4. Authority Wide Budgets  

 

• Miscellaneous (£0.080M overspend).  
 

Earmark Reserve Update   
 

• A breakdown of full year expenditure against approved earmark reserves for Service 
Areas can be viewed at Section 2f by clicking here.  

  

Tudalen 167

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QtrlyPerfRpt2122/Qtr12122/62fEMRPosition.pdf


10 
 

Section 3 – CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

The Council and its contractors / suppliers have continued to build on the work undertaken 
during 2020/21 to ensure safe working arrangements and, in doing so, enabled the on-going 
delivery of capital programme projects.  
 
 
Capital Programme Budget  

 

Service Area  

2021/22 -  
as at 30th June 2021 

Capital Budget 
£M 

Actual Expenditure   
£M 

Chief Executive (3a)  3.447 0.227 

Prosperity, Development & Frontline 
Services (3b) 

74.410 7.877 

Education & Inclusion Services (3c) 43.510 1.424 

Community & Children’s Services (3d) 10.283 1.096 

Total 131.650 10.624 

 
 

Key Capital Variances at Quarter 1  
 

• Re-profiling of a number of projects to reflect changes in the total cost of schemes and 

revised delivery timescales.  

• Grant approvals introduced into the Capital Programme: Welsh Government (WG) 

Targeted Regeneration Investment (TR) Programme (£0.594M); WG ENABLE 

(£0.349M); Heritage Lottery Fund (£1.144M); Integrated Care Fund (£0.160M); WG Local 

Transport Fund (£0.828M); WG Road Safety Grant (£0.157M); WG Flood and Coastal 

Erosion Risk Management (£0.488M); and WG Local Places for Nature Grant (£0.135M).  

 
For information on how the Capital Programme is funded see section 3e by clicking here.  

Prudential Indicators  

For a detailed breakdown of Prudential Indicators, see section 3f by clicking here.  
  

Tudalen 168

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QtrlyPerfRpt2122/Qtr12122/73aCapitalSectionCEX.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QtrlyPerfRpt2122/Qtr12122/83bCapitalSectionPDF.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QtrlyPerfRpt2122/Qtr12122/83bCapitalSectionPDF.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QtrlyPerfRpt2122/Qtr12122/93cCapitalSectionEDU.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QtrlyPerfRpt2122/Qtr12122/103dCapitalSectionCCS.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QtrlyPerfRpt2122/Qtr12122/113eCapitalSectionPROG.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QtrlyPerfRpt2122/Qtr12122/123fPrudIndpd32122.pdf


11 
 

Section 4 – ORGANISATIONAL HEALTH 

• Turnover   

 
 

Service Area 

2021/22 2020/21 2019/20 

As at 30th June 
2021 

As at 30th June 
2020 

As at 31st March 
2021 

As at 30th June 
2019  

Staff 
Nos. 

% 
Turnover 

Staff 
Nos. 

% 
Turnover 

Staff 
Nos. 

% 
Turnover 

%  
Turnover 

Turnover – 
Council Wide  

10,897 2.52 10,630 1.03 10,888 6.84 1.97 

Community & 
Children’s Services 

2,941 2.62 2,909 1.17 2,946 6.59 2.39 

Prosperity, 
Development & 
Frontline Services  

907 4.74 949 0.74    941 6.70 1.57 

Education & 
Inclusion Services  

1,247 2.25 1,277 0.47 1,258 6.52 1.98 

Schools 
Primary 
Secondary  

4,920 
3,077 
1,842 

2.30 
2.37 
2.17 

4,820 
3,040 
1,780 

1.16 
1.09 
1.29 

4,873 
3,043 
1,830 

7.47 
7.49 
7.43 

1.71 
1.79 
1.56 

Chief Executive’s 
Division  

882 1.59 675 0.89    870 4.83 2.64 

 

• Sickness Absence 
With specific regard to Covid-19 and the recording of sickness absence, where staff have 
been unavailable for work due to, for example, self–isolating, having an underlying 
condition that places an individual at risk, these occurrences have not been categorised as 
‘sickness absence’ and as such are excluded from the analysis below.  

 

Service Area 

2021/22 2020/21 2019/20  

As at 30th 
June 2021 

% 

As at 30th 
June 2020 

% 

As at 31st 
March 2021 

% 

As at 30th 
June 2019 

% 

As at 31st 
March 2020 

% 

% days lost to sickness 
absence – Council Wide  

4.31 3.29 3.96 4.14 4.16 

Community & Children’s 
Services 

6.13 5.59 6.14 5.25 5.59 

Prosperity, Development & 
Frontline Services  

5.26 4.06 4.99 3.76 4.74 

Education & Inclusion Services 4.25 2.47 3.20 3.65 3.70 

Schools 
Primary  
Secondary 

3.28 
3.58 
2.78 

2.21 
2.39 
1.90 

2.88 
3.21 
2.33 

3.89 
4.16 
3.42 

3.56 
3.79 
3.16 

Chief Executive’s Division  3.02 1.47 2.62 2.73 2.39 

 
For a more detailed breakdown of 2021/22 sickness absence information, click here.  

Tudalen 169

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QtrlyPerfRpt2122/Qtr12122/13SicknessTurnoverQ12122.pdf


12 
 

Organisation Health related investment areas  

 
There will be a continued focus on investing in organisational health related areas, for 
example, IT infrastructure and invest to save energy efficiency schemes, with projects being 
delivered operationally within services across the Council.  

 

• Council Strategic Risks  

 
The Council’s Strategic Risk Register has been reviewed and updated to take account of 
the changing internal and external operating environment. This has informed revisions to 
the Strategic Risk Register as follows:  
 
o Updating risk descriptions to ensure they continue to be focussed on the key areas of 

risk to be managed by the Council, for example, the on-going implications of Covid-19;  
workforce health and well-being and recruitment and retention; increasing pressures 
within demand led services; and imminent national reforms in respect of the education 
curriculum and additional learning needs;  
 

o The removal of the specific Brexit related risk, with this area being incorporated within 
an existing risk associated with the Council’s overall recovery arrangements from the 
Covid-19 pandemic; and 
 

o A new risk in respect of the physical impacts of climate change as a result of the 
likelihood of increased frequency of extreme weather events.  
 
 

The Council’s updated Strategic Risk Register can be viewed by clicking here.  
 
 

Tudalen 170

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QtrlyPerfRpt2122/Qtr12122/14RiskQtr12122.pdf


13 
 

Section 5 – CORPORATE PLAN  
 
Corporate Plan priority action plans for People, Places and Prosperity have been compiled 
and continue to be action orientated, rather than driven by performance indicators, and are 
focussed on: the Council’s recovery arrangements from the Covid-19 pandemic and the 
support being provided to communities and businesses; the on-going transformation and 
improvement of services; and the delivery of key projects that will have significant positive 
impacts across the County Borough.  
 
The priority action plans are in draft form, subject to consideration / approval by full Council 
in October, with a summary of progress made across each of the three priorities as at 30th 
June 2021 (Quarter 1) set out in Sections 5a - c. For Members information, as part of the 
summaries of progress, electronic links have been included to each priority action plan, 
providing more detailed information on the progress during the first quarter of the year.  

 
Corporate Plan Priority Progress Update  
 
o PEOPLE (Section 5a) 

 

PEOPLE – Are independent, healthy and successful 

Summary of progress to 30th June 2021 

We have continued our work to support our residents who are older, vulnerable or who have 
disabilities, to remain independent and have a good quality of life. Despite some delays earlier in 
the year, our extra care facility in Pontypridd, Cwrt yr Orsaf, is currently progressing well and is 
due to be completed by October 2021. We are also working on a business case and design options 
for a similar scheme in Treorchy. The extra care scheme in Porth has been delayed at the planning 
stage but it is anticipated that progress on construction will be made once planning has been 
granted. 
 
We have also opened a supported accommodation scheme in Mountain Ash and all apartments 
have now been allocated. We had hoped to open a similar scheme in Llanhari following a 
refurbishment of Elm Road accommodation but this will now be completed by the end of March 
2022. We are also developing a supported accommodation strategy and investment plan to 
continue to provide a range of modern fit for purpose supported housing options for vulnerable 
people that meets their needs and is supported, where appropriate, by access to community 
facilities. 
 
We are taking forward the Council’s review on the future shape of residential care for older people 
to ensure we create the right model of service delivery to respond to increasing demand and 
changing needs. This includes drafting for approval a modernisation programme and investment 
plan for the Council's 9 care homes in line with CIW standards. 
 
We continue to deliver the Assistive Technology Project as part of Regional Stay Well in 
Community Transformation Programme and we are developing an Adult Services Digital Strategy 
and work plan to deliver a new approach that maximises the use of technology enabled care 
solutions. We will use our experiences of how technology was used during the pandemic to 
complete this. 
 
We are also building on our engagement and learning from the pandemic to inform the 
transformation of day services going forward so that people with a learning disability have access 
to meaningful activity and opportunities in their own communities, including employment to 
achieve their personal goals and live ordinary lives. 

Tudalen 171



14 
 

PEOPLE – Are independent, healthy and successful 

 
We continue to encourage all residents to lead active and healthy lifestyles and maintain their 
mental wellbeing. Following the easing of Covid restrictions, we opened the brand new gym at 
Llys Cadwyn in Pontypridd and reopened Ponty Lido following the damage caused by Storm 
Dennis in February 2020. We also have a full programme of outdoor exercise opportunities 
throughout RCT leisure facilities and Parks (where applicable). One outdoor rig has been installed 
in Ynysangharad Park and others planned for Dare Valley Country Park and Abercynon Sports 
Centre. We are also developing a plan for wider community outdoor opportunities and promotion 
of increased participation to encourage residents to utilise our outdoor spaces. 
 
Work has commenced on the Treorchy Cultural Hub and a Community Engagement Plan is being 
developed to ensure that our theatres are more inclusive and accessible to the whole community. 
We have continued to plan for online and blended delivery until Welsh Government guidance on 
theatres re-opening is clarified. 
 
We are working with our partners to ensure adequate support to meet resident needs is available 
through partnership with third and voluntary sector. We have co-produced community booklets to 
build relationships amongst Community Organisations/Groups and Local neighbourhood networks 
have commenced in discussions with key Partners / organisations.  Mapping of areas to support 
residents’ needs is ongoing.  
 
We are working with Health to explore options for the development of an integrated community 
health and social care locality model and have commenced a review of options for an integrated 
community model. We are also working together to improve patient experience and redesign the 
pathways for integrated primary and community based urgent care services and ‘home first’ 
discharge from hospital services. This includes a review and refresh of the hospital discharge 
protocol, including performance standards and measures to deliver effective transfers of care from 
Royal Glamorgan hospital. We also continue to deliver SW@H Phase 1 and 2 projects as part of 
Regional ICF and Transformation Programmes. An evaluation of the project continues in line with 
the Regional Transformation Programme and draft options appraisal work has commenced. We 
are also working with Health to review and improve end of life community care to ensure that any 
current issues are addressed, and care meets the person’s needs and to complete a review and 
redesign of Community mental health services to provide responsive access and effective mental 
health support. The Taf Community Mental Health Team has relocated to a new joint facility at 
Dewi Sant Hospital and we are reviewing accommodation options for the Rhondda Community 
Mental Health Team. Work to review and redesign Community Mental Health Services has been 
delayed pending further discussions to review the current operating model. 
 
Using the RCT Neighbourhood Network Groups, we will begin to co-produce/design with partners 
a social prescribing model. Following development of the social prescribing model, we will work 
with partners to review gaps in provision and identify ways to address unmet needs. 
 
Our priority is to improve services for children and young people and ensure the needs of children 
are considered in everything we do. We will ensure that the emotional wellbeing and mental health 
needs of children and young people aged 0-25 and their families are central to the delivery of 
services. This work has included delivering a programme of Targeted Play provision for vulnerable 
5-14 year olds with care and support needs, piloting a Wellbeing Support Programme for children 
aged 8-11 years requiring one to one support to improve their wellbeing and build their resilience 
and enhancing the provision of support to 16-25 year olds delivered by the Youth Engagement 
and Participation Service (YEPS). YEPS has undergone a restructure to bring together all support 
services for young people aged 16 - 25.  The 16+ Support Team is assisting young people 

Tudalen 172



15 
 

PEOPLE – Are independent, healthy and successful 

transition out of statutory education, tackling youth homelessness and offering key life skills 
qualifications to support young people to transition into adulthood. 
Work has begun on a 'Prevention of youth anti-social behaviour' strategy. Ensuring the positive 
engagement of young people in community life is a collective priority and will be central to the 
strategy. 
We will continue to strengthen participation of children and young people to promote engagement 
specifically with Children Looked After and partner agencies to ensure coproduction and that the 
voice of children and young people are heard in service development and delivery.  We are 
developing a Participation Strategy and incorporating different communication approaches when 
engaging with children and young people. We are seeking to provide effective Edge of Care 
services to ensure that children, young people and families receive the right support at the right 
time, supporting their physical and mental wellbeing. This includes development of the Regional 
MAPPS Service (Therapeutic Regional Service for CLA). The commissioning process has been 
delayed and timescales have been revised.  
 
The Integrated Wellbeing Pathway which was established during the pandemic to help children 
return to school has been reviewed and is continuing to operate. Additional funding has been 
secured to continue the additional capacity for dedicated stress and anxiety courses that young 
people can access outside of school. We have also purchased Play therapy and devised a well 
being programme with Bluemind for families to help them address their emotional well being issues 
that have been exacerbated by the pandemic. 
 
We are delivering the Early Years Transformation agenda in RCT in order to ensure early years 
services are universally available and specialist services are targeted by need and not 
geographical location. Funding has been secured to undertake the technical development of the 
Early Years Vulnerability Profile. A pilot which is utilising health data alongside Council data to 
build a full profile is progressing well and all relevant health information for 0-1 year olds has been 
transferred to the Council’s database. The first run of the data is due to take place in July 2021 
and following this pilot a full test will begin. Work has commenced to produce a 3 year strategic 
plan for the region identifying key milestone and outcomes at each stage. Work is ongoing to 
widely communicate operational changes to families, community organisations and providers. An 
information leaflet has been produced to share information with families on the changes; meetings 
have taken place with other Local Authorities to share good practice from RCT’s Early Years 
Transformation Project; and a workshop has taken place with all Health Visitors to reiterate the 
changes.  
 
The full action plan can be viewed by clicking here.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Tudalen 173

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QtrlyPerfRpt2122/Qtr12122/15PEOPLEQ1.pdf


16 
 

Investment Priority Progress Update – Quarter 1 

 

Progress in our Investment Priorities – PEOPLE 

Investment Area 
Investment 

Value1 
£M 

Quarter 1 Update 

Extracare Housing  
 

6.974 
 

 

This investment funding covers:  
 

• The former Maesyffynnon Home for the Elderly 
site (Aberaman) – completed and the first 
residents moved into the new facility in May 2020.  

• Pontypridd - works commenced in July 2019 and 
are progressing well with the project due to be 
completed in 2021.  

• Porth - agreed by the Council’s Cabinet on 3rd 
December 2020. Progress to date includes: the 
vacation of the building; site surveys completed; 
contract for demolition has been awarded; and 
preparatory work underway to enable the main 
contract works to be tendered.  
 

Consideration of development proposals for 
Treorchy and Mountain Ash schemes are on-going. 
 

Tackling Poverty 
Fund 

0.300 This investment funding is to help address areas 
where there are high levels of poverty (including fuel 
poverty) to increase the disposable income of 
households, for example, by supporting households 
to reduce energy bills, helping to overcome barriers 
to find employment.  
 

Total 7.274  

 

 
1 Investment Value – relates to LIVE projects / works only that have been allocated additional investment 
funding.  

Tudalen 174



17 
 

o PLACES (Section 5b) 
 

PLACES - Where people are proud to live, work and play 

Summary of progress to 30th June 2021 

The Council’s Enforcement Team has continued to monitor and take action against fly-tippers 
with 999 recorded incidents this quarter (453 last year) and enforced off street parking 
restrictions and school keep clear zones to ensure the safe passage of both drivers and 
residents. 
 
Work is on-going with landlords, agents and residents to encourage good recycling practices 
that will reduce municipal waste and have a positive effect on the environment, for example, 
reducing plastic bottle use in schools and kitchens and progressing the development of re-use 
outlets. Recycling awareness raising events have been limited during the pandemic, in line with 
restrictions, and it is anticipated that some activity can start to resume later this year. The 
tonnage of recycled waste during quarter 1 is higher than the same period last year ( 
23,110tonnes compared to 21,567tonnes in 2020/21); however, our overall recycling 
percentage is lower i.e. 62% compared to (66.34% at quarter 1 in 2020/21) - this is primarily 
due to the storage of wood until such time that it can be transported and recycled.  
 
We are progressing our climate change agenda through developments in alternative fuelled 
fleet vehicles, public transport and taxis; looking at ways where we can create renewable 
energy; reuse of hard plastic; development of the Eco Park at Bryn Pica; and implementing 
procurement policies to reduce the use of single use plastic items. 
 
Our highways investment programme activity continues across the County Borough, together 
with work on repairs and flood mitigation measures. The requirements of the Flood and Water 
Management Act are being progressed together with recommendations contained in the review 
of the Council’s response to Storm Dennis Cabinet Report 18 December 2020 (see Section 6 of 
this Executive Summary). We are also progressing active travel initiatives across Rhondda 
Cynon Taf.  
 
Our community cohesion work is being progressed and we are reviewing the approach to 
community asset transfers and ensuring that elements of ‘social value’ are being considered as 
part of this process. We have also established a Sustainable Food Network to ensure access 
to good quality food, reducing food waste and food poverty.  
 
We continue to work with partners in Bridgend to recommission Tier 1 and 2 substance misuse 
services so that they align with provision at Merthyr and Rhondda Cynon Taf. Our substance 
misuse service, Barod, has been strengthened with the recruitment of two outreach workers, 
and new initiatives including an out of hours needle exchange service and establishing links 
with housing services to provide harm reduction services to those individuals deemed homeless 
and ‘hard to reach’. Our new specialist Housing Outreach Service has already supported fifteen 
people with complex needs, and numbers are expected to increase as the service develops. A 
Short Term Offender Project has also been progressed that will offer support to reduce 
homelessness and repeat reoffending. We are also improving our domestic violence and sexual 
violence provision through our work with Women’s Aid and have started the recruitment for a 
Child and Young Person IDVA.  
 
To keep our communities safe, a three-month pilot scheme of Safe Street Ambassadors has 
commenced that will inform recommendations for safe spaces within our communities. A third-
year evaluation of our PSPO on intoxicating substances, including alcohol in our town centres, 
has been completed which will inform a report to Cabinet later in 2021.  

Tudalen 175

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Cabinet/2020/12/18/Reports/Item6ReviewoftheCouncilsResponsetoStormDennis.pdf
https://barod.cymru/


18 
 

PLACES - Where people are proud to live, work and play 

We continued to invest in our green spaces and increase biodiversity. Our Playground 
Investment Programme is progressing and includes the Gravity Family Bike Park at Dare Valley 
Country Park. 
 
Work to establish natural carbon storage solutions has commenced, and we are actively 
promoting awareness of our wildflower grass management and initiatives like ‘Grab a Rake’ to 
get our communities involved in supporting our biodiversity campaigns. We continue to work 
with partners such as Natural Resources Wales to support projects like ‘Healthy Hillsides’ and 
‘Living Landscapes’.   
 
We have also progressed projects that are grant funded through the Valleys Regional Park 
including Dare Valley Country Park and Ynysangharad War Memorial Park, and continue to 
look at ways to promote Discovery Gateway sites as part of the Valleys Regional Parks initiative. 
 
The full action plan can be viewed by clicking here 
 
 

  

Tudalen 176

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Tourism/DareValleyCountryPark/Bike/GravityFamilyBikePark.aspx
https://www.welshwildlife.org/uncategorized/healthy-hillsides-project/
https://www.welshwildlife.org/living-landscapes/
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/valleys-regional-park-prospectus_0.pdf
https://valleysregionalpark.wales/discovery-gateways/
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QtrlyPerfRpt2122/Qtr12122/16PLACESQtr12122.pdf


19 
 

Investment Priority Progress Update – Quarter 1 
 

Progress in our Investment Priorities – PLACES 

Investment Area 
Investment 

Value2 
£M 

Quarter 1 Update 

Highways 
Infrastructure 
Repairs  
 

6.428 
 
  

The additional resources are being used in conjunction with 
existing resources to deliver a programme of highways 
infrastructure repairs between 2021/22 and 2023/24.  
 

Play Areas  
 

0.564 
     

There are 22 schemes which form the planned programme of 
works for 2021/22. As at 30th June 2021, 4 had been 
completed, 1 was under construction, 7 had been designed, 
costed and scheduled and 10 are to be designed.  
 

Skate Parks/Multi 
Use Games 
Areas  

0.191 
 

There are 4 schemes which form the planned programme of 
works for 2021/22. As at 30th June 2021, 1 scheme is complete, 
1 is under construction and 2 are to be designed, costed and 
scheduled.  
 

Structures: Brook 
Street Footbridge  

1.287 
 
 
  

• Brook St. Footbridge – the estimated start date for works is 
quarter 4 of 2021/22 and discussions are on-going with 
Transport for Wales in respect of the work to be undertaken. 

Structures  5.221 
 

The investment funding has been allocated to support structure 
projects:  

 

• Nant Cwm Parc Cantilever and Institute Bridge 
Strengthening – works are underway on site. 

• Ynys Meurig Bridge Parapet Replacement – due for 
completion summer 2021. 

• Major retaining wall refurbishments – two wall refurbishments 
completed, others at design stage.  

• Bodringallt Bridge Infilling – estimated start date January 
2022. 
 

Parks Structures  1.097  
 
 
 

The investment funding has been allocated to support various 
footbridge repairs and replacements within Parks:  
 

• Bridge deck and parapet replacement of Maesyfelin 
Footbridge (Pontyclun) – currently in progress on site. 

• Replacement of Abercynon Recreation Ground Footbridge -  
due to commence in quarter 2.  

• Various inspections and surveys continue to be undertaken 
as advance preparation for future schemes.  

 

Parks and Green 
Spaces  

1.226  This investment funding is supporting drainage, pavilion and 
infrastructure improvements to various parks sites. The 

 
2 Investment Value – relates to LIVE projects / works only that have been allocated additional investment 
funding.  

Tudalen 177



20 
 

Progress in our Investment Priorities – PLACES 

Investment Area 
Investment 

Value2 
£M 

Quarter 1 Update 

2021/22 programme currently comprises of 64 schemes at 
various stages of completion.  
 

Llanharan 
Bypass  
 

2.127 
 

This investment funding is supporting various stages of 
development, preliminary design, ground investigations and 
ecology surveys. The next stage programmed is the pre-
Planning Application Consultation that is scheduled to be 
undertaken during Autumn 2021 and thereafter the submission 
of a planning application.  
 

A4119 Dualling 
(Stinkpot Hill) 

 

6.099 
 
 
 
 

This investment funding is supporting the dualling of the 
highway between the South Wales Fire Service Headquarters 
roundabout and Coed Ely roundabout. Detail design work has 
been completed; tender document preparation for the 
construction phase is progressing; and work is on-going to 
secure land required and the associated Compulsory Purchase 
Order has been submitted.  
 

Community Hubs   
 

0.458  
 

This investment funding relates to supporting:  
 

• Treorchy – procurement process underway for works to be 
undertaken to improve the proposed site of Treorchy 
Community Hub at Treorchy Library.  
 

Gelli/Treorchy 
Link Road  
 

0.393 
 

This investment funding relates to investigatory works for a 
solution which will help alleviate congestion at Stag Square.  
Feasibility and a WelTAG stage 1 has been completed. The 
next steps are to develop a preferred option through WelTAG 
stage 2.  
 

Cynon Gateway 
(North), Aberdare 
Bypass 
 

1.899 
 
 

This investment funding relates to the preliminary design, 
planning application and tender preparation for a bypass 
continuation from A4059 Aberdare to join the A465 Heads Of 
the Valleys road.  
 

Bryn Pica Eco 
Park 
 

1.400 
 

This investment funding is to support enabling works, planning 
and ecology for the development of an Eco Park at the Waste 
Management Facility.  
 

Dinas Community 
Recycling Centre  
 

0.250 
 
 

This investment funding relates to the provision of a new office 
building and improvements on the site of Dinas Community 
Recycling Centre following the demolition of the previous site 
building. Works have been substantially completed subject to 
some rendering work being completed.  
 

Land Drainage 0.511 
 
 

This investment funding is supporting drainage and culvert 
network works. The ongoing programme includes works at:  
 

Tudalen 178



21 
 

Progress in our Investment Priorities – PLACES 

Investment Area 
Investment 

Value2 
£M 

Quarter 1 Update 

• Cwmbach – works commenced and scheduled for 
completion in the first half of 2021/22;  

• Property Flood Resistance Programme – on-going 
engagement with property owners and provision of flood 
prevention measures e.g. flood gates.  

• Supporting 9 Welsh Government grant funded schemes 
across Rhondda Cynon Taf which are scheduled to be 
completed by March 2022.  

 

Total 29.151  

 
  

Tudalen 179



22 
 

o PROSPERITY (Section 5c) 
 

PROSPERITY - Creating the opportunity for people and businesses to: be innovative; be 
entrepreneurial; and fulfil their potential and prosper  

Summary of progress to 30th June 2021 

Integrated support continues to be provided for town centre businesses, including support for 69 

businesses to develop their outdoor spaces to improve trading opportunities. We continue to engage 

with businesses to inform developing packages of support.  

The Council continues to lead on the £15M Transforming Towns grant across the Cardiff City Region 

and a strong pipeline of potential projects is in development, including review of currently disused 

sites. A range of property and site redevelopment projects are currently underway in our town 

centres. In Mountain Ash, the redevelopment of Rhos (Guto) square is currently onsite and the former 

Barclays bank building is being transformed into a multiuse facility for Cynon Valley Cancer Care. In 

Pontypridd, work continues to redevelop the YMCA building and a bid has been made to the UK 

Government Levelling Up Fund to redevelop the Muni building into a major cultural hub. A draft 

placemaking plan is currently being developed for Tonypandy, with projects including the 

redevelopment of Llwynypia Courthouse and the demolition and redevelopment of properties in 

Dunraven street recently damaged by fire. The roll out of town centre wifi has been completed in 

Tonypandy although in Pontypridd it has been delayed until September due to BT Openreach 

requirements.  

Working with Cardiff Capital Region, we are progressing Housing viability gap funding to remediate 

contaminated land conditions across 3 brownfield sites at the former Cwm Coking works, former 

Aberdare hospital site and Heol y Wenallt, which could deliver over 1,400 new homes.  

Work continues to develop the visitor economy, including finalising work at Dare Valley Country Park, 

with the gravity bike park opening in August. A Tourism Steering Group involving key stakeholders 

has been established and a new Tourism Strategy for Rhondda Cynon Taf is due to be presented to 

Cabinet for approval in September.  

As schools returned to face-to-face delivery during the summer term, work continued in partnership 

with Central South Consortium to regularly review the progress of all schools, and ensure effective 

assessment and tracking systems are in place to identify and support those learners most adversely 

affected by Covid-19. The readiness of schools for the new curriculum is also being discussed by 

Local Authority and Central South Consortium Officers, and will continue to be monitored in the 

autumn term.  Following the initial pilot of family engagement officers in six secondary/through 

schools, there have been encouraging initial results in supporting wellbeing and attendance. 

However, the Covid-19 pandemic has made it difficult to fully evaluate the impact and the pilot is 

being continued for another year in secondary schools and extended to 13 primary school settings 

so further information can be gathered before consideration of any wider roll out.   

Investment in our school buildings continues, with contractors appointed for the Greater Pontypridd 

school projects on a design and build basis and works on site commenced to provide additional 

capacity at YG Rhydwaun and YGG Aberdar. Outline Business Cases have been submitted for 

pathfinder MIM schemes for Penygawsi, Llanilltud Faerdref and Pontyclun Primary schools.  

Consultation has also been completed on developing a new Welsh Medium School for YGG Llyn y 

Forwen, the results of this will be reported to Cabinet in September.  

Support for people seeking work continued through our Employment Support programmes, with 

some face-to-face delivery recommencing for those individuals who find engaging through virtual 

methods challenging, for example, those without digital skills. Work is also being undertaken to 

Tudalen 180



23 
 

PROSPERITY - Creating the opportunity for people and businesses to: be innovative; be 
entrepreneurial; and fulfil their potential and prosper  

engage local businesses in the support available to them both with recruitment and increasing skills 

in the existing workforce. 

Work continued to develop opportunities for our school pupils to gain knowledge of careers and 

working life, including developing a pilot project to help pupils who are currently disengaged in school 

to link their current studies to potential future careers. Work is also currently underway to develop 

further opportunities for extended work placements and explore the potential for junior 

apprenticeships, as well as providing ‘virtual work experience’ through video interviews to assist 

young people who may have had limited opportunity for physical work placements due to the 

pandemic.  

Work took place in partnership with Registered Social Landlords and developers to increase the 
supply of energy efficient housing and commercial developments. Work is underway with Rhondda 
Housing Association and other partners on a feasibility study to construct a zero-carbon home in the 
Treherbert area, and options for the Porth Infants school site are being explored with Cynon Taf 
Housing. The Council also continues to work with local manufacturers and installers to identify 
opportunities for retrofitting schemes to decarbonise the existing housing stock, including existing 
and new opportunities for external funding. 6 registered companies are now delivering ECO flex 
funding in RCT and the Council has attracted Arbed am Byth (Welsh Government Warm Homes) 
funding into Penrhiwceiber.  
 
The full action plan can be viewed by clicking here 
 

  

Tudalen 181

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QtrlyPerfRpt2122/Qtr12122/17PROSPERITYQ1.pdf


24 
 

Investment Priority Progress Update – Quarter 1 

 
 

Progress in our Investment Priorities – PROSPERITY 

Investment 
Area 

Investment 
Value3 

£M 
Quarter 1 Update 

Empty 
Property 
Grant  

1.245 Following the use of Welsh Government Valleys Taskforce Grant 
funding during 2020/21 to support bringing empty properties back 
into use, the Council’s funding has been re-introduced for 2021/22. 
The Council’s funding allocation is now fully committed (and the 
on-line application process has closed) and it is anticipated that 
the expenditure will be incurred during 2021/22 and into 2022/23.  

 

Schools  1.006 
 

 

• Scheme on-going:   
 

o Cymmer Primary – demolition of the canteen and erection of 
fencing was completed in August 2020. Carpark works to be 
completed during summer 2021. 
 

• New schemes include:  
 

o YGG Llyn Y Forwyn Primary (transferring the school to a new 
building on a new site) - site investigation surveys have been 
undertaken and land has been purchased.  

o Covid-19 related capital works - to install canopies and 
undertake ventilation works in over 50 schools. 
 
 

Transport 
Infrastructure  

2.500 
 
  

This investment funding is supporting a wider programme of 
highways capital works including:  
 

• Progress design work for pedestrian crossing enhancement 
projects at Tonyrefail, Groesfaen, Llanharan and Nantgarw (to 
improve road safety and promote active travel). 

• A4058 Asda Tonypandy junction - extend entry lane lengths 
from the north and include cycle facilities. Design and tender 
documents have been completed during quarter 1, a 
contractor will be procured and construction works are 
programmed to commence during quarter 2. Works will 
improve junction capacity and traffic flow and promote active 
travel.  

• A4059 / Bowls Club junction - feasibility study ongoing to 
investigate improving the junction to improve traffic flow along 
the A4059. 

• A473 Upper Boat - WelTAGs are ongoing and improvements 
to Maesmawr Lane have been completed. 
 

 
3 Investment Value – relates to LIVE projects / works only that have been allocated additional investment 
funding.  

Tudalen 182



25 
 

Progress in our Investment Priorities – PROSPERITY 

Investment 
Area 

Investment 
Value3 

£M 
Quarter 1 Update 

Park and 
Ride 
Programme  

0.586 
 
 
 

This investment funding is supporting the development work 
needed to create additional and formalised ‘park and ride’ car 
parking spaces with new and improved facilities such as Access 
for All, improved CCTV coverage and Electric Vehicle charging 
points at:  

• Pontyclun - feasibility design to improve an existing facility is 
ongoing in partnership with Network Rail and Transport for 
Wales.   

• Porth – phase 3 preliminary design has been completed in 
quarter 1 and planning permission has been granted. Detailed 
design will now commence and continue for the remainder of 
this year.  

 

Strategic 
Regeneration 
Investment  
 
 

0.200 This funding has been approved for the Guto Square development 
(Mountain Ash) which will provide a bigger and improved area for 
public use in the heart of the town centre for community events 
and business uses, and also additional car parking spaces for 
shoppers and visitors to the town. The demolition phase is now 
complete and the construction contract is underway. It is 
scheduled for the scheme to be completed by the end of 2021.  
 

Robertstown 
and Coed Ely 
ERDF Match 
Funding  
 

4.200 • Robertstown – good progress made during quarter 1 including 
completion to a number of plots: main frames, internal foul 
drainage, fire protection works, liner sheets and insulation, 
lightening protection tails, installation of metal decking to 
mezzanine level and roofing.  
 

• Coed Ely – the building was handed over on 15th January 2021. 
During quarter 1, the majority of snagging items have been 
finalised prior to tenant occupation and works have continued 
to secure the tenant for the unit. 
 

Total 9.737   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 183



26 
 

Section 6 – ENHANCING THE COUNCIL’S RESPONSE TO EXTREME WEATHER 
EVENTS  
 
The 18th December 2020 Cabinet meeting agreed a series of recommendations to enhance  
the Council’s short and long term response to extreme weather events and which limit the  
impact of flooding on those communities most at risk.  
 
The progress made by Council Services to implement the recommendations can be viewed 
here and will be scrutinised by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  
 
 
 

********************* 

Tudalen 184

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QtrlyPerfRpt2122/Qtr12122/18FloodRecsUpdateQ12122.pdf

	Agenda
	2 Cofnodion
	Cofnodion

	3 Rhaglen Waith Y Cabinet
	Appendix

	4 Bwrdd Rhianta Corfforaethol – Adroddiad Blynyddol
	Appendix

	5 Adolygu Rheoliadau, Ymwybyddiaeth a Gorfodi Deddfwriaeth Llifogydd a Dŵr
	6 Ffyrdd Heb eu Mabwysiadu
	Appendix B(i)Belle Vue, Trecynon
	Sheets and Views
	A3 Detailed GA (2)


	Appendix B(ii)

	7 RHAGLEN YSGOLION YR 21AIN GANRIF – CYNNIG I WELLA'R DDARPARIAETH ADDYSG YN YSGOL GYNRADD GYMRAEG LLYN Y FORWYN
	8 DYNODI TIR YNG NGHWM CLYDACH, TONYPANDY A ELWIR AR HYN O BRYD YN BARC CEFN GWLAD CWM CLYDACH YN BARC GWLEDIG
	9 Cynllun Corfforaethol y Cyngor – Blaenoriaethau Buddsoddi
	10 Adroddiad Cyflawniad ac Adnoddau'r Cyngor (Ch1)

